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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s Ao
B 1598 2
For Year ended 31 March
BZ=R=1t-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF —TREF “T-RF S T
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
B BT BT BT BT
Revenue WA 964,872,099 704,937,348 621,089,610 489412925 229,666,107
Profit/(Loss) before tax BREATER, (BR) 244,608,182 184,407,790 210,596,799 96,568,611 (30,231,411)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FREF/(FB) 203,496,217 149,308,398 174,777,762 81,306,643 (32,259,429)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to AR B AR,/
owners of the Company (B8) 200,702,539 148,663,969 174,415,159 81,121,682 (32,301,003)
Earnings/(Loss) per share BRAF,/(EE) 0.21 0.20 0.24 0.11 (0.04)
As at 31 March
R=B=+-8H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF —TRF “T-RF S T
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
Total assets EEBE 1,199,253,190  1,155,563,031 467,666,980 483,200,564 337,198,739
Total liabiliies afEes 409,400,867 424,285,947 464,713,119 500,121,265 435,514,964
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(BE)FE 789,852,323 731,277,084 2,953,861 (16,920,701) (98,316,225)
Financial Metrics BifgigE
Net profit margin'” FRFIER 21.1% 21.1% 28.1% 16.6% N/ATNEA @
Current ratio® RENL RO 2.49x 2 .54x 0.85% 0.86x 0.67x
Quick ratio® RO 2.44x 2.50x 0.82x 0.84x 0.66x
Return on equity® PreNEEEL 25.8% 20.4% 5,916.9% NATER®  NATERD
Return on average FHBEERRES
total assets®! 17.3% 18.4% 36.7% 19.8% N/ATER O
Dividend per share (HK$) GkiE (BT) 0.20 0.19 0.21 - -
Notes: I

il

2

Net profit margin equals profit for the year divided by revenue for the same
period.

Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities as at the end
of the financial year.

Quick ratio equals current assets less inventories divided by current liabilities
as at end of the financial year.

Return on equity equals profit for the year divided by the ending balance of
total equity for the financial year.

Return on average total assets equals profit for the year divided by the
arithmetic mean of the beginning and ending balances of total assets for
the financial year.

Considered not meaningful to disclose as there is capital deficiency by the
end of the relevant financial year.

Considered not meaningful to disclose as there is a loss for the year during
the relevant financial year.
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A year-over-year analysis of certain key metrics of our revenue and

clients are set out below:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B E

WAREFOETHRRERZFALD T

T

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-RLEE

2017 2016 % change
—E—t& ZT—REF BALEE

Total revenue (HK$) BUA (BTT) 964,927,119 704,937,348 36.9
Sales contracts entered into during ~ FREI M AIEES K (BT)

the year (HK$) 969,770,195 671,822,226 44.3
Approximate number of Key Clients ~ BEEE P4 & B 16,200 9,400 72.3
Number of clients who made at ELEE - ARBHEMD

least one purchase of BPEE

services or products 52,446 32,159 63.1
Revenue contributed by FEIEP BRI (%)

PRC clients (%) 25% 14% -
Material unfavourable feedback FREEBEBERER)

(Compensation and refund) (B8#AT)

(HKSmillion) 1.5 1.0 50.0
Material unfavourable feedback ERBAERE(EERER)

(Compensation and refund) iV ONER 9

(% of total Revenue) 0.16% 0.14% -
Refunds and settlements to FRRERFAREBRAEL

legal proceedings and claims kiEEoE(AEAT)

(HK$million) 0.10 0.16 (37.5)
Refunds and settlements to fRREREFA R BRAER

legal proceedings and claims REBESFE(EEER

(% of Recognised BEWABSL)

Medical Revenueg) 0.02% 0.06% -

ERABIEREEERAT

FEHE 2017

3



AWARDS AND RECOGNITION
TR N 3R AT
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Hong Kong Institute of Marketing —
Market Leadership Award 2016
BEEMKEE — 2016 FMiHAGEHE

L -

Hong Kong Beauty & Wellness Association —
Top 10 Most Influential Brands
of Beauty Industry 2016
BEREEDERMREHRE —
2016 FERETAZEVE WM

TMEEXTHE —

Black Diamond Status —
2016 Invisalign Advantage Program
in Hong Kong
EiEER —

2016 F BB XBLIAE

4 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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Caring Company 2016/17
[ EREE] % 2016/17

Asian Hair Beauty Association —
Outstanding Enterprise Awards of Asian
Hairstyling & Make up Competition 2016

Hong Kong Top Service Brand 2016
2016 F & B RIS A

JG'@::!‘.I CTRT

STy

United Nations Millennium Development Goals —
Green Office Award 2016
pEeETREFERAE —
2016 FHEEIHNES

2016 FEMERUL MR BB ¥

Merz Aesthetics — Golden Records Award
Year 2016 for Ultherapy
EBIEE —20164F Ultherapy i &% & 12



AWARDS AND RECOGNITION
8ETH N SRt
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Botox — Highest Sales Achievement for
Consecutive 7 Years from 2010 to 2016
within Hong Kong
Botox — 2010-2016 ##E 7 F 2B HETE

Dysport — Highest Sales Achievement for
Consecutive 9 Years from 2008 to 2016
within Hong Kong
Dysport — 20082016 @9 F 2B HETE

Juvederm — Highest Sales Achievement for
Consecutive 7 Years from 2010 to 2016
within Hong Kong
Juvederm — 2010-2016 & 7 F 2 BHETE

Restylane — Highest Sales Achievement for
Consecutive 7 Years from 2010 to 2016
within Hong Kong
Restylane — 2010-2016 &7 F 2B HE T E

Sculptra — Highest Sales Achievement for
Consecutive 7 Years from 2010 to 2016
within Hong Kong
Sculptra — 2010-2016 EE 7 E2BLETE

Teosyal — Highest Sales Achievement for
Consecutive 6 Years from 2011 to 2016
within Hong Kong
Teosyal — 20112016 EE 6 F 2 BHETE

Highest Sales Achievement

for Consecutive 9 years within Hong Kong
REEEIFLE

\s B /i1
B
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GEOGRAPHICAL COVERAGE
i B =

o Shanghai £ (1)

, CHINA H
¢ Guangzhou E/I| (2)
’ Guangzhou JE}H (6)

(in the process of being establised)

Shenzhen CEERIZH ) 7RI (1)

>4

Gross service floor areas
of the Group increased 57.4%

REENRERERAIEINT57.4%

Yuen Long 788

(SN

Tuen Mun P9

Shatin > F

P

Tsim Sha Tsui 220H
Tseung Kwan O #4558

P Flagship aesthetic medical centre
BRXEPOREE
. Standard aesthetic medical centre

EEEEEE

N rth Point 4t £

Aesthetic medcial clinic

Quarry Bay il &3/ (] BEERHL
Causeway Bay A °® Dental centre
TR

. Beauty service centre
ERIRIBHL

. Health management centre
REEESL

. Chiropractic and physiotherapy centre
HE AR L

As at 31 May 2017
R h A =+,

6 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Revenue

L'ON

Net Profit
B A

+36.3%

Dear Shareholders,

It is the first anniversary that the Company became a listed company
on the Stock Exchange for the entire Reporting Period. We are to
demonstrate the Group’s competitive strengths to the investment
community in Hong Kong and seize opportunities from the market.

We proactively grasped opportunities arising in the market and were
able to achieve remarkable growth. The Group’s revenue and net
profit increased by 36.9% and 36.3% year-on-year to HK$964.9
million and HK$203.5 million during the Reporting Period
respectively. The Group is committed to generating sustained and
consistent returns for our Shareholders. The Board has consequently
recommended to declare a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per Share
and a special dividend of HK7.9 cents per Share for the year ended
31 March 2017.

MARKET LEADERSHIP BY MEDICAL
PROFESSIONALISM

As the largest aesthetic medical service provider in Hong Kong with
a solid reputation among customers, we value high standards of
safety and professionalism in our services, with all our aesthetic
medical procedures being handled by our sizeable team of
Registered Practitioners. The Group’s number of Registered
Practitioners increased by 91.3% year-on-year during the Reporting
Period. We continue to maintain an insignificant level of complaint
and refund ratio and continue to commit in providing the best
customer experience to our customers. Leveraging our
comprehensive internal control protocols and risk management
measures, the Group is well-positioned and will continue to
consolidate its market leadership with our exceptional and superior
professional ethics.

< Highest sales achievement for consecutive 6 to 9 years from 2008 to 2016
within Hong Kong

+36.9%

ER®E

Leadership*
M

No.1

@

BRI EHHIBIR -

BERANRNEERE HEK R LT AR
ME—AF - HMIERBEERERRTASEN
BFEL RILETISHE

BPBEBRICETSANEENES  WEEREE
BE - AEENKRARFRFAREBERL S
A1 K 36.9% K 36.3% £ 964.9 B &5 7L /2 203.5
AEAT - ALEBR N AREHFENFEN
HEHR - EEeEZMEEZE T —tF=
A=+—B I EEREREM5.08 1K K E
% B R R 7.9 B BV RIRL 8. °

UERERFHEENS

FRBEARALEKNEFHEFEERENEEXS
RGREKEE  RAEARBSLEFLERER
fare - MARFIMEMNBEXTEIEZOALFEX
MREME A EGETT c ARBENEMBELZA RN

HE IR LB R 91.3%  FAFIFFE @ FHEKF
IR BRI R - WHBEARRATPRERE
ENEFER - EABEHHERRAREER

i ﬁ’ilﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂ 6 #5475 38 T AP IR e
SR EERERMISRAGMAL -

ZZNFE_Z-RNFEERENFEEHET

EERBRERASEERAT 7
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

GRASP OF DEMAND FROM THE PRC

The Group is committed to expanding its presence in the PRC
through replication of its professionalism and successful experience
in the Hong Kong market and capture the growing demand on
reliable and quality medical services by the PRC via medical tourism.

Riding on the growing demand for discretionary healthcare services
boosted by the rising average household income and living standards
in the PRC, we strategically target the aesthetic medical service
market in first-tier and selected second-tier cities.

Medical tourism is expected to become a major trend in the
development of the medical industry in Hong Kong. In addition to
opening our own medical aesthetic clinics and complementing it with
beauty and health management services in the PRC, we further
expanded our business in medical tourism sector and our in-house
travel agent is equipped to facilitate such growing number of medical
tourists. Our PRC customers increased significantly and has
contributed 25% of the Group’s total revenue during the Reporting
Period.

We will also pro-actively explore for acquisition targets as well as
partnership opportunities with strong presence in the PRC, in
particular players who share the same vision as we do — offering
safe, professional and effective services bringing in health, beauty
and happiness to individuals with sustainability.

NEW HORIZON

To capitalise on the growing demand for quality medical services
with our superior professional ethics, and to continue to utilise our
cross selling capabilities, we will further strengthen our position as
the market leader by increasing the servicing floor area and number
of clinics and broadening the scope of our services to include other
discretionary healthcare services.

EEPEFER

AEEFNNEBERTEETENER LK
REEAEATETS - WRBBFEIKELER
B e rEMSHAERIMEEBFRE T E N
BB AT K o

SR B R TR A S 00 B
A RERE - &2 8 BRI 0 TG A R
E - BRR R A — R R BT
BETBH TS -

BERKERMANAEAEBTEERNTIES
Z-BRINTERREENEREXTLMMEE
MRTREEERFI - RFITFE—FREERRE
BIREROER  RAIAENRITARAEY—
ERENBRIKETHAE - HANGTERTP AR
e REEHEERMOBRAG A EBAKRAR
25% °

BRI EEYEUE B FERAERBEAGRA
TENNAER  LERERMBHRBRAE
R— RHZE  EXREMNORY - XHER
BEFWREE BRIk -

A

BEHEEBSRG M TEHRENFTRERME
M) B RGBS - WHRAE N AR FIRR RIHE B
71 ROV EBIE IR EAE R 2 P8R B A K
HIRFREREAZRE BREERY - E— 2
Bl HAIVE AT 5 REE ML o
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Key Clients

EEERF
HYW A EE

+72.3% +25%

As such, the Company launched re:HEALTH in May 2016, a one-
stop health management centre providing a full range of
comprehensive health screening, health product and health
management services. During the Reporting Period, revenue from
health management business was HK$51.3 million.

by PRC Clients
MBEREF &R

We have also been striving to enrich our product offerings and
service ranges to satisfy diverse customers’ needs by adding on new
medical treatment and procedures, including but not limited to
chiropractic services, aesthetic medical hair-growth services and
lifestyle management.

There is continuous effort made by the Hong Kong authorities to
tighten the regulations in the healthcare sector and aesthetic medical
procedures performed by qualified physicians over the years, we fully
recognise that market demand for stringent standards in aesthetic
medical service will continue to be strong.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

| would like to express my deepest appreciation to the management
team and all fellow staff members for their extraordinary commitment,
cohesive teamwork, dedication and contribution. They are one of our
most important assets contributing to the Group’s success.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my utmost gratitude to all of our Shareholders, customers
and business partners for their unwavering support. We are fully
committed to upholding our position as the leader in aesthetic
medical service industry in Hong Kong and striving for excellence
and creating value for our Shareholders.

Tang Chi Fai
Chairman

28 June 2017

# re:HEALTH

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
TEHRE

Revenue Contributions

Gross Service
Floor Area

\ HERERBEE

+57.4%

Al R R_ZET— 0 AHE
re: HEALTH Z— iET&KEIEHEi%¢/L\TE£\
Fhitgw RREMREREERYE HRB®EH
fa &EE@%%W%A%&BE%@KO

BB FERAERES MREHBE - BBEERR
iE R 8 IR K R F&%ﬁﬁi%)ﬁynﬂzﬂ’]ﬁﬁ

C BRETRRAERRE  B2XTEER
ﬁ&ié i

BARNBTEPI B F RIS E W E
RERETHERXTERZ 2R
% 82X R IRBHBRIBITEZ TS
SR o

BITENAE
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FRiGHE

IS &t

AANERHBERAEEERAAERINZER
A BEMEREE - ERMERKERENH
B MMPISEF —BARKERNEL BRI

AANERREZGHIBEROBHIABRE
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FE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR a Mo T

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the Reporting Period, we continued to maintain our leading
market position, as the largest aesthetic medical service provider in
Hong Kong in terms of revenue. We are well-positioned to further
extend our leading position in the growing aesthetic medical service
market in Hong Kong and broaden the types of services and
products that we offer, as well as to continue our expansion in the
rest of the Greater China and Asia. Medical services continue to be
the primary contributor to our revenue and profits. As at 31 May
2017, inclusive of our two flagship stores and three clinics in the
PRC, our 38 centres offer wide range of services including aesthetic
medical, traditional beauty, health management, chiropractic and
physiotherapy. During the Reporting Period, our revenue and net
profit increased by 36.9% and 36.3% from the previous year to
HK$964.9 million and HK$203.5 million respectively.

Business Developments

We are to expand our business not only via diversification of services
and products we can offer, but also via expansion of the
geographical coverage of our services.

Riding on the growing demand for quality medical services with our
superior professional ethics being recognised in the PRC and Hong
Kong, the Company launched re:HEALTH in May 2016, a one-stop
health management centre providing a full range of comprehensive
health screening, health product and health management services in
Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, revenue from health
management business was HK$51.3 million.

To extend our services and product offerings, we commenced
offering chiropractic services to address some of the needs of health
and beauty of individuals towards the end of 2016. On 7 October,
2016, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in each of the Target
Companies at an aggregate consideration of HK$33.5 million in form
of cash. The transaction constituted discloseable transaction for the
Company under the Listing Rules. The Target Companies are one of
the largest group of chiropractors, physiotherapists and other health
professionals in Hong Kong which specialise in the musculoskeletal
and nervous systems. Upon completion of the acquisition, all the
Target Companies became indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Company and the financial results, assets and liabilities of the
Target Companies be consolidated into the financial statements of
the Group. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 23 September 2016 and 24 August 2016.

1 O Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, we opened our aesthetic medical clinics
in Guangzhou and Shanghai. Our business driven by medical tourism
has experienced a significant increase and revenue contributed by
our PRC clients represents 25% of the Group’s revenue during the
Reporting Period, such increase is primarily due to the recognition of
our credibility as a reliable and trustworthy medical services provider.

We are also in the process of establishing additional aesthetic medical
clinic in Shenzhen, which is anticipated to be opened in 2017.

To further prepare the Company in capturing the distribution
opportunities in Hong Kong and the Greater China and gaining
access to the latest medical technology, devices and drugs, the
Company acquired a distributor for internationally renowned medical
products. On 25 November 2016, the Group completed the
acquisition of 50% of Good Union Corporation Limited (“Good
Union”) and Good Union Medical Limited (“GUM”) at an aggregate
consideration of HK$25.2 million in form of cash. This transaction
constituted a connected transaction for the Company but was
exempted from the circular and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. Upon completion of the
acquisition, Good Union and GUM became the jointly controlled
entities of the Company and the financial results, assets and liabilities
of these two companies accounted for as jointly controlled entities in
the consolidated financial statements of the Company. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 2 November 2016 and
25 November 2016 for further details.

In order to enhance the customers’ experience and facilitate the
growing demand for quality medical services in Hong Kong, we have
further expanded average g.f.a. to approximately 73,000 square feet
at our flagship store in Langham Place, Mong Kok.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ER BRI

Contracted Sales

Contracted sales, which refers to sales contracts entered into during
the Reporting Period, is an important factor affecting our results of
operations. Contracted sales are, in turn, primarily driven by the
number of clients who have made at least one purchase during a
financial period and the average spending per client. Contracted
sales increased by HK$298.0 million or 44.3%, from HK$671.8
million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to HK$969.8 million for the
year ended 31 March 2017, and the number of clients who made at
least one purchase of services or products during the respective
periods were 32,159 and 52,446 respectively, representing an
increase of 63.1%.

We have achieved a strong and solid growth of contracted sales due
to our ability to maintain and grow our client spending and number of
clients who made purchases, especially our Key Clients. We will
continue to aim to grow our Key Client base and increase their
average spending through improvements in the following areas:

° big data and CRM System

° cross selling capabilities

o service floor area

° number and types of services and products
° number of Registered Practitioners

o retention of clients

° marketing channels

° quality of services

° efforts in PRC tourists to Hong Kong

Client Growth and Diversity

Our revenue is significantly affected by the number of clients who
received our services, in particular the number of Key Clients. As at
31 March 2017, we have 16,200 Key Clients. If the new clients are
excluded from our Key Clients, over 66% of our Key Clients have
more than 3 years of relationship with us.

During the Reporting Period, approximately 89% and 66% of our
clients who received at least one service session were females and
between the ages of 26 to 55, respectively.

1 2 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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A year-over-year analysis of certain key metrics of our revenue and

clients are set out below:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREN®

DT

#y\&g}fH@%FE@%&E%ZEK%W%@JQD

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=+-HLEE

2017 2016 % change
—s—t= —E-RE BHLEY
Total revenue (HK$) BN BT 964,927,119 704,937,348 36.9
Sales contracts entered into during FRFTLREESH (BL)
the year (HK$) 969,770,195 671,822,226 44.3
Approximate number of Key Clients ~ EEESHAEE 16,200 9,400 72.3
Number of clients who made at ELEE - AREIERD
least one purchase of BFEHE
services or products 52,446 32,159 63.1
Revenue contributed by PEEFERAHKA (%)
PRC clients (%) 25% 14% -
Material unfavourable feedback EREARE(EEREN)
(Compensation and refund) (BB#T)
(HKS$million) 1.5 1.0 50.0
Material unfavourable feedback EREAREEEREN)
(Compensation and refund) (EBBABE D)
(% of total Revenue) 0.16% 0.14% -
Refunds and settlements to BRRE SR EA R R R IR R
legal proceedings and claims kEEoE(AEAT)
(HKS$million) 0.10 0.16 (37.5)
Refunds and settlements to FRRORR R A R R AR R
legal proceedings and claims kBB (2R
(% of Recognised BERABDL)
Medical Revenue) 0.02% 0.06% -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRE S am Mo AT

Our Professionals and Other Staff

The following table summarises the number of our Registered
Practitioners who worked full-time for our Group as at 31 March
2017:

BMNERAERHMET

TREANR —E—tF=A=+—HR/ELEESR
BT ERREMEAENEE -

Number of
Registered
Type of Registered Practitioners Location Practitioners
o 188 A 8 B b B AMEEAH
Plastic Surgeons (in Hong Kong) Hong Kong 1
EBBIINIE EB
Clinical Microbiologist Hong Kong 1
BRI A R R i
Pathology Hong Kong 1
TRIETL 8 B
Dentists Hong Kong 6
TE EB
Paediatrics Hong Kong 1
SERIEE i
Hong Kong Doctors who are General Practitioners Hong Kong 10
LEMEER BB
Registered Chiropractors Hong Kong 13
FERlliF=n- B
Chinese Medicine Practitioners (one Listed Chinese Medicine Hong Kong 3
Practitioner & one Registered Chinese Medicine Practitioner)
hE(—BRIFPER BTN E B
PRC Doctors PRC 5
FR B A 3 28 FREI A
Macau Doctors Macau 3
RPIER P
44

As at 31 March 2017, we also had (i) 25 full time supplementary
medical profession staff in Hong Kong and the PRC, including but
not limited to dental hygienist, registered nurses, enrolled nurses and
PRC nurses; (i) 276 Trained Therapists, being employees who have
completed mandatory internal training developed by our Doctors to
provide quasi-medical services and/or traditional beauty services
under our internal licensing programme; and (iii) 8 Registered
Practitioners and 9 supplementary medical profession staff who
worked part-time for our Group to facilitate our growth on a need-to
basis, in particular our new health management centre.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Internal Control Protocols
Work Safety and Risk Management

Professionalism and safety have always been our core values. Our
experienced and well-trained Registered Practitioners perform and
oversee all medically related operations, as well as participate in our
senior management. Both our Registered Practitioners and
supporting staff are scheduled to attend medically related trainings
regularly to update their knowledge and skill sets. Prior to performing
a procedure to a client, we require our Registered Practitioners and
Trained Therapists to explain the procedures and associated risks
and obtain written consent acknowledged in a new form signed by
our client. We apply certain medical standards even to our non-
medical services, such as recommending our clients to consult with
doctors prior to receiving any of our services.

Internal Control Measures regarding selling practices and
unutilised prepaid packages

We have implemented a series of internal control measures, including
a number of measures which are adopted by reference to applicable
“best practice” guidelines issued by governmental bodies (such as
the Hong Kong Consumer Council and the Commerce and
Economic Development Bureau of Hong Kong), to help prevent our
staff from engaging in coercive selling practices, such as:

° adopting a refund policy which includes a seven-day cooling-
off period whereby our clients are allowed to request a full

refund within seven days of purchase of any prepaid packages;

° adopting a policy that commission is not paid to our sales staff
for contracted sales which are subsequently refunded;

° establishing procedures for recording and handling complaints;
° having written terms and conditions with clients;
° sharing media reports of forced selling cases with our staff to

highlight the potential adverse consequences of such
practices;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ER BRI

° proactively seeking clarification of the Trade Description
Ordinance from the relevant government authorities and
organising a seminar provided by the officers of the Hong Kong
Customs and Excise Department relating to the Trade
Description Ordinance for our staff;

° detailed employee guidelines on, inter alia, responsible selling
practices (for example, not to harass or push clients in
purchasing prepaid packages);

o video and voice recording devices in consultation rooms to
monitor staff behaviour during consultations; and

° offering our employees compensation incentives which are
linked to the actual utilisation of prepaid packages by the
clients.

We have a client phone survey system in order to further our active
solicitation of client feedback. Our client service team calls clients
who have received our services on the previous day (excluding those
who had already completed such survey in the past 30 days) on
every working day. The survey is conducted based on a
questionnaire where we ask clients to give us scores (out of five
points) for 14 categories, such as level-of-care, attitude of staff and
brand image. We compile the scores through our integrated
information technology infrastructure and review such scores to
identify targets for improvement. We had surveyed 6,438 and 9,360
clients for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 respectively.
We have been able to improve our scores from such client phone
surveys since the implementation of such programme.

Information Technology Infrastructure

During the Reporting Period, we have further improved and
upgraded the sophistication of our information technology systems
and big data to better accommodate our clients’ use of mobile
internet applications, enhance efficiency and standardisation of
operations among service and sales competence to further improve
our service qualities and sales revenue. In terms of business
intelligence, we have also implemented the SAP enterprise software
since April 2016 to allow detailed and instant tracking of our client’s
redemption pattern, which provides us with more sophisticated ways
to recognise revenue and estimate forfeited income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Claims and Compliance

In order to provide top-quality and safe services to our clients, we
encourage clients to provide feedback through client satisfaction
surveys and face-to-face discussions. Where a client requests for a
refund or a product return, our Registered Practitioners will
participate in investigation of such requests. During the Reporting
Period, there were 9 complaints filed against us with the Hong Kong
Consumer Council as compared to 11 complaints for the year ended
31 March 2016. As at the date of this annual report, no formal court
proceedings have commenced in respect of the medical incident as
disclosed in the Prospectus under the section headed “BUSINESS
— LEGAL PROCEEDINGS, CLAIMS AND COMPLIANCE — CLAIMS
AND LITIGATION — CLAIMS AND THREATENED LITIGATION
MADE BY CLIENTS — RECENT MEDICAL INCIDENT”.

We refer to our previous late filing of profits tax returns as disclosed
in the Prospectus under the section headed “BUSINESS — LEGAL
PROCEEDINGS, CLAIMS AND COMPLIANCE — NON-
COMPLIANCE INCIDENTS — INLAND REVENUE ORDINANCE”. As
set out in the Relevant Disclosures, during the three years ended 31
March 2013, 2014 and 2015, certain of the Group companies had
been the subject of the Tax Audit conducted by the IRD. During the
Reporting Period, the Group received 2 letters from the IRD (the
“Letters”) relating to the Relevant Subsidiaries. In each of the Letters,
the IRD agreed not to commence proceedings against the Relevant
Subsidiary under section 80(2) of the IRO relating to the Tax Audit if
the Relevant Subsidiary agreed to pay to the IRD the required sums
specified in the Letters (such sums, in aggregate, amount to
approximately HK$12.2 million). Having considered the views of the
Group’s tax advisor, the tax provisions previously made in its
consolidated financial statements for the potential tax liabilities, the
previous discussions with the IRD and in order to avoid further
protracted exchange of correspondences with the IRD, which may
not be in the best interest of the Company from the commercial
perspective, the Board decided to proceed with the Offer as
specified in the Letters to resolve the case. As mentioned in the
announcement dated 9 May 2017, the Directors were of the view
that, with the Offer having been accepted and the relevant amount
paid to the IRD by the Relevant Subsidiaries, (i) the Tax Audit in
respect of each of the Relevant Subsidiaries was considered as fully
and finally settled; (ii) except with the Offer, the Directors were not
aware of any further allegations by, or concerns from, the IRD in
relation to the performance of the related obligations of the Relevant
Subsidiaries of the Company as mentioned in the Relevant
Disclosures under the IRO; and (iii) the Relevant Subsidiaries and
their directors would not be subject to any further legal proceedings
under section 80(2) of the IRO relating to the Tax Audit of the
Relevant Subsidiaries. Given that the Group has previously made the
relevant tax provisions, the Company has written back such excess
of the tax provision in the sum of approximately HK$11.3 million to
its consolidated income statement for the Reporting Period. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9 May 2017 for
further details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ER BRI

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES
Hong Kong

According to the report on March 2017 Monthly Survey of Retail
Sales issued by the Hong Kong Census and Statistics Department, (i)
the value of total retail sales in March 2017 was provisionally
estimated at HK$35.7 billion, increased by 3.1% over the same
month in 2016, and (i) after netting out the effect of price changes
over the same period, the volume of total retail sales in March 2017
increased by 2.7% compared with that of March 2016.

We are committed to offer the top notch customer experiences in
addition to the safe and professional medical and beauty services.

With reference to the data gathered in our system, we are to leverage
on our clients’ trust on our quality services and to provide services in
other medical disciplines. We will continue to offer the latest products
and equipment in meeting the continued growing demand of clients
in medical needs, in particular the medical aesthetic space. We may
respond by identifying potential acquisition targets or via an organic
expansion.

The PRC

Premier Li Kegiang announced an agenda for constructing
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao greater bay area (“Greater Bay
Area”™) in his work report to the 5th Session of 12th National
People’s Congress (NPC) on 5th March 2017. It aims to strengthen
the collaboration amongst the cities of the Greater Bay Area and
leverage on the unique advantages of Hong Kong and Macao to
facilitate enhancement of the national economic development and its
status and functions globally. Hong Kong is unique and strong in
terms of its internationalization in the area of modern services,
finance, legal, accounting and construction. Hong Kong’s economic,
social and legal system is well connected with the world and it has a
large pool of international talent. The Greater Bay Area plays an
important role as the world-class cluster of cities of the PRC to
compete amongst other countries globally.

¥ The Greater Bay Area is comprised of Hong Kong, Macau and nine cities in
Guangdong (namely, Guangzhou, Foshan, Zhaoging, Shenzhen,
Dongguang, Huizhou, Zhuhai, Zhongshan, Jiangmen).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We will continue to pursue the expansion of our own medical
aesthetic clinic in the first-tier and selected second-tier cities in the
PRC as disclosed in our Prospectus and we anticipate that our
medical aesthetic clinic in Shenzhen will be opened by the end of this
year.

To enhance our capability to service the medical tourism sector, we
have been equipped to facilitate travel arrangements via our in-house
travel agent and divert PRC customers to obtain medical services in
Hong Kong that are not readily available in the PRC. We are pro-
actively exploring acquisition targets as well as partnership
opportunities with strong presence in the PRC, in particular players
who share the same vision as we do — offering safe, professional
and effective services as a concierge in customers’ health and
beauty.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ER BRI

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue increased by 36.9% from HK$704.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2016 to HK$964.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2017 primarily attributable to (i) the increase in revenue
generated from medical services from HK$275.7 million for the year
ended 31 March 2016 to HK$501.8 million for the year ended 31
March 2017; and (i) revenue from our new health management
services of HK$51.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Medical Services

Our revenue from medical services increased by 82.0% from
HK$275.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to HK$501.8
million for the year ended 31 March 2017, primarily attributable to the
increase in revenue generated from minimally invasive procedures
performed and increase in the number of, and variety of, energy-
based aesthetic medical services provided to clients during the
Reporting Period.

Quasi-Medical Services

Our revenue from quasi-medical services increased by 30.2% from
HK$74.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to HK$96.4
million for the year ended 31 March 2017, primarily attributable to the
increase in the number of and variety of energy-based aesthetic
medical devices provided to clients during the Reporting Period.

Traditional Beauty Services

Our revenue from traditional beauty services increased by 169.6%
from HK$65.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 to
HK$175.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2017, primarily
attributable to the Group’s marketing strategy to nurture and retain
the new customers to become our Key Clients, in particular the PRC
clients.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Health Management Services

Our revenue from health management services was HK$51.3 million
for the year ended 31 March 2017, primarily attributable to the
provision of services in the one-stop health management centre
newly launched in May 2016.

Skincare, Healthcare and Beauty products

Our revenue from the sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products increased by 62.8% from HK$38.0 million for the year
ended 31 March 2016 to HK$61.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2017, primarily attributable to the healthcare products newly
launched by re:HEALTH which commenced operations in May 2016.

Operating Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
business segments of the operations for the Reporting Period is set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other Net Income and Gains

During the Reporting Period, our other net income and gains were
approximately HK$27.5 million, an increase of approximately
HK$23.8 million or 648.6% when compared to the year ended 31
March 2016, primarily due to the write back of excess of the
provision for penalty and interest income gained from the unutilized
net proceeds from IPO during the Reporting Period.

Cost of Inventories

Our cost of inventories increased from HK$70.7 million for the year
ended 31 March 2016 to HK$130.5 million for the year ended 31
March 2017, primarily attributable to an increase in the volume of
medication and service consumables used, which was in line with
the significant increase in the volume of service procedures
performed. Our cost of inventories and consumables grew at a
higher rate as compared to that of revenue from services provided
due to the increase in effort to expand our market shares, along with
an increase in product sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRE S am Mo AT

Registered Practitioner Expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2017, we incurred Registered
Practitioner expenses of approximately HK$77.5 million, an increase
of approximately HK$24.7 million or 46.8% when compared to the
year ended 31 March 2016, primarily attributable to an increase in
the number of Registered Practitioners from 23 as at 31 March 2016
to 44 as at 31 March 2017.

Employee Benefit Expenses and Remuneration Policy

For the year ended 31 March 2017, we incurred employee benefit
expenses of approximately HK$277.9 million, an increase of
approximately HK$85.5 million or 44.4% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2016, primarily due to increase in our overall
headcount (excluding Registered Practitioners) from 693 as at 31
March 2016 to 808 as at 31 March 2017, as well as the increments
to employees’ salaries.

The Group is aware of the importance of human resources and is
dedicated to retaining competent and talented employees by offering
them competitive remuneration packages. Their salaries and
bonuses were determined by reference to their duties, work
experience, performance and prevailing market practices. The Group
also participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme in Hong
Kong, and provides employees with medical insurance coverage. A
share option scheme and a share award scheme are in place to
reward individual employees for their outstanding performance and
contribution to the success of the Group.

Marketing and Advertising Expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group incurred marketing
and advertising expenses of approximately HK$68.5 million, an
increase of approximately HK$30.4 million or 80.1% when compared
to the year ended 31 March 2016, primarily due to an increased level
of marketing and advertising activities in promotion of the Group and
our new business, in particular re;HEALTH.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Rental and Related Expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group incurred rental and
related expenses of approximately HK$88.8 million, an increase of
approximately HK$26.7 million or 42.9% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2016, primarily due to the increase in the aggregate
average g.f.a of approximately 35,000 sq. ft. as compared to 31
March 2016.

Credit Card Expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group incurred credit card
expenses of approximately HK$29.7 million, an increase of
approximately HK$6.7 million or 29.3% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2016, primarily due to the significant increase in
contracted sales generated during the Reporting Period, resulting in
higher credit card expenses incurred.

Other Expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group incurred other
operating expenses of approximately HK$47.1 million, an increase of
approximately HK$20.6 million or 77.7% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2016, primarily due to (i) the professional expenses
incurred as a result of obtaining relevant services from professional
advisers and parties in relation to the transactions entered into by the
Group and after the Company has become a listed company; (ii)
donations; and (iii) the office expenses incurred as the scale of the
business of the Group increased during the Reporting Period.

Profit Before Tax

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group has profit before tax
of approximately HK$244.6 million, representing 25.3% of the
revenue and an increase of approximately HK$60.2 million or 32.6%
when compared to that of the year ended 31 March 2016.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group incurred income tax
expense of approximately HK$41.1 million, an increase of
approximately HK$6.0 million or 17.1% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2016, primarily due to significant increase in profit
before tax.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Profit for the Year/Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded profit for the
year of approximately HK$203.5 million, an increase of HK$54.2
million or 36.3% when compared to the year ended 31 March 2016,
primarily due to our development of the new businesses and efficient
leverage on our cross-selling capabilities. Our profit margin remains
at approximately 21.1%.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a strong financial position with cash and
cash equivalents of HK$200.6 million as at 31 March 2017. Our
working capital was HK$597.4 million. Based on our steady cash
inflow from operations, coupled with sufficient cash and bank
balances, we have adequate liquidity and financial resources to meet
the working capital requirements as well as to fund its budgeted
expansion plans in the next financial year.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, a majority of our cash and
bank balances was denominated in Hong Kong dollar, and as we
expand our operations in the PRC, there will be an increasing
amount of our assets and transactions denominated in Renminbi.

Net Cash Generated From Operating Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2017, our net cash generated from
operating activities was HK$180.0 million, which was primarily
attributable to increase in the profit for year.

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2017, our net cash used in investing
activities was HK$153.2 million, which was primarily attributable to
the purchases of financial assets designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities
For the year ended 31 March 2017, our net cash used in financing

activities was HK$180.1 million, primarily due to the dividend paid
and the purchase of shares for Share Award Scheme.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS
Use of Proceeds from IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO were approximately HK$703.4
million, after deducting the underwriting fees and commission and
related expenses paid and payable by us in connection with the IPO.
We have applied, and will continue to apply the net proceeds from
the IPO in accordance with the disclosures in the section headed
“FUTURE PLANS AND USE OF PROCEEDS” in the Prospectus as
well as the applicable Listing Rules. The below table sets out the
planned application of the net proceeds and actual usage from
Listing Date up to 31 March 2017:

IR wm S o T

BARTH RARE
BEXARBENMESREARR

RINGBHER LM A NARFRERAME
EENREMNOABASE  ARARBENM
BRIBFRAORTO34BEET - KPS RIEA
RERR [ RRE B RIS R G | — S E
BEHMERLTRERLSEEFRERA
FMBEMSFTEFRE - TR B LETERE=
E—tF =A==+ BMGFRBEFE IR
K ERRRE

Unutilised net

Actual usage  proceeds as at
Percentage of up to 31 March
total net 31 March 2017
proceeds 2017 RIE—tE
H2E Planned HZ-Z-tf =ZA=+-H
Fi85E  Applicatons =A=1-A HAE A
Use of proceeds FBRERE FHEESH HEIA% WERRE  FMENETFHE
HKS in million
BEAT
Establishing new, as well as expanding REBRAPERZNES
the scale of our existing, aesthetic EARBHORD AR
medical service centres and clinics in BRRMABEEER
Hong Kong and the Greater China FREBHR LR IMAE 40% 2814 36.4 245.0
Acquiring aesthetic medical centresand W REEZRDLREEER
aesthetic medical clinics and entering DHARBKAE AT
into joint ventures 25% 175.9 69.6 106.3
Expanding our dental service business BEAMOTRIRS XS 10% 703 1.5 68.8
Establishing our dermatology-related By AFERENERR
business line 10% 70.3 - 70.3
Upgrading and improving our B LMERFNENR
information technology systems ST 5% 35.2 1.1 34.1
Working capital and for other general EEEeRAM—REERRE
corporate purposes 10% 70.3 67.5 2.8
703.4 176.1 527.3

The Board has resolved to reallocate and change the use of idle Net
Proceeds from the IPO of the remaining balance of unutilized net
proceeds from the IPO. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 18 July 2017.

EXCCRREFNOIERENERARABEMS
FIEFR(ABANERAFESHERIBF
BB RBEEMRE - BHFE F2HKX
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W T

Capital Expenditure

Our capital expenditures during the year ended 31 March 2017 were
primarily related to purchases of operation equipment, which
primarily included medical, dental and beauty devices, and
expenditure in leasehold improvements. We have financed our
capital expenditures through cash flows generated from operating
activities.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 March 2017, we do not have any capital commitments in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

INDEBTEDNESS
Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no outstanding interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

As at 31 March 2017, we had contingent liabilities not provided for in
our financial statements of HK$2.0 million in relation to a bank
guarantee given to a credit card institution for the use of certain
credit card equipment. Save as disclosed herein, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities and guarantees as at 31 March 2017.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2017, there was no charge on the assets of the
Group except for the time deposits of HK$2.0 million pledged for
banking facilities as security for credit card instalments programme.
Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio equals total debt divided by total equity. As at 31

March 2017, the Group had interest-bearing liabilities of HK$924,438
and the gearing ratio is 0.001.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk, mainly
pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S.
dollar against Renminbi.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and considers hedging against significant foreign exchange exposure
should such need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has no significant interest rate risk. The Group currently
does not have specific policies in place to manage our interest rate
risk and has not entered into interest rate swaps to mitigate the
interest rate risk, but will closely monitor the interest rate risk in the
future.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no significant
investments held by the Company during the Reporting Period, nor
was there any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Reporting Period. Save as
disclosed in this annual report and the Prospectus, there is no plan
authorised by the Board for other material investments or additions
of capital assets as at the date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board acknowledges the vital importance of good governance
to the Group’s success and sustainability by providing a framework
for the Company to formulate its business strategies and policies,
and to enhance its transparency, accountability and shareholder
value.

The Board has committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adhering to the principles of corporate governance
emphasising on transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness.

The Company has adopted the principles as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with all code provisions set out in the CG Code during the
Review Period, save for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors, and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting Period.

Senior management, executives and staff who, because of their
offices in the Company are likely to possess inside information, have
also been requested to comply with the Model Code for securities
transactions. No incident of non-compliance with the Model Code by
such employees was noted by the Company during the Reporting
Period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD AND THE DIRECTORS
Board Composition

During the Reporting Period, the composition of the Board is as
follow:

Executive Directors

Tang Chi Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lee Gabriel

Luk Kun Shing Ben

Yeung Chin Wan

Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INEDs, each an “INED”)

Ma Ching Nam

Yu Ka Fai Alexis

Look Andrew

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Board has complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules to have three independent non-
executive Directors who represent more than one-third of the Board
and with one of whom possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Board has received from each INED a written annual
confirmation of his independence satisfied with the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the nomination committee of
the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) has assessed the
independence of each INED and the Company considers that each
of their independence is in compliance with the Listing Rules as at
the date of this annual report. Each INED will inform the Company in
writing as soon as practicable if there is any change of
circumstances with may affect his independence.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Directors do not have
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategies. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date
of this annual report are set out on pages 72 to 78 of this annual
report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERHRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

During the Reporting Period, the roles of the Chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“CEQ”) have been performed by Mr. Tang Chi Fai (“Mr. Tang”).
Although the dual roles of the Chairman and the CEO is a deviation
from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board believes
that having Mr. Tang acting as both the Chairman and the CEO
provides a strong and consistent leadership to the Company and
allows the Company to have more effective planning and
management. Further, in view of Mr. Tang’s extensive experience in
the industry, personal profile and role in the Group and the historical
development of the Group as mentioned in the Prospectus under the
section headed “Our History, Reorganisation and Corporate
Structure” and publications of the Company from time to time, the
Board considers that it is appropriate and beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group that Mr. Tang continues to act as both the
Chairman and the CEO. The Board will keep regularly reviewing the
operations of the Company under Mr. Tang’s leadership, and
considers that the balance of power and authority has been
maintaining amongst each of the Board member and the
management team of the Group (the “Management”), when the roles
and responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO are being divided
in writing and carried out as briefed below:

The role of the Chairman is focusing on determination of strategies,
direction and goal of the Group. The Chairman is also responsible for
leading the Board to effective management of the Company by,
among others, ensuring good corporate governance practices and
procedures, encouraging the Directors to make full and active
contribution to the affairs of the Board, developing a culture of
openness and debate among the Directors so that Board decisions
could fairly reflect consensus, drawing up and approving Board
meetings agenda, and chairing Board meetings.

The CEO, within the powers delegated by the Board from time to
time, is responsible for day-to-day management of the Company and
to implement strategies and major policies decided by the Board
with support of other executive Directors and the Management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to comply with
the code provision on board diversity. Under such policy, the
Nomination Committee is delegated to review, assess and
recommend any appointment, re-election or any succession plan of
any directors to the Board from time to time after considering a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, or professional experience, to allow for
the Company’s business model and specific needs.

Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The executive Board is responsible for setting up the Company’s
corporate strategies, monitoring its implementation and reviewing
operational and financial performance of the Group by making
decisions in major aspects of the Company’s matters, including but
not limited to approving and monitoring key policies, material
transactions, business plans, annual budgets, risk management and
internal control systems, annual and interim results, major capital
expenditure and appointment of Directors.

The non-executive Board (all are INEDs) has diversified industry
expertise and professional knowledge, and provides advisory,
adequate check and balances for effective and constructive
construction to the executive Board to safeguard the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Delegation to Management

Day-to-day operational management and administration functions of
the Group and implementation of the corporate strategies of the
Group are delegated to the Management led by the executive Board.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for the performance of functions of
corporate governance. During the Reporting Period, the Board has
performed the functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERHRE

Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for appointment, re-election, rotation, and removal of the
Directors. The Nomination Committee is responsible for considering
the suitability of an individual to act as a Director and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-election of
Directors, succession planning of Directors and assessing the
independence of the INEDs as set out below under sub-section
headed “NOMINATION COMMITTEE”.

All Directors entered into a service contract or letter of appointment
with our Company for an initial term of three (3) years, commencing
from the Listing Date, which shall be renewed as determined by the
Board or the Shareholders. Their term of office each is the period up
to his retirement by rotation or retirement, but eligible for re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company may by
ordinary resolution at general meetings of the Company elect any
person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. The Directors shall have power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting after his
appointment, and shall then be eligible for re-election at such general
meeting.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that each Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Induction and Continuing Professional Development
of Directors

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company received from the
Directors the following records of the training attended during the
Reporting Period on the latest amendments to the Listing Rules and
any other regulatory requirements:
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Executive Directors HITES
Tang Chi Fai iy v/ v
Lee Gabriel FER v/ v
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Yeung Chin Wan BER v v/
INEDs BYFHITES
Ma Ching Nam b=t ] v/ v
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERHRE

Supply of and Access to Information

Yearly schedule of Board meetings and draft agendas of each
meeting are made available to the Directors with sufficient times and
at least 14 or 3 days respectively in advance to encourage the
Directors’ involvement. All Directors have full and timely access to
the Management for any information to enable them to make
informed decisions at the Board meetings, as well as to the company
secretary of the Company who ensures that the regulatory Board
procedures are followed.

Members of the Management are usually invited to attend the Board
meetings to promote an effective communication within the Group.
Each Director is authorized to hire external consultants or experts for
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses to
discharge the Director’s responsibilities. The Directors did not
request for separate independent professional advice during the
Reporting Period.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The Directors actively participated in meetings and a summary of the
attendance records by each Director himself during the Reporting
Period are as follows:

BRI KB

REBMEF2E EF29R2FREAKREES
ZNERBEREID IR EREEARKRD14%3
RARETES - 2REFHIHEEFTE AR
BEB2EY RFIRGSHESFELAEREMT
ZERER - TR MARRNARWEIISHE
B DWRREFSEERFELRE -

BEEENERFREANFESTS S WMEER
SEARZBEBYEE SREFRRERAIMNERE
RMXBERBSRBYUERER  ERABARNRR]E
B UBRTESRE EENBEREATEE
RSB IEXER -

EENZEEERENHERLR

RBEHE EFRG2EEGE MEFOHFE
FOERBEE AT -

Meeting attendance/eligible to attend

BRLER AERLE
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Bxg EREES REZEE FHEES BRRKXE
Executive Directors HITES
Tang Chi Fai BEE 13/13% N/A T8 A 11 N/A T~ A 1/1
Lee Gabriel TER 12/12 N/A i A N/A T8 A N/A T 1/1
Luk Kun Shing Ben R 12/12 N/AZRiE N/AZ i N/ATiE A 1/1
Yeung Chin Ben HEH 12/12 N/A 3 N/A 3 F N/A N3 F 1/1
INEDs BYFHITES
Ma Ching Nam 55t 8/13% 2/2 N/AT i 2/2 1/1
Yu Ka Fai Alexis SRR 10/13% 1/2 11 2/2 1/1
Look Andrew R 13/13% 2/2 11 2/2 1/1

Note: * denotes that such number of board meetings includes one meeting
between the Chairman and the INEDs without the presence of executive
Directors during the Reporting Period.

MaE: O HEAHEESeRUE BRNREHEAEZFER
BYFRTEFCEAENTEZTHENBERTER

Y
H—REE °
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The Board established three Board committees on 19 February
2016, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
Nomination Committee and all of which are chaired by an INED or
the Chairman to oversee their respective functions set out below,
and to report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations by
circulating the minutes of the committee meetings to all Board
members. Each committee or committee member is authorized to
hire outside consultants or experts for independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses to discharge their responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with its written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision C.3.3 of the
CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are set out in
the written terms of reference which include reviewing and
supervising the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems, and providing advices and comments
to the Board. During the Review Period and as at the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee consists of Mr. Look Andrew as
its chairman, and Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Dr. Yu Ka Fai Alexis as its
members, all of whom are INEDs. The audit committee of the
Company has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2017. The audit committee of the Company
has also reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Company and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meeting
with the Management, the external auditor of the Company and an
external professional engaged by the Company to review the interim
results and report for 2016/2017 and annual financial results and
reports for 2017 and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and to consider significant issues on the
financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and
risk management systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit functions, the scope of work and appointment of external
auditor, connected transactions and arrangements of the Company
for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.1.2 of
the CG Code adopting a model of making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in the written terms of reference which include
regular monitoring of the remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management to ensure that levels of their remuneration and
compensation are appropriate.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Remuneration Committee consists of Dr. Yu Ka Fai Alexis as its
chairman, and Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Look Andrew as its
members, all of whom are INEDs.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting for considering and recommending to the Board the
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the
Directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision A.5.2 of
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
set out in the written terms of reference which include selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship, review of the structure,
size and composition of the Board and assessment of the
independence of INEDs.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Tang as its chairman,
executive Director, and Dr. Yu Ka Fai Alexis and Mr. Look Andrew as
its members, both of whom are INEDs.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and made recommendation to the Board on re-appointment
of Directors using the board diversity policy adopted by the Company
and assessed the independence of INEDs.

36 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

FMEES

EEEREXEATRAZTAMRXEB2MK
RFEMEE S - W LASEATARESERAR
FEREERESHREEENFHTENEFTSRE
EHEOENA - FHZ RSN TIEREHNEER
REE PREHERIREENSREEEN
B - FECRE N R BN A B -

REEBRENMKERBERMEEUREREE (R
BYRBULIFAITES) MK -

RBEHE FMEEERT—REa - UBLA
REAXNTEELSREBENHHEE BT
FHZ R - YAEE SR HERRE

REEES

ESESEREREIRTR Z ST AR EASL 2R
RiRREE®  WAESHEABEDLE - 124
ZEENIZRAFNEERERE  BEE
FZFEAEREANETESTS RIEFSHR
1B RE NSRBI N TEE 2B -

RBERABERAFHREY - BREZBEEHTF
BEBLEEMTES) KKEBREEBEANRE
RELE (GRBIIFNTESR)AEK -

RBERHE REZEQBT-RE% LEH
EZeRE  RRMAEK  ERARRRMANE
FeNBZTEERRAESTNERRNESSIRN
RN HRB L IFTESAELIE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Ka Kit has been appointed as the company secretary of
the Company immediately following the resignation by Dr. Leung
Shiu Ki, Albert on 9 September 2016. Both Mr. Leung and Dr. Leung
fulfill the requirement under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and were
responsible for advisory to the Board on corporate governance
matters during their respective term of appointment of the Reporting
Period. Mr. Leung had taken no less than 15 hours of professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2017.

REMUNERATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the remuneration paid to the
external auditor of the Group in respect of the annual audit for the
year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$1,980,000. In addition, HK$432,500 was charged for non-audit
services for certain subsidiaries of the Group. Save as disclosed
above, there was no remuneration payable to the external auditor of
the Company for other non-audit services during the year ended 31
March 2017.

The Board and the Audit Committee satisfied KPMG, Certified Public
Accountants, of their findings, independence, objectivity and
effectiveness in the annual audit and their audit fees. KPMG, Certified
Public Accountants, are proposed for re-appointment as the
Company’s external auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2017 to give true and fair presentation of the financial position of the
Company in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and for timely financial disclosures under the
Listing Rules and any other regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statements as to the auditor’s responsibility of financial reporting
is set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 79 to 87 of
this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed and being implemented to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Management and the executive Directors would identify any
risks associate with the businesses of the Group by considering both
internal and external factors and events from time to time which
include but not limit to political, economic, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Two approaches are used for risk
identification and evaluation, which are (1) to identify the root causes
of risks, that is, identify the undesirable events or things that could
go wrong and then identify the potential impacts of each factor and
event on the businesses of the Group; and (2) to identify all the
essential functions that the Group are performing or businesses
objectives that the Group are achieving and then identify all the
possible modes by which such functions might fail to perform. Five
strategies are adopted by the Company to manage risk, which are,
(1) to accept the risk, (2) to avoid the risk, (3) to transfer the risk, (4)
to mitigate the risk, or (5) to exploit the risk.

The Company engaged an external professional firm to further its
internal audit function and to conduct an annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company in respect of the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk for the Reporting Period and discussed
its findings with the Audit Committee and then reported to the Board
as at the date of this annual report. The Board is not aware of any
areas of concern that would have a material impact on the financial
position or businesses of the Group and considers that the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company are
generally adequate and effective and that the Company could
maintain the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions during the
Reporting Period.
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The Company has been implementing a policy within the Group,
including its subsidiaries, to ensure that all unpublished inside
information of the Group shall be kept confidential until such
information is published on the websites of the Company and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk under
requirements of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company may deposit at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong set out below a written requisition which specifies the
transaction of any business at such meeting and is signed by the
requisitionists to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
convened by the Board. However, there are no provisions allowing
Shareholders to put forward new resolution at a general meeting
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands or the Articles of
Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
following the aforesaid procedures.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registered office of the Company provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to require an extraordinary general
meeting or propose a person for election as a Director are detailed in
the Memorandum and Articles of Association on the websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at
www.hkexnews.hk.
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The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar serves the
Shareholders with respect to all share registration matters. Specific
enquiries of Shareholders and other stakeholders to the Board could
be sent in writing to the company secretary of the Company by mail
to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong set out
below:

Union Medical Healthcare Limited

Suites 7-9, L21, Langham Place Office Tower,
8 Argyle Street,
Mong Kok, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ rights are further preserved when separate resolutions
are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including not limited to election or re-election of
individual director at annual general meeting. All resolutions proposed
at Shareholders’ meetings are put to vote by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

In February 2016, the Company adopted a shareholders’
communication policy. Under the policy, the Company
communicates with its Shareholders and investors through various
means. Timely publication of interim and annual results
announcements on the latest development of the Company and
press release on the Company’s website and Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited’s website at www.hkexnews.hk could make the
Shareholders appraise the Company’s financial position.
Shareholders are highly required to pay attention to these public
information. Holding of an annual general meeting could provide an
effective forum for the Shareholders to share their views with the
Board, Shareholders are welcome to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Directors and the external auditor of the
Company would be available at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions about the annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association during the Reporting Period.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present their report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are (1) medical services,
comprising aesthetic surgical procedures, minimally invasive
procedures and energy-based procedures performed by Doctors
and general consultation services, as well as dental, Chinese
medicinal and ophthalmological services; (2) quasi-medical services,
comprising energy-based procedures performed by our Trained
Therapists who have completed mandatory internal training
developed by our Doctors; (3) traditional beauty services, comprising
facials, massages and other non-invasive procedures; (4) skincare
and beauty products, primarily of our private- label brands,
PRODERMA LAB and Suissebeaute; (5) health management centre;
and (6) chiropractic and physiotherapy services in Hong Kong.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March
2017 by businesses is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. The geographical location of customers is determined
based on the location where our services are provided. The Group’s
turnover and results from operations are mainly derived from
activities in Hong Kong. Only minimal business activities are covered
outside Hong Kong and being extended to Macau and the PRC. The
principal assets of the Group are also located in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, no geographical segment information is required.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business are set out in the sections
headed “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” on pages 7 to 9 and 10 to 27 of this
annual report respectively. Certain financial key performance
indicators which complement and supplement our financial
disclosures are set out on pages 2 to 3 of this annual report.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties

The following highlights some of the key risks that affect our
business:

Reputation Risk

We rely significantly on the strength of our brand image and
reputation. Any failure to maintain and enhance, or any damage to,
our brand image or reputation could materially and adversely affect
the level of market recognition of, and trust in our services, and in
turn our business, results of operations, financial condition and
prospects.

Talent Risk

If we are unable to attract and retain skilled Registered Practitioners
and other competent staff, our business, results of operations,
financial condition and prospects may be materially and adversely
affected.

Customer Risk

Our service focuses on improving our clients’ physical appearance,
and clients have varying expectations of the magnitude of
improvement that may result from our services. If we fail to properly
manage a client’s expectations of the results from our services, a
client may in turn be dissatisfied with the results of our service, and a
disappointed client may, among others, request refunds, complain to
the media and/or the Hong Kong Consumer Council and file legal
claims against us. Such actions from a client may have a material
adverse effect on our reputation, business, and results of operations,
financial condition and prospects.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental
protection measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of
resources. These policies were supported by our staff and were
implemented effectively.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As a listed company engages business in Hong Kong, the Group is
subject to various laws and regulations, including, among others,
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Listing Rules also apply to the Company.
Being an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability, it is subject to the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Our Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of
the same. In addition, as the Group also engages business in certain
jurisdictions, compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular,
those have significant impact on the Group. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and relevant operation units in the Company and
subsidiaries from time to time.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief on
the date of this annual report, the Company has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Company.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that staff members, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development. We
are committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Staff

Our staff members are regarded as one of the most important assets
of the Group. The Group has been endeavouring to provide our staff
with a fair and harmonious workplace. We offer a competitive
remuneration package and great opportunities for career
advancement based on employees’ performance. The Group intends
to grant share options to outstanding employees to recognise and
reward the employees who have contributed to the Group’s
development. The Group also provides our staff with regular trainings
to keep them abreast of the latest development of the Company and
our industry, and medical related knowledge and skill sets.
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Customers

Professionalism and safety have always been our core values. We
are committed to providing the best customer experience to our
customers. Meanwhile, we have a client phone survey system in
order to further our active solicitation of client feedback.

Suppliers

Reliable and quality suppliers are of equal importance in facilitating
us to provide services with high standards of safety and
professionalism. When selecting suppliers, we consider, among
other factors, the suppliers’ reputation, safety record, track record of
performance, quality of goods supplied, price competitiveness,
punctuality of delivery, relationship with our Group, completeness of
certification and credentials provided, service quality and product
offerings. We regularly review and assess our suppliers’ performance
and their qualifications to ensure the quality of our suppliers and that
such suppliers have obtained the applicable licenses (if any), and
update our approved supplier list accordingly.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 94 of this
annual report.

Operating Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of medical, quasi-
medical, health management and traditional beauty services and sale
of skincare, healthcare and beauty products in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 2 of the
annual report.

The Board recommends the declaration of a final dividend of HK5.0
cents per Share and a special dividend of HK7.9 cents per Share for
the year ended 31 March 2017. The proposed final dividend, if
approved by the Shareholders at the AGM, will be paid on 12
September 2017 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 29 August 2017. Details of
the dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company cares for the community and is willing to take up
corporate social responsibilities to create a more inclusive society.
Not only encouraging the volunteer works and giving, the Company
also recognises our staff as an important asset and concern about
the employees related matters such as benefits and support.

Besides, the Company appreciates the importance of environmental
protection and spares no effort in promoting the protection of the
environment. The Company has been commended and given the
public recognition that demonstrates good corporate citizenship as
“Caring Company” from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

World Green Organisation (“WGO”) — Green Office

Awards Labelling Scheme

The Company has actively promoted the electronical operation and
sales activities recently. Awarded as WGQO'’s “Green Office” Label,
the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals’s “Better World
Company” Label, and the core supporting organisation to Junior
Chamber International (JCl) Hong Kong, the Company has
successfully fulfilled the 150 feasible green criteria from the WGO
which grouped into the following 9 categories: Energy savings, Water
savings, Waste reduction, Paper/Printing reduction, Green
Procurement, IT use and disposal, Transportation, Education and
awareness, and Green Innovation.

Smoke Free Company

A supportive workplace can help smokers kick the habit which
improves the health and efficiency of the employees. As to improving
our staff's sense of belonging to the Company and our team spirit,
equipping our staff with correct information of smoking hazards, and
assisting them in getting rid of nicotine addiction, the Company has
held an internal policy meeting and health talk for the staff, and
rewarded as a “Smoke-free” company.

Actively Involved in Volunteer Work

The Company is committed to fostering and cultivating relationship
with the community and is sensitive to the community’s culture and
needs. We encourage employees to participate in community
services. We invite employees’ families to join the community and
voluntary services together such as the “Lok Sin Tong Charity Walk
2015”, and donation to the “Egive For You Charity Foundation” to
help those in need in the community.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EMEEM

RABIFERLE  LEE 7¥<?‘¢¥ﬁa,§\& * BA

AIEERARONE - ARARTEXBET TIE
KB TTRR E_T_?%EE%E  WREHEB T

HENEE (PR RR) -

AN KA EBZIRERNEZ N - WHIRER
HiRE Tpﬁ%j? RATREEELGRBB SR
TIRARREE] RRLBERARRAA  URBHE
BRRUHGERAREME

RgeA8(HRAEeA8]) — &
eRNERBE

RARBIHEGHEE FEENIHETE - BE
BHRGEHEBN [ZEeRAE] B HaH
AHEEREEN [ BEKELLE ]| EELAD
ﬁ.%SI REFHeMZOZIFRE  ARREND
ERM RS EABET M 150IB R TR BIZE

ZEREDRBIOKIE : BIREER - BAAK R
DEEY) BRSNS ERE - BRI
EAMRE  RBEH  HERBHARKEE
F o

I\\\Em%

ERFEOTERBEAESREEMRBE - A
HERENRELRURE - BUERMETIHALR
AN EBR KL ERERANR S E THEMARREMRE
MIERES - WIHBEREMREES TR - K
AAER/BIHEIT - RAMBREZE MIEFEHE
B MRERR] A [RIE | (b2 o

EmZHEETTE

ARRBAOEHEREREIFAE  LHHLENH
XKk FBERGHEFNEE - HMAXEEESLH
HERE - HFBFEINRBARZ2ELE M
ETIRY - Pl [EEZEEATT2015] XA &
BEBES B UHPHEERENAL -

EERBRERASEERAT 45
FEHE 2017



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FRYWE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
reserves during the Reporting Period are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2017, in the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of
the Company available for distribution to shareholders under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to
HK$150,628,024 (2016: HK$27,894,155).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to HK$3,134,000 (2016: HK$1,035,000).

INDEBTEDNESS

The Group’s indebtedness as at 31 March 2017 is set out in page
26 of this annual report.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME

The Company operates a share options scheme and a share award
scheme for the purposes of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19 February 2016
by passing of a written resolution of the then sole shareholder of the
Company and the Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for 10
years from the Listing Date (both dates inclusive).
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share TRBEENARIRE AR ARR RIS ERETZ
options, which were granted under the Share Options Scheme, R H R EE S
during the Reporting Period:

Closing
price of
share
immediately Exercise
before the price of
Granted Exercised  Expired Cancelled  Lapsed  Forfeited Dateof  dateof  Exercise share
Name or Asat duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  Asat31  grantof grant  periodof  options
category of 1 April  Reporting Reporting  Reporting Reporting  Reporting  Reporting March share  HKS per share  HKS per
participant 2016 Period Period Period Period Period Period 2017 options shares  options shares
R REERH
I i i R R i R ZB-tf REFRR BREN
“E-0F BERE BEMR HERR RENR BENR HENE = BRE  UBE BREN  FE
SEANERAR MA-B  @mRE AEGE RER REE RXY RERE =t-A REBE  SREx GEE  SREn
Directors
%
Lee Gabriel - 7,350,000 - - - - - 7350000  26-09-16 260 010117 303
fo
31-12-26
(Note 1)
555 = 7,350,000 - - - - - 7350000 26-09-16 262 01-01-17 303
pay
+
31-12-26
(BsE1)
Yeung Chin Wan - 80,000 - - - - - 80,000  26-09-16 260 010117 303
fo
31-12-20
(Note 2)
BEY - 80,000 - - - - - 80000 26-09-16 262 01-01-17 308
pay
+
31-12-20
(Fst2)
Employees
In aggregate - 460,000 - - - - - 460000  26-09-16 262 010117 303
fo
31-12-20
(Note 2)
BT
At — 460,000 - - - - — 460,000 26-09-16 260 01-01-17 3.08
pay
£
31-12-20
(Mzk2)
Notes: Mk

1. The total of 7,350,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder 1. & 7,350,000 17 RE RS B B T B A A FT sB 0B —
thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in ten equal (R HER - T2 AREZ THR=ZZ—tF
tranches from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2026. —A—BEZZT "+ A=+—BHRHTE-

2. The total of 540,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof 2. 4 2£540,000 P ERES BB TEREANTRE—()
to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four equal tranches RERMD KR AInARZEZ +HR =T —tF—
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2020. A—BZE=Z_FF+_HA=+—RHHETE
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Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive or reward for
the Grantees (as defined below) for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group.

Eligible Persons

Under the Share Option Scheme, eligible persons include any full-
time or part-time employees, potential employees, executives or
officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
any suppliers, clients, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the
sole opinion of the Board, has contributed or will contribute to the
development, growth or benefit of the Group (collectively, the “Eligible
Participants” or “Grantees”) and whom the Board may in its absolute
discretion select.

Maximum Number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the Listing Date, which is
98,000,000 Shares, being 9.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report. The limit may be
renewed at any time provided that the new limit must not exceed
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of the
Shareholders’ approval.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Share Option
Scheme, the maximum limit on the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of our Company must not in aggregate exceed such
number of Shares as shall represent 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted under any schemes of our
Company or subsidiaries if such grant will result in this 30% limit
being exceeded.
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Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible Participant

Subject to the requirements under the Listing Rules relating to the
grant of share options to the Directors, chief executive or substantial
Shareholders, unless approved by the Shareholders at general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing Rules, the maximum
entitlement of each Eligible Participant is that the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding
options granted and to be granted to such Grantee (including both
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme and other scheme(s) of the Group in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of grant.

Option Period

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme during a period notified or to
be notified by the Board.

Minimum Period for which an Option must be held
before it is Exercised

The period within which an option may be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme is determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
provided that such period is consistent with any other terms and
condition of the Share Option Scheme.

Payment on Acceptance of the Option

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on or before the last day for
acceptance of the option granted under the Share Option Scheme
set out in the offer document from time to time.

Basis of Determining the Subscription Price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Schemes
shall be at the absolute discretion of the Board, provided that it must
be at least the highest of (i) the official closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the offer
day; and (i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the five
Business Days immediately preceding the offer date; and (i) the
nominal value of a Share.
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The Remaining Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years from the
Listing Date and ending on the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date
(both dates inclusive), unless otherwise terminated, cancelled or
amended.

Share Award Scheme

The Company also adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 27 June 2016 with a summary of the Share
Award Scheme rules published in the announcement dated 29 June
2016. On 30 September 2016, the Company entered into a deed of
variation to the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme (the “Deed of
Variation”) to make certain changes to the said trust deed, to the
effect that as from 30 September 2016, all core connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company be excluded from
participating in the Share Award Scheme. Under the Share Award
Scheme, the Group’s employees, selected by the Board are entitled
to participate. During the Reporting Period, a sum of approximately
HK$10,408,194 has been used to acquire 3,960,500 shares from
Union Medical Care Holding Limited by the independent trustee,
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited, which is independent and
not connected with the Company. Union Medical Care Holding
Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is
directly and wholly owned by Mr. Tang Chi Fai, the chairman of the
Board, executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Group.

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognize the
contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of the
Board and the independent trustee in accordance with the Share
Award Scheme rules and the trust deed of the Share Award
Scheme. The Share Award Scheme is valid and effective from the
date of adoption for 10 years or such date of early termination as
determined by the Board, provided that such termination shall not
affect any subsisting right of any eligible persons selected for
participation in the Share Award Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of shares which may be awarded to a selected employee
under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s shares TREBNRE HABARA R IERD EE) T2 5
awarded (“Awarded Shares”) under the Share Award Scheme during BHRR D ([ 8232050 ]) By &
the Reporting Period:

Name or Date of  Vesting Date of Granted Vested Forfeited Lapsed
category of grantof Awarded Shares during the during the during the during the At31
participant Awarded Shares (Note 1) Reporting Period Reporting Period Reporting Period Reporting Period March 2017
RERH
RERG HRAH R&E REE A& RMEE  RZB-tF
SEARERER RiBH (M) HEREL HERERE  BEARRR HERXN  =ZA=t-H
Directors
BE
Lee Gabriel 26-09-16 28-09-16 2,123,000 (2,123,000) - - -
FEF
26-09-16 03-01-17 367,500 - (367,500) - -
26-09-16 02-01-18 367,500 - (367,500) - -
26-09-16 03-01-19 367,500 - (367,500) - -
26-09-16 03-01-20 367,500 - (367,500) - -
Sub-total 3,593,000 (2,123,000) (1,470,000) - -
et
Luk Kun Shing Ben 26-09-16 28-09-16 1,837,500 (1,837,500) - - -
PRI
Yeung Chin Wan 26-09-16 28-09-16 180,000 (180,000) - - -
BEY
Employees
-1
In aggregate 26-09-16 28-09-16 380,500 (380,500) - - -
st
In aggregate 26-09-16 03-01-17 361,492 - (162,500) - 198,992
waEt
In aggregate 26-09-16 02-01-18 331,492 - (162,500) - 168,992
st
In aggregate 26-09-16 02-01-19 296,516 - (137,500) - 169,016
st
In aggregate 26-09-16 02-01-20 216,500 - (137,500) - 79,000
st
Notes: M aE

1. Upon satisfaction of the relevant vesting criteria and conditions, the 1. Fr BB 57 B B R AR A 12 - BB AR ) 1S N AE R
Awarded Shares shall be transferred and released to the grantees on the FEARERRERTEIRA
relevant vesting date.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Chi Fai (Chairman and CEO)
Mr. Lee Gabiriel

Mr. Luk Kun Shing Ben

Mr. Yeung Chin Wan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Ching Nam
Dr. Yu Ka Fai Alexis
Mr. Look Andrew

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lee
Gabriel, Mr. Luk Kun Shing Ben and Mr. Yeung Chin Wan will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors against any liabilities and costs arising from
the business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty in relation
thereto.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages 72 to 78
of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there has been no change in
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. After review by the
Nomination Committee as at the date of this annual report, the
Company considered all of the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 March
2017 is set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the Reporting
Period.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS OR
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the Company’s business was entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save for transactions as disclosed in the sections both headed
“CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the Prospectus
and in this annual report, no Director or his connected entity had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the Reporting Period.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business in
which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or a controlling
shareholder of the Company was a party, and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Reporting Period or at any time during the Reporting
Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, save for the competing businesses as
disclosed below, none of the Directors had any interest in a business
other than the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, and required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Tang was interested in a
number of companies which are not included in the Group (the
“Relevant Company”).
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Name of the

Relevant Company Nature of business Board of Directors Size of business

HEARER E 42k =g EBRE

Healthy Concept (HK) Limited Supply of skincare and Mr. Tang Revenue in 2016: less than

(“Healthy Concept”) (note 1) beauty products/ HK$19 million
Operation of call centre Net loss in 2016: less than
(note 2) HK$5.5 million (note 3)
BR(BEB)BARAR(RER]) HEXEEERERER ML ZERFRA
(GERD) BT (FiiEE2) LR19BEEBTT
ZE-RFEEEE
P66 BEBTT (MES)

Notes Mz -

1. Healthy Concept is a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong 1. BERE—RRZZEZRNFRATABREESE
with limited liability on 26 May 2006, and is wholly-owned by Mr. Tang. PIFEMA I BR AR KA EEZERER -

2. Healthy Concept operates its business in Hong Kong. Its target customers 2. REAEEBEEHEL  AABREREEREDE
in respect of the supply of skincare and beauty products are primarily qu’] EREFPTERBEEANEHREDRBIEME
aesthetic medical or traditional beauty service providers. Separately, it also 7 o SBAh - E NS —EREERF S R AL
operates a call centre which targets individual customers. The personnel of WAL A BB AR B R P I 1S 1 % 0 R T8
the call centre contact individual customers and refer them to the providers SR EAEMIEDRBGIREME - LEREN
of body screening services, beauty products and beauty services, WA o AT - R EIR R M B EER R EHRE
respectively, for referral income. However, Healthy Concept does not AR5 & R ©
provide any aesthetic medical or traditional beauty services, nor body
screening services.

3. The figures are determined by reference to the audited financial statements 3. FFRBESHBAREBE-Z—"F=-A=1—

for the year ended 31 March 2016 of the respective Relevant Company.

AIEFEZEERMBRRERE -
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The Group offers a broad range of services and products, including
medical services, quasi-medical services, health management,
traditional beauty services, skincare, healthcare and beauty products,
primarily of private-label brands, PRODERMA LAB, Suissebeaute
and re:HEALTH. The Group does not focus on mass market retailing
of products and substantially all of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products are sold to the clients of the Group’s services.

The Directors are of the view that business activities are clearly
delineated from that of the Relevant Company, since the Group does
not focus on the supply and distribution of medical consumables,
devices and equipment, or skincare, healthcare and beauty
products. Instead, the Group only focuses on (i) applying medical
consumables, devices and equipment during the course of provision
of service; and (i) selling skincare, healthcare and beauty products to
the clients of the Group’s services. In contrast, the Relevant
Company focuses on the supply and distribution of such goods to
aesthetic medical service providers and traditional beauty service
providers in Hong Kong. Furthermore, the Relevant Company does
not supply and distribute any skincare, healthcare and beauty
products of the Group’s private-label brands, PRODERMA LAB,
Suissebeaute and re:HEALTH.

Based on the above, the Directors are of the view that the
businesses conducted by the Relevant Company do not form part
of, and are not in line with the core business of the Group, and as
such do not compete and are unlikely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business.
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Deed of Non-competition

As disclosed in the Prospectus, pursuant to the non-competition
undertakings set out in the deed of non-competition dated 19
February 2016, each of Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care Holding
Limited (“Union Medical Care”), our Controlling Shareholders, have
undertaken to the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) that, amongst other things, each of them is not or will
not, and will procure each of their respective close associates, to be
interested, involved or engaged in or concerned with, directly or
indirectly, any business which is in any respect in competition with or
similar to or is likely to be in competition with the business of the
Group during the period commencing from the Listing Date and
ending on the occurrence of the earliest of () the day on which its
Shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange or other
recognised stock exchange; (i) the day on which Mr. Tang and/or
Union Medical Care cease to be controlling shareholder of the
Company; and (iii) the day on which Mr. Tang and/or Union Medical
Care beneficially own or are interested in all the issued ordinary
shares of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-competition and are of the view
that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with its undertakings
given under the deed of non-competition for the year ended 31
March 2017. As at 31 March 2017, no new business opportunity has
been notified by the Controlling Shareholders.

Independence from the Controlling Shareholders

The Board believes that the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independent of, and does not place undue reliance on Mr.
Tang and/or Union Medical Care or their respective close associates,
taking into consideration the factors of financial independence,
operational independence and management independence when the
facts and reasons as disclosed in the Prospectus applied to the
Group during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the
“SFO”)), which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or (b) as recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or (c) otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

Interests in Shares and underlying Shares or in an
associated corporation of the Company

EERFEITHASRKRMS - HER
PREZNEZERKXE

RZE—+FZA=ZF+—H EEREETHA
BRARR B E AR EE (FEBEBED
FETMEBFRBERD ([FHRABEEG ]S
XVED) B9t « MR REEZEPEE @IBE
BENAEGROIEXNHETREHIAEME AR
RAIRBRATZEmAE (BREBEZES LD
B0z BRI B ESR BB 2 s ok
BIHIOZRRARRBREFEFLBEKAS
32K B T FENELMAK (C) EMEITAES
ETHEAFR SR ESFAIESITME RN R K
RS AR ¢

R A B EE B R IR0 & AE B IR 4 #Y
s

Approximate
percentage of the
Number of total issued share
underlying Shares capital of the
Name of Director/Chief Name of associated Number of held under equity Company
Executive corporation Capacity Shares interested derivatives (Note 1)
WRALSTE EARDBEBRTRA
EE /TEMHAR FERERZ IEHERE BEMNEIL
] HEEEER L) ROEE REE (BfaE1)
Tang Chi Fai (Note 2) Union Medical Care Interest in a controlled 721,231,230 (1) - 73.53%
(Note 2) corporation
HE5E (o) Union Medical Care WS4 H AR 015
(FizE2)
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Approximate
percentage of the
Number of total issued share
underlying Shares capital of the
Name of Director/Chief Name of associated Number of held under equity Company
Executive corporation Capacity Shares interested derivatives (Note 1)
DRASTE ERARERITRE
EX XETHAE FERHZ IAREHR BEMNAILL
#E HEEEER EL) ROEE RODEE (FitaE1)
Lee Gabriel - Beneficial owner, 2,533,000 (L) 7,350,000 (L) 1.01%
interest of spouse (Note 3) (Note 4)
and interested in
a controlled
corporation (Note 4)
FER - EHEAA 2,533,000() 7,350,000(1) 1.01%
fliBER R X EE XY (Bizx4)
B (M1 4)
Luk Kun Shing Ben - Beneficial owner 2,187,500 (L) - 0.22%
BEBR - ERERA
Yeung Chin Wan - Beneficial owner 180,000 (L) 80,000 (L) 0.03%
(Note )
BRY - EREEA 180,000 (1) 80,000 (L) 0.03%
GEL)
Note: MizE
()  Denotes as long position. L IEEFE -

Total number of issued Shares as at 31 March 2017 was 980,827,000.

Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care are the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company. Union Medical Care is entirely owned by Mr. Tang. The Shares
that Mr. Tang was interested in were held by Union Medical Care.

Out of 2,533,000 Shares, 80,000 Shares were hold by Ms. Fan Yui Sze, the
spouse of Mr. Lee, and Mr. Lee was therefore deemed to be interested in
such 80,000 Shares under Part XV of the SFO; and 350,000 Shares were
hold by Eastcon Investment Limited, which is entirely owned by Mr. Lee,
and Mr. Lee was therefore deemed to be interested in such 350,000
Shares under Part XV of the SFO.

7,350,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one (1) Share, shall be exercisable in ten equal tranches from
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2026.

80,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe
for one (1) Share, shall be exercisable in four equal tranches from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2020.

RZZF—EF=A=+-HMCBETROEEA
980,827,000 /% °

B %% 4 K Union Medical Care AR R BHIE ARG ER -
Union Medical Care RE e =2 &R o BISEAEFTHE
B RE SR B Union Medical Care$54 ©

72,533,000 k%5 & F + 80,000 fxA& 15 ThEZ &
LB Fan Yui Sze w48 - Bt - IREFHFREH
EAEBIEXVED » 250 £ AR AR FERE 80,000 A% AR 15
o B R % N&350,000A% A& 19 i Eastcon
Investment Limited( (A=A EHAE)#HFE - Eitt -
RIEFES REEIEHIEXVEL - AL WE AR R
350,000 A& f& 5 4 #E e 2 o

7,350,000 ERESEETFTEBTEARE — (1)K
BRHBER  AIHERSEZ IR =_2—tF—A
—BE_ZE-RE+=-A=+—HHRTE -

80,000 {7 fE A #E % B FRl T H A5 B ARRRE — (1) B dn

WER T RRAFZEBR —_T—+tF—A—H
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Interest in shares and underlying shares of

A2 B AR B A B Y IR 40 S AE BB IR 4 /Y

associated corporation(s) of the Company =
Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of  the total issued
shares underlying share capital
Name of Name of interested in shares held of the
Director/Chief associated the associated under equity associated
Executive corporation Capacity corporation derivatives corporation
DRASTETR  (AEBZERH
REBZERS FENRE BREITRAEMN
B TETRABRS M EE A B 5% EHENROHE R & E BRBEI
Tang Chi Fai Union Medical Care Beneficial owner 2L - 100%
(Note 1)
HEE Union Medical Care E#HEE A 2L - 100%
(HEE1)
Note: GEX

L denotes long position.

1. The 2 shares in which Mr. Tang was interested in were ordinary shares of
Union Medical Care.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, so far as is known
to any Directors or chief executives of the Company, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER’ S INTERESTS FERRMRKROREBRODAERR
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND RE
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, other than interests disclosed above in respect RZZE—tF=A=+—H BAEARAEFEEE
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company, the following BITBAER EXBEAREZR - AN ATRAK
persons had or were deemed or taken to have interests or short NERDEEERND T EEREE S REEEN
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which EXVEBE2 MID G ABTIRBE ZERIORE
would fall to be disclosed under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of M 8E R AR AR IR 75 55 K B & 161 28 336 15 1R
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register kept by the Company F2EDMAS AR T 5%k A B EBEITIRA
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly, hEE BB AR -

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the

Company

RAEQTRG K AABERDNERS

Approximate
percentage of the
total issued share

capital of the

Number of Company
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares interested (Note 1)
R NEIE
2 BITRAH
BEEERN BB
BREE HE 514 BROHE (PfFE1)
Union Medical Care (Note 2) Beneficial owner 721,231,230 (L) 73.53%
Union Medical Care (F##£2) ExnEAA
Yau Ming Li (Note 3) Interest of spouse 721,231,230 (L) 73.53%
ERRAA (P EE3) [N
AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 50,000,000 (L) 5.10%
RufiEBARAR (MHE4) REHEE R
Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Interest in a controlled corporation 50,000,000 (L) 5.10%
Co., Ltd. (Note 4)
BEF-EEEBERRMHDERAR REHIEE R
(F¥zE4)
Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Beneficial owner 50,000,000 (L) 5.10%

Company Limited (“Sanxing”)

(Note 4)
ZEBR(BEB)BERAR]

(T=2D(Kizx4)

BEHEAA
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e

Approximate
percentage of the
total issued share

capital of the

Number of Company
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares interested (Note 1)
N
2RITRAN
BEEEN BHABEDL
BREE HE 54 R EHE (PfEE1)
Zheng Jianjiang (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 50,000,000 (L) 5.10%
BRERT (MI5E4) RS EERER
He Yiju (Note 5) Interest of spouse 50,000,000 (L) 5.10%
RS (MH3E5) Ao i@ s
Notes: FiaE
()  Denotes as long position. L IEEFE -
(S)  Denotes as short position. S) HE%KE -
1. Total number of issued Shares as at 31 March 2017 was 980,827,000. 1. RZE—tEF=A=1+—HAWNEBTRHEHEA
980,827,000 % °
2. Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care are the Controlling Shareholders of the 2. B %% & K Union Medical Care AR BIRIEARARER -
Company. Union Medical Care is entirely owned by Mr. Tang. Union Medical Care R Bf e £ 2 E A ©
3. Ms. Yau is the spouse of Mr. Tang, and Ms. Yau was therefore deemed to 3. BT REEENES - At RBEEFRBAERK
be interested in the shares of the Company in which Mr. Tang was BIEXVES » BB L EWRBRE S EFEEENRD
interested under Part XV of the SFO. PHEE R o
4. According to the information in the disclosure of interests form of Mr. Zheng 4. BRI E Rl EERAF  BR=F
Jianjiang, AUX Holdings Co., Ltd., Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd EEEABRMNERAGIR-ENESBEERENE
and Sanxing, Mr. Zheng Jianjiang held 70% of the issued share capital of B BT AR ERATEEBRARTONHE
AUX Holdings Co., Ltd., AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. and Mr. Zheng Jianjiang BITRA - BT EEBR AT RBEILES R
held 37.54% and 19.61% respectively of the issued share capital of Ningbo HEERE=-EEEEARMNAEMRAFI7.54%K
Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd, which in turn owned the entire issued 19.61%MEHITRA  MEF=-EBHFRERKXNE
share capital of Sanxing. Mr. Zheng Jianjiang, AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. and BATREE=ZENEHEBITRE - RIEZEH K
Ningbo Sangxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. were therefore deemed to be BIRHIZEXVES  BET 4 « BuiEBAR AR
interested in the shares of the Company which are owned by Sanxing under REF-EBEERROBBRARERAR=ZER
Part XV of the SFO. BRI P S e -
5. Ms. He Yiju is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Jianjiang, and was therefore 5. MERLTABRITRENRS At - BRIEFESH

deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company in which Mr. Zheng
Jianjiang was interested under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the Directors have
not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2017, the Group employed approximately 808 (2016:
716) permanent employees in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

The Group is aware of the importance of human resources and is
dedicated to retaining competent and talented directors and
employees by offering them competitive remuneration packages,
their salaries and bonuses were determined by reference to their
duties, work experience, performance and prevailing market
practices. The Group also participates in the Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF”) scheme in Hong Kong, and provides employees with
medical insurance coverage. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years. The MPF
contributions charged to the income statement represent the
contributions payable to the funds by the Group. A Share Option
Scheme is in place to reward individual employees for their
outstanding performance and contribution to the success of the
Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group undertaken
in the normal course of business are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, save for the those as disclosed
below, none of which is required to be disclosed under Rule 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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FRYWE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Given that Mr. Tang, an executive Director, and Union Medical Care
are the Controlling Shareholders of the Company, Mr. Tang, Union
Medical Care and their associates are “connected persons” of the
Company under Rules 14A.07(1) and (4) of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group has carried out the
following continuing connected transactions (other than the
continuing connected transactions that are fully exempted under

BB ¥ 77 % F B0 5t 4 I Union Medical Care & 7<
NEIERRER - RIE ETRAIZE 14A.07(1) & (4)
& » BP5 A + Union Medical Care N 1 & HI B A
TAERRRR [FEEALT] -

HINBRERMEE  AREC RS HREY
REZBBAETUATHERERS (RIELD
RAIFE14AT601) R T2 R LN BB ERZ HF

Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules) with Mr. Tang’s associates SN o
during the Reporting Period.
Actual
Annual transaction
Caps for amount for
Relationship between the the year ended the year ended
Nature of Group and the connected Nature of 31 March 2017 31 March 2017
Transaction Notes  Parties person transaction (HK$) (HK$)
BZ Bz
—E-tF “E-t%
=A=+-H =A=+-H
LEER LLEER
FELR ERRSEH
RHUE st RBE AEEEBEATHWEE XAMUE () (B7)
Supply of Medical 1,2 Between Union Good Union was 50% owned by  Purchase of 14,873,000 10,999,940
Devices, 3 Medical Ms. Yau Ming Li, medical
Consumables Association the spouse of Mr. Tang, consumables
and Equipment Limited (“UMA") our executive Director,
Framework and Good Union  the Chairman and CEO BEREREMN
Agreement and 50% owned by
entered into on Union Medical Mr. Cheng Yeung, Purchase of 5,361,000 4,259,543
23 July 2015 Association the general manager of medical
Limited medical operations of devices and
RZZ—1F (TUMAJ) & the Group. On 25 November ~ equipment
+A-+=AH glelE 2016, the Group acquired
FIUMBE 50% of Good Union and GUM BEE&EEZE L
B BV R at an aggregate consideration /&
R REIESR of HK$25.2 million in form of
= cash. Upon completion of the
acquisition, Good Union and
GUM ceased to be an
associate of Mr. Tang, and is
not a connected person of the
Company.
EeECHHTES  TRK
TRERE L RS
AR LT RAEERE
FRRERERTEEER
50% © ZE—"ET—A
ZTHA  AKENERETA
W 8l £ fE 2 GUM % 50%
R BRERB2BEHAT
WEEEETH % BleER
GUMABAREFARBEA
TAFERRAEEAT ©
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Notes:

1. On 23 July 2015, UMA entered into the Supply of Medical Devices,
Consumables and Equipment Framework Agreement with Good Union for
a three-year term commencing from 23 July 2015 to 22 July 2018 whereby
the Group has agreed to, from time to time during the term of the
agreement, request to procure certain medical devices, consumables and
equipment (which the Group uses to perform certain of its minimally invasive
procedures and energy-based procedures) from Good Union. Good Union
may invoice the Group for each order on or at any time after delivery, and
the Group has agreed to settle invoices in full within 30 days of receipt. The
parties shall meet in September of each year to review and, where
appropriate, agree on changes to the product prices. The agreed changes
will take effect on 1 January of the following year.

2. As disclosed in the Prospectus, the transactions under the Supply of
Medical Devices, Consumables and Equipment Framework Agreement
were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group
and carried out on normal commercial terms, where each of the applicable
percentage ratios (except for the profits ratio) calculated for the purpose of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules was (i) more than 0.1% on an annual
basis; but (i) less than 5% on an annual basis and the annual consideration
exceeds HK$3,000,000. Therefore, under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules, such transactions were exempted from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

3. On 25 November 2016, the Group acquired 50% of Good Union and GUM
at an aggregate consideration of HK$25.2 million in form of cash. Upon
completion of the acquisition, Good Union and GUM became the jointly
controlled entities of the Company and the financial results, assets and
liabilities of these two companies accounted for as jointly controlled entities
in the financial statements of the Group. As at the date of this annual report,
Good Union and GUM ceased to be an associate of Mr. Tang, and is not a
connected person of the Company. Please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 2 November 2016 and 25 November 2016 for further
details.

Waiver from the Stock Exchange

As the transactions contemplated under the Supply of Medical
Devices, Consumables and Equipment Framework Agreement were
and will continue to be entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group on a continuing basis, the Directors were of
the view that compliance with the announcement requirements
would impose unnecessary administrative costs and undue burden
to the Group and would be impracticable. Under Rule 14A.105 of
the Listing Rules, the Group has applied for, and the Stock Exchange
has granted, a waiver from strict compliance with the announcement
requirements as may otherwise be required of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in connection with the Supply of
Medical Devices, Consumables and Equipment Framework
Agreement and all transactions contemplated under it.
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Annual Review of Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the continuing
connected transactions as set out above. The auditor has issued
their unqualified letter to the Board containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions under Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has provided a copy of the auditor’s letter to the Stock Exchange as
required under Rule 14A.57 of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that for the year ended 31 March 2017, the continuing
connected transactions as set out above have been entered into
during the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, were
on normal or better commercial terms, and were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole,
and that the annual caps for these transactions were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its Shareholders
as a whole.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, there is sufficiency of public float of the Company’s
securities as required under the Listing Rules.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

TAX

We refer to our previous late filing of profits tax returns as disclosed
in the Prospectus under the section headed “BUSINESS — LEGAL
PROCEEDINGS, CLAIMS AND COMPLIANCE — NON-
COMPLIANCE INCIDENTS — INLAND REVENUE ORDINANCE” and
the subsequent announcement dated 9 May 2017, which provided
the update on the Relevant Disclosures. Further details of the
incidents and the Directors’ views are set out in the Management
Discussions and Analysis on page 17 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of
revenue or sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. The
aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, save for the
transactions as disclosed in the section headed “CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in this annual report, none of the
Directors, their respective close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any direct/indirect interest in
these major suppliers or customers during the year ended 31 March
2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The text of the corporate governance report is set out on pages 28
to 40 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is in the process of preparing its environmental, social
and governance report for the year ended 31 March 2017 and will
publish it on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website in due course.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 1 April 2017, United Link Corporation Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a provisional
agreement to purchase a property at Units 613 and 615, 6th Floor,
Tower Two, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong at a total
consideration of HK$60,000,000 and it is expected that such
purchase of property will be completed on 30 June 2017. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 1 April
20T

On 20 April 2017, Union Medical Capital Management Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, through Citibank
N.A. (Hong Kong), subscribed for Class USD 95A2 shares of the
Term Liquidity Fund at a total subscription amount of US$13,000,000.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
20 April 2017.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 have
been audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants, who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of KPMG as the auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Tang Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT

INVESTOR CALENDAR

29 November 2016
—E-RFt+—AZtANAH

28 June 2017

—ZE—EFRAZTNH

22 August 2017

—T—+FA\A=-+=H

16 to 22 August 2017 (Both days inclusive)

ZE—+FNATAREZF+ZA(ERMABEEN)

28 to 29 August 2017 (Both days inclusive)

“E+tFNAZTNRETNA(ERRKRBEEAN)

29 August 2017

“T—+FNAAZ+NR

12 September 2017
—E—+tFhATH

INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

We are highly supportive to investor relations activities. In order to
facilitate a two-way communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community, through platforms
including domestic and international non-deal roadshows, investor
meetings, annual general meeting, company meetings,
teleconferences and emails, we made frequent contact with
Shareholders, analysts, fund managers and potential investors.

LEERBERS

REEH®

2016/17 interim results announcement
RN/ FRHEERE
2016/17 annual results announcement
RN FEEEENS
Annual General Meeting
RERBEFKE
Closure of Register of Members
(for determination of shareholders
who are entitled to attend and
vote at annual general meeting)
Ui BrELTE
(NEERERLERREFAS
THE FREZBRRHH)
Closure of Register of Members
(for determination of shareholders
who qualify for the final dividend and
special dividend and special dividend)
BiEmERMBFELTFE(URTEEER
WERAR BARR B R A R B 2 IRER & 17))
Record Date (for determination of
shareholders who qualify for
the final dividend and special dividend)
FC8E B HA (LARETE & B IWERCR BAR B
BRI B Z R & 17)
Payment of final dividend and special dividend

3 RS R IR S
REEBRED

BASREEBERED O - RIEEART
HERERER CENEREBR  BELB RS
SNBER ZERE  WEERZE  BMERAFAE
NEIEH BHEEBLEBHAFRE - BFE
PRIR - TR B2 EBREBEEREEFREN

X2

X ©
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During the Reporting Period, our management attended over 140 REEEHE - AREEEHFEM 1408 —H—8
one-on-one and group meetings and actively participated in investor B /J\ZH/E\.E% JTFW 2ENE B2 A &m
conferences and non-deal roadshows in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, EEE-FIN £8 BENEIERHIERS
Shanghai, Guangzhou and Beijing meeting with over 250 investors. E Eﬁiﬁ 250 B BEEEE o

Major investor conferences that we participated in 2016/17 are set BFR—ZE— —+tFE2NHTFTEREELS

out below: N
Year Month Event
F4 A# =4
2016 August Yi Mei Bao Dao Innovative Medical Aesthetic Forum
—E-RF J\A BmEIEm
2016 September Guosen Securities (HK) Shanghai Forum and Medical Tourism
—ZE—RF LA Bl{E5E % (B8) L EmiE R BEIRY
2016 December Hong Kong International Entrepreneurs Festival 2016 “Hong Kong +
ZE-RF +=H MediHealth” Forum
HEEBBEIREH —ZF—7X [ 75 + MediHealth | 5518

2017 March Credit Suisse 20th Asian Investment Conference

—+F =H mERE - tEFEEMNRESSR
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SHARE INFORMATION

Company Name
YNSIE ]
Listing

isti]

Stock Code

A& AR 5%

Listing Date

B =Rt

Board lot

BFEEEN

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2017
RZE—+F=A=F+—HHEETRE

INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Union Medical Healthcare Limited — Corporate Communications
and Investor Relations Department

Tel: (852) 3975 4798

Email: ir@umhgp.com

SHAREHOLDERS SERVICE AND ENQUIRIES

For enquiries about your shareholding including change of name or
address, transfer of shares, loss of share certificates or dividend
cheques, registrations and requests for annual or interim report
copies, please contact the Company’s share registrar and transfer
office:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087

Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk

Website: www.computershare.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT
LEERMERS

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
BEAEREREEEERARA
The Main Board of

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBEZSHFABRARER
2138
2138
11 March 2016
—E—R"F=A+—H
1,000 shares
1,000 B Az 17
980,827,000 shares
980,827,000 %

REEBEIR

EEEDEREEERAR — DEEMEEE
HRAERED

TiE ¢ (852) 3975 4798

EH : ir@umhgp.com
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P

BERRELHELBRAR
BREFEFRNER183%
AFIFRN1781712-1716 574

FaE 1 (852) 2862 8555

{EE& : (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087

B H : hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
#94E © www.computershare.com
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEEMkEREERANERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TANG Chi Fai (B8 #8), aged 38, is the Chairman of the Board, the
CEO, our executive Director and chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He is a controlling Shareholder of the Company and he
founded our Group on 23 November 2005. He is responsible for the
overall management and strategic planning and development of our
Group. Mr. Tang is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Tang has more than 15 years of experience in the aesthetic
medical and beauty industries. Prior to joining our Group, from 2001
to 2005, Mr. Tang worked at Lionfaith Limited (¥ Z & R 2 7)), a
company engaged in public relations in Hong Kong, as a sales
director primarily responsible for sales management. In 2004, Mr.
Tang worked as a sales director at Nutriplus (Asia) Limited (k% (g2
M)BBE A A]), a company engaged in direct sales of branded beauty
products in Hong Kong, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easy
Repay Finance & Investment Limited (5 & 8 # 3% & A R 2 7))
(formerly known as B.A.L. Holdings Limited (% & DA% B R A 7))
(Stock Code: 8079), listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange, which was engaged in the business of beauty and
weight management in Hong Kong. During that period, he was
primarily responsible for the initial establishment and business
development of four beauty centres, the development of marketing
strategies and maintenance of sales channels. From 2002 to 2003,
Mr. Tang worked at Sau San Tong (& & &), a company later listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 8200), which provides slimming and beauty products and
services in Hong Kong. He was primarily responsible for sales
management. In addition, Mr. Tang also invests in businesses other
than those providing aesthetic medical and beauty service
businesses, such as leasing of warehouse spaces, insurance
brokerage, medical equipment maintenance and repair, and supply
of cosmetic products, medical devices, consumables and
equipment.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

From September 1998 to May 2001, Mr. Tang attended the
University of Hong Kong where he was enrolled in the bachelor of
medicine and the bachelor of surgery programmes before deciding
to pursue a different career path. From September 2001 to February
2005, Mr. Tang enrolled in the bachelor of business administration in
accounting and finance at the University of Hong Kong and worked
on a part-time basis before deciding to switch to full-time
employment. Mr. Tang obtained Certificate IV in Training and
Assessment from Northern Melbourne Institute of Technical and
Further Education in September 2009 and the executive master of
business administration degree from the University of Hull in January
2014.

LEE Gabriel (Z= & %), aged 38, is the chief operating officer and
our executive Director. He is responsible for the management of day-
to-day operations for our Group.

Mr. Lee has over 15 years of experience in business management.
Prior to joining our Group in April 2014, from July 2001 to April 2014,
Mr. Lee worked at Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (BIZ=fiZ= B R A
A]) (“Cathay Pacific”), an international airline listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 293). He joined Cathay Pacific
as a management trainee from July 2001 to June 2004 and
subsequently served in various managerial positions, including more
recently, as manager of cargo hub operations from January 2014 to
April 2014 to manage the cargo operations of the airline in the Hong
Kong International Airport, manager of planning and performance for
the Hong Kong International Airport from August 2011 to December
2013 to oversee airport operations of the airline at the Hong Kong
International Airport and manager of cargo operations of the airline
from July 2009 to March 2010 to supervise cargo staff in 14 Chinese
cities and to develop the cargo business in the PRC. During his
employment with Cathay Pacific, Mr. Lee was seconded to Air China
Cargo Company Limited (BB &&= AR A7) in Beijing, a
state-owned airline enterprise in the PRC, from March 2011 to July
2011 where he served as the assistant president of its commercial
(sales and marketing) division. From July 2007 to July 2009, he was
seconded to Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Ltd. in Shanghai, the PRC,
where he served as a manager of marketing & sales in Eastern
China.
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EENSREEANBBE

Mr. Lee graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
of business administration degree in accounting and finance in July
2001. In March 2007, Mr. Lee attended the SWIRE Management
Programme organised by INSEAD Graduate Business School in
Singapore. Mr. Lee also attended the SWIRE Accounting and
Control Programme and SWIRE Advanced Management Programme
organised by INSEAD Graduate Business School in Fontainebleau,
France from October to November 2010 and from May to June
2013, respectively.

LUK Kun Shing Ben (£ # &), aged 38, is the chief information
officer and our executive Director. He is responsible for overseeing
information technology infrastructure of our Group.

Mr. Luk has more than 6 years of experience in the aesthetic medical
industry, and over 13 years of experience in the information
technology industry. Prior to joining our Group in March 2010, from
January 2011 to February 2014, Mr. Luk served as a software
engineer at Google (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of Google Inc.,
specialising in internet-related services and products. From
December 2003 to December 2010, he was a software engineer at
Google Inc., in Mountain View, California, the United States and
involved in the implementation of Google Maps. Mr. Luk graduated
from Cornell University with a bachelor of science degree in
computer science in August 2000 and Stanford University with a
master of science degree in computer science in June 2003.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

YEUNG Chin Wan (45 /& ), aged 37, is the chief financial officer
and our executive Director. He is responsible for the financial
reporting and management of our Group.

Mr. Yeung has over 15 years of experience in financial reporting and
investment management and services. Prior to joining our Group in
July 2014, from April 2010 to June 2014, Mr. Yeung served as a
director of We & V Accounting Services and Consultancy Limited (4
Best MEM AR Q) aboutique accounting and consultancy
company in Hong Kong, where he was responsible for providing
advisory services on tax and corporate matters. From November
2004 to March 2010, he held a number of positions in AXA Wealth
Management (HK) Limited (Z &% M =2 € 2(F B ) BR A7) a
company engaged in wealth management and provision of
consulting services in Hong Kong and a subsidiary of AXA Group,
which is a multinational insurance and asset management group, to
provide solutions for clients’ portfolios. From September 2001 to
October 2004, Mr. Yeung worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd.
(8 & § 7k 8 B R A 7)) in Hong Kong, where he began as an
associate and later became a senior associate in the financial
services group, responsible for audit engagement in the investment
banking and asset management industries.

In addition, since 2014, Mr. Yeung has been the chief executive
officer of World Trade Capital Group Limited (t 24 @& AEEAH
R ‘~ 7)), an insurance brokerage firm providing the Group with
quotations of employees’ insurance and other types of insurance
from independent insurance companies. He is primarily responsible
for liaising with insurance companies for quotations and monitoring
compliance of the brokerage firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung
graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor of
arts in accountancy in November 2001. He has been a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since August
2003 and a Chartered Wealth Manager of the International Academy
of Financial Management since January 2010.
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EENSREEANBBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MA Ching Nam (55/548), aged 64, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Ma is also a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Ma has been practising law for over 35 years. He was admitted as a
solicitor in England and Wales, Hong Kong, Australia and Singapore. He
currently serves as senior partner of Hastings & Co, Solicitors &
Notaries, a law firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Ma is also a Notary Public, China
Appointed Attesting Officer and Civil Celebrant. He was the president of
the Hong Kong Society of Notaries from 2007 to 2013.

Mr. Ma currently serves as directors of Tai Sang Bank Limited,
Heptacontinental group of companies, Ma Kam Ming Company
Limited and Ma’s Enterprises Company Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Time Watch Investments
Limited which was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 2033). Mr. Ma has also been a director and Vice
Chairman of Po Leung Kuk since 2009 and 2014 respectively.

Mr. Ma is also a member of the Hospital Governing Committee of
Grantham Hospital in Hong Kong, a member of the Standing
Committee on Language Education and Research (SCOLAR) in
Hong Kong, and a council member of Hong Kong St. John
Ambulance. He has been appointed as a member of Political and
Consultative Conference in Hunan Province, PRC. He was also the
past Chairman of St. Paul’s Co-educational College Alumni
Association. Mr. Ma graduated from the University of Hull with a
bachelor of science degree in economics with honours in 1970’s.
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YU Ka Fai Alexis (;RE18), aged 55, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2016. Dr. Yu is also a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee, as well as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Dr. Yu has over 31 years of experience in medicine as a doctor, and
23 years of experience in ophthalmology. Prior to joining our Group,
he has been the director of Eye Point Company Limited, Hong Kong
Eye Surgery Centre and Hong Kong Eye Consultants Limited since
June 2011, June 2006 and January 2001 respectively. From March
2001 to January 2008, he served as an eye consultant at Hong Kong
Adventist Hospital Eye Centre, where he was primarily responsible
for treating patients with eye diseases. Dr. Yu was employed by the
Hospital Authority of Hong Kong from July 1986 to July 2001, during
which he was primarily responsible for treating patients with eye
diseases. In particular, he served as a senior medical officer of Tung
Wah Hospital in Hong Kong from November 1994 to July 2001, as a
senior medical officer of Caritas Medical Centre in Hong Kong from
January 1994 to November 1994, as a senior medical officer of
Hong Kong Eye Hospital from January 1993 to December 1993, as
a medical officer, and subsequently a senior medical officer, of the
Hong Kong Government from July 1986 to December 1992.

Dr. Yu graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
of medicine and a bachelor of surgery in November 1985. He
obtained a diploma in ophthalmology from the Royal College of
Physicians of Ireland and the Royal College of Surgeons in Ireland in
September 1990. He then obtained fellowships from the Royal
College of Surgeons of Edinburgh, Scotland, the College of
Ophthalmologists, the United Kingdom, the College of Surgeons of
Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and the College
of Ophthalmologists of Hong Kong in November 1990, December
1990, March 1993, December 1993, and March 1996, respectively.

LOOK Andrew (Bx ), aged 53, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Look is also a
member of each of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, as well as the chairman of the Audit
Committee.
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Professional History

Andrew Look is now Chief Investment Officer of China Hong Kong
Link Asset Management Limited and he is also Independent Non-
executive Director of five Hong Kong listed companies.

He is also the founder of Look’s Asset Management Limited; a Hong
Kong based asset management company licensed by the SFC.
Andrew was the Head of Hong Kong Research, strategy and product
of UBS until August 2008. He joined UBS in June 2000 after
spending 15 years in the banking, property development and fund
management industries.

Prior to joining UBS, Andrew was the Regional Director of PPM
Worldwide, the fund management arm of the Prudential Corporation
of the United Kingdom, where he managed pension and life
insurance funds investing in Asia ex-Japan markets.

Andrew was rated best Hong Kong strategist and best analyst by
Asiamoney in 2001, 2002, 2003, 2005, 2006, 2007. UBS Hong
Kong Research Team was rated best Hong Kong Research by
Institutional Investors in 2002, 20083, 2004 and 2005.

Andrew has over 30 years experience in the equity investment
analysis of Hong Kong/China stocks on both buy and sell side,
based in Hong Kong. He is one of Hong Kong’s most experienced
sell side analysts.

Andrew also published two books (2009 and 2011) in Hong Kong
and were both best selling non-fiction of the respective years.

Education

Andrew holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
Toronto.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KkPMG!

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Union Medical Healthcare Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Union
Medical Healthcare Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 88 to 195, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
the Cayman lIslands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AR Y Gk

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition: Provision of services

BREENEE

MRENSASRERMNERAE - RREAN
G AR BREANBARREENER - BLF
HRARMEFBEBSAMBREAMDARERR
ETREN - RATSHELETREHEFNE
B

WA - RERE

Refer to notes 5 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BREFSE

BRHEGEAUERERM ES 24 A MM S/
K -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RSB MAEEZEE

Revenue mainly comprises income from the provision of medical,
quasi-medical and traditional beauty services.
WAFZEERHER  EBRERNEGESRBOLA -

Revenue is recognised when the related treatments are provided to
customers.

WAREREFERER T EPRER -

All of the Group’s services are sold on a prepaid basis. Payments
received for prepaid packages are initially recorded as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
time of receipt. The service period for a prepaid package is
generally one year.

BERERMERBIGHRBEMNEELE - BRHBENERFIERK
RN EREE M BRRARARIERLTEHA - BRNERHREH
—MRE—F -

Prepaid packages are non-refundable and customers may not
utilise all of their contracted rights within the service period. Such
unutilised treatments are referred to as “breakage”. An expected
amount of breakage is estimated by management based on
historical experience and is recognised as revenue in proportion to
the pattern of treatments provided to customers.
BNERTAREREFEREPAAIE N ERAE S L%
M o HERARGE B RRIZARRIE [ REROERN ] - FAERE B A
MeFEREREERBBELSRMGS R IREF AT AREEREN
BB PIER AN -

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the contractual service
period is fully recognised in profit or loss.

RE KRR EMFIRET R ATIER AT HRHER
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue from the provision of services during the
year included the following:
BAWEARF T EFARBBRAER - 81
WATNEIR -

° assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s
key internal controls over revenue
recognition;

o IABREEHRARRLNEZENIBIEH L
BET - B R EE FRIRRL

° inspecting, on a sample basis, sales
contracts and evaluating management’s
accounting treatment for the recognition of
revenue with reference to the terms set out
in the sales contracts and the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;

o ZEHESNMHEHMERRBITEER
MART  MEEREESORTEERRE
HIRARRH SRR

° inspecting, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from customers during the year and
comparing such receipts with relevant details
in sales contracts entered into during the
year;

e MMEEBRFARBFZPLPHRSKF - L
ZEWKEF RN ZHNHE SN BERBF
TBEVELLE

° comparing, on a sample basis, customers’
signed acceptance of treatments provided
with the customers’ utilisation records;

e TRLBEPYHMBEHEIENSETEME
B AR
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The Key Audit Matter
BREGSEE

B Az BIRD R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BHWESTNATEEZEE

We identified recognition of revenue from the provision of services
as a key audit matter because (1) revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and therefore there is an
inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition of revenue
by management to meet specific targets; and (2) the estimation of
the utilisation pattern of treatments is inherently subjective and
requires significant judgement and estimation which increase the
risk of error or potential management bias.

HPISRBSMAERTE RBARETEE - DENKAZE E5E
BRARPERE, — B —EEERREEEERERAERL
REAESIFERERN  RQBEREARANMETAE EAFET
NFEETERAE LA SN THRIEEERERRH
[2Bgz o

recalculating, on a sample basis, the revenue
recognised for treatments provided during
the year with reference to the terms as set
out in the sales contracts;
DEHEQNMEANGT  MEREEHFA
PR A2 O RERR LA

analysing the Group’s historical data for
utilisation of prepaid packages and the
current year’s revenue recognised for
treatments provided to determine an
expectation of the breakage amount for the
current year; comparing our expectation with
the actual figures recorded by the Group
and investigating unusual items or trends
and assessing whether or not there was an
indication of management bias;
RENERERBREAFERREERR
WERBAST BESEBERE N
BEEARFEAREANENSHENTERER
BEMNERE LR BEREDENER
HFELER  WHAEERFEE ABD KT
HERAEEERANIR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether
residual deferred revenue had been
recognised in profit or loss at the end of the
contractual service period; and

R TR IE WA = B R E KBRS HA
RKRBRAER &

inspecting underlying documentation for
journal entries relating to revenue and
deferred revenue which were considered to
be material or met other specified risk-based
criteria.
ERWARBREWATHEEEERKFTE
Lt 7 5 R B 1R 1 B9 A BRAC SR AV AR RE ST o
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Accounting for acquisitions

WIRSE RN E T EE

Refer to notes 16 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

BHLEGAPERERMNF 16 30 LA KM #£3.18)
e o

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RN EST A EEZEE

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group completed
several acquisitions for an aggregate consideration of HK$65
million. Further details are set out in notes 16 and 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BHE_TtF-A=1t—"HULFER EEBETKHENEGS
BEBTHNETHESRER EZHBARNGEVBRRME16 &

30

Goodwill arising from these acquisitions amounted to HK$34
million, which represented the excess of the consideration paid
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets
of the acquired entities.
AZEWBFEFROEEEMEEB T DEEHRER
t EEEMECEERBASNEEFENATENED -

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in
these transactions were assessed by the directors based on
independent valuations prepared by a firm of external valuers which
required the exercise of significant judgement and estimation,
particularly in relation to the forecast of future performance of the
entities acquired.
ZERXSHPEBAIAMNEERAEN AT EBESFRBINEGE
EITAR BB (HEEITATE - EF B EITERAE RMEE - L
HEFWEBERBNARRKERANE -

We identified the accounting for acquisitions as a key audit matter
because of the significant impact the acquisitions have on the
consolidated financial statements and because assessing the fair
values of the assets and liabilities acquired can be inherently
subjective and requires significant judgement and estimation which
increase the risk of error or potential management bias.

B KEEEN ST REEA - HARSETFE  DEAKES
BRI BRANEATERESEBEERBBER T ENRT
HEAE FEFBMRFEETERAM RMET - ESEINT HRK
BEEEERRAER
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Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for
acquisitions included the following:

B EARFETHRBRENSHRE - &
AN ERIR

° inspecting the sale and purchase
agreements and evaluating management’s
accounting treatment for the acquisitions
with reference to the terms set out in the
sale and purchase agreements and the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

s TRHREEWZ W2ZEEHIMEAK
AERTEFEANRETHEREH K
BEENSTERE

° obtaining and inspecting the valuation
assessments prepared by the external
valuers engaged by the directors and on
which the directors’ assessment of the fair
values of the assets and liabilities acquired
was based and assessing whether or not
there was indication of management bias;

e HMISUEHRAETZMEINE(HERRRD
EBEE EFERZHEENG HE
EREERABNATE  TIHRE
BEERRTR

° assessing the external valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise in the assets being
valued and considering their objectivity and
independence;

o FHHIMNEMERAER - KB REAFM
BENANH WEEEZFHUERE L
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Bz RS
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREGSEE RAPNESTNAEEZEER

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, discussing with the external
valuers, without the presence of
management, the valuation methodologies
adopted in assessing the fair values of the
assets and liabilities acquired, including
intangible assets, and challenging the
assumptions and critical judgements which
impacted their valuation by comparing these
assumptions and critical judgements with
market data, our past experience of similar
transactions and the Group’s business plan
supporting the acquisitions;
EHRMOANBEEEROHE T - EIMNE
mEMNR(EERETESNERT)E
EREE(BREEVEE) RABQAFET
A EMEANEEST S BAKTEH
B8 R AR N B K ) B BR 77 35 B8R - AP
EREUR S TENBRTLERE E5E2
RWIERTRN EBTEETHL - BRZ
e E Y ED N

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, assessing the valuation
methodologies adopted by the external
valuers with reference to industry standards
and the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
EHRMOANBEEEROHE T - 2F17
FRERBITGT LB T - FTEIMNE
BRI R ETTE

evaluating management’s assessment of the
estimated useful life of a trademark with
reference to future operating plans and our
knowledge of the beauty industry; and
BERRKETERBBERMBEEDITE
TR FHERERMAEMGATRE
FREVETE © &

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
acquisitions with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AR Y Gk

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

86

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law of regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Sau Ling.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

S A B L =
ANy = ,E\J/Iﬁ_

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B Z=—Z—+F=-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 7T51R)

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Notes HK$ HK$
B sE BT BT
REVENUE LN 5 964,927,119 704,937,348
Other net income and gains H b zs R A EEE 6 27,484,976 3,671,483
Cost of inventories GFERAR (130,478,323) (70,687,271)
Registered practitioner expenses FEERS (77,483,595) (62,774,291)
Employee benefit expenses EERBNAX (277,865,036)  (192,360,798)
Marketing and advertising expenses THEHEERENMESRAS (68,460,929) (38,018,257)
Rental and related expenses e RBERAX (88,818,003) (62,165,511)
Credit card expenses ERRHRAX (29,723,676) (22,995,785)
Depreciation e (27,465,740) (24,068,889)
Finance costs B TSR AR 7 (338,449) (411,762)
Listing expenses EHAX - (34,185,568)
Other expenses HARZ (47,138,253) (26,532,909)
Share of loss of joint venture DMEEETEEE (31,909) -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FREE AT F 8 244,608,182 184,407,790
Income tax 1S 11 (41,111,965)  (35,099,392)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 203,496,217 149,308,398
Attributable to: AT S IR -
Equity shareholders of the Company RARHERILE 200,702,539 148,663,969
Non-controlling interests IEPER = 2,793,678 644,429
203,496,217 149,308,398
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER 12
Basic HR 0.21 0.20
Diluted e 0.21 0.20

F88E 5 195 B MM s A It S B TS TR R A9 — 2B
7o AR R TR ER 2 I B EEFE AN
2 FFIBERHIFE27(0) ©

The notes on pages 88 to 195 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year
are set out in note 27(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 2 [ W e 3R

,_\_,/\ |:|\/
AR A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Ek:l:— =

—tEEFE=ZA=t-HLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51R)

2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 203,496,217 149,308,398
Other comprehensive income FAREMEEREE
for the year (after tax and (FRR T IE K
reclassification adjustments) EDLEARE)
ltem that may be reclassified EgnsaoEs
subsequently to profit or loss: BEMIER
Exchange differences on translation of & & IE N B A A
financial statements of subsidiaries BT TS TRk MO IE =58
outside Hong Kong, net of HK$NIil tax BB TIHIE 27,716 11,633
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4y 2 [ I 35 438
FOR THE YEAR 203,523,933 149,320,031
Attributable to: AT & IEFE(L -
Equity shareholders of the Company PNV gl 3 200,730,255 148,675,602
Non-controlling interests eI 2,793,678 644,429
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FR2HE KA
FOR THE YEAR 203,523,933 149,320,031
The notes on pages 88 to 195 form part of these financial B 88EF 195 B A It E I Bz A — 3B
statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR

At 31 March 2017 R=ZZE—+tF=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 7T51R)

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$ HK$
B sE BT BIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MK 13 70,178,513 59,155,532
Goodwill GEE 14 36,657,111 3,421,318
Intangible assets BmEAE 15 35,906,450 1,311,093
Interest in joint venture RELRENER 16 25,122,091 -
Rental and other deposits HERHEMZS 19 23,589,387 22,017,893
Prepayments TEf IR 19 7,884,968 -
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBE = 25(b) 1,461,626 637,917
Total non-current assets FERBEELEAE 200,800,146 86,543,753
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 17 19,116,280 17,883,209
Trade receivables B 5 W EIR 18 52,142,746 32,484,344
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFRIE ~ 1Re REAMEIGIE

receivables 19 60,729,829 42,344,444
Deferred cost PRIEF AR 5 5,361,965 -
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFABZNEREE

profit or loss 20 499,745,689 103,516,892
Current tax recoverable AT B BN HR R B 25(a) = 16,072,807
Pledged time deposits B EHTR 21 2,000,000 2,000,000
Time deposits with original maturity over R %23 B #8:8 3 8 A 89 F B17 3%

3 months 21 158,712,370 500,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents B RIRESEY 21 200,644,165 354,717,582
Total current assets mEEEMAE 998,453,044 1,069,019,278
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables Z S ENKIE 22 6,468,211 5,214,323
Other payables and accruals E b e AN ESE R 23 54,927,417 96,694,780
Obligations under finance lease BhE A EEE 26 342,714 -
Deferred revenue EIEUTA 24 327,894,405 312,891,746
Current tax payable FEAT BN ERRR 18 25(a) 11,428,555 6,235,989
Total current liabilities mEN B BB 401,061,302 421,036,838
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 597,391,742 647,982,440
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERRBER

LIABILITIES 798,191,888 734,526,193
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
iR e IR

At 31 March 2017 R —Z—+F=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& TR )

2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
Notes HK$ HK$
k3 & ITT ABTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIAEE 25(b) 3,107,841 139,109
Obligations under finance lease A THEAE 26 581,724 -
Provision for reinstatement costs FEERAEE 23 4,650,000 3,110,000
Total non-current liabilities FERBEEETE 8,339,565 3,249,109
NET ASSETS EETH 789,852,323 731,277,084
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital &N 27(c) 9,808 9,800
Reserves i 778,450,348 731,360,424
Total equity attributable to equity AARERRRELERERE
shareholders of the Company 778,460,156 731,370,224
Non-controlling interests IR RER 11,392,167 (93,140)
TOTAL EQUITY R 789,852,323 731,277,084

R-ZE—tFARA-TN\BEESFSHERKE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

June 2017 Tz
Lee Gabriel Yeung Chin Wan
ZER BREY
Director Director
£ £

The notes on pages 88 to 195 form part of these financial 588 = 5 195 H HMTSHERK I Z B 7R 35 ) — 25
statements. 2 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\\/ \

== N\ 7
1{ / ~ lnl:l/n @J i%

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #%E —
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& 7'E§//T )

—tEF=ZA=tRALFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAARE AR
Share heldfor  Employee
share award  share-based
Share scheme compensation Merger  Exchange Non-
Share  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital  (note 27(d)(i) (note 27(d)(v) (note 27(d)(vi)) (note 27(d)il) (note 27(d)i) profits Total interests equity
AROKE SRAZAN
HERE  EEMe
RitEE  HEZER fif  RORE  ENGE
Bx (KEodn) (KaEdw) (Eadv) (8326 KEadi) — REE 4 FERER  RR4Y
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
s B A B v B BT BT B B B
A1 Aprl 2015 REE-1ERA-A - - - - 19,608 - 36M82 3691430 (737569 2,953,861
Changes i equiy for 2016; “I-ENEREY:
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - 148663969 148,663,969 644,429 149,308,398
Other comprehensive income Efp2EkE - - - - - 11,633 - 11,633 - 11,633
Total comprehiensive income for the year ~ EAZ EAWHLE - - - - - 11633 148663969 148,675,602 644429 149,320,031
Issuance of new shares before el ERDREENRITRR
public offering 27 11,000 - - - - - - 11,000 - 11,000
Repurchass of shares hefore infal BNy BERG
public offering 27(c)fi (3,650) - - - - - - (3,650) - (3,650)
Dividends declared EERRE 211b) = = S S S - (124,441,636)  (124,441,636) - (124,441,63)
Share issued under inffel publc ofiering,  ERARZXEATREARG -
et of share issuance expenses MERAEARR 200 2450 703,435,028 - - - - - 703437478 - 703437478
At 31 March 2016 RZE-REZA=1-F 9,800 703,435,028 - - 19,608 11,633 27,894,155 731,370,224 (93,140) 731,277,084
At 1 Aprl 2016 RZE-~ERA-A 9,800 703,435,028 - - 19,608 11,633 27,894,155 731,370,224 (93,140) 731,277,084
Effect on adoption of HKFRS15 ROBETBREENZ 158
%4 = = - - - - 1153073 11,538,073 - 11,538,078
Restated balance at 1 April 2016 ﬁA:* ~NEMA-RETIEH 9,800 703,435,028 - - 19,608 11,633 30,432,228 742,908,297 (93,140) 742,815,157
Changes i equiy for 2017; ZE-tEMERRY:
Proft for the year Egh = = - - - - 200702539 200702539 2793678 203,496,217
Other comprehensive income LT e - - - - - 2,116 - 2,16 - 2716
Total comprefensve income for he year ~ £AZ A H 8% - - - - - 2716 200702539 200730255 2,793,678 203,523,933
Issuance of shares B1kh 276 8 22502361 - - - - - 2250369 - 2250369
Acquistion of subsiciaries WERBAR - - - - = = - 8601620 8,691,629
Purchase of shares for share award scheme 51517 2831 26 B iy 28 - - (92,162,744) - - - - (92,162,744) - (92,162,744)
Recognition of equity-setted share-based ~ BEDMVEREE MR BER
compensation: share award and Mie : R AR ERE
share option 28,29 - - - 14,859,281 - - - 14,859,281 - 14,859,281
Vesting of sheres under shere award scheme 5 (2853 B2 1A 8 - - 11464621 (12083,180) - - 61855 - - -
Dividends declared REES 21(b) - - - - - - (90,125,302  (90,125,302) - (90,125,302)
At 31 March 2017 RZF-tE=ZA=1-R 9808 705,685,389  (80,698,128) 2,776,101 19,608 30349 150626024 778460156 11,392,167 789,852,323

The notes on pages 88 to 195 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
MARRETNER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B E —Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TR )

2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Notes
B 5T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEEE
Profit before tax R 75 BT V58 ) 244,608,182 184,407,790
Adjustments for: FHEE
Interest on bank borrowings and RITERRELFIE
overdraft 7 - 544
Finance charges on obligations under MEHEAEZBERY
finance lease 7 1,165 -
Imputed interest expense/(income) on JEANEE SR & NEER B
non-current rental deposits, net s, (A F58 6,7 8,483 (166,194)
Bank interest income IRITFIBUA 6 (2,820,796) (305,454)
Interest income from listed debt EHEREERFREN
investments and certificate of F B YA
deposits 6 (1,701,330) (1,014,988)
Write back on provision for settlement B IEE A E S
of tax audit 6 (11,379,562) -
Depreciation e 8 27,465,740 24,068,889
Impairment of goodwill EERE 8 282,940 -
Amortisation of intangible assets E%SF%% 8 1,708,016 572,520
Share of loss of joint venture TMEEE P EEIE 31,909 -
Equity-settled share-based payment ME@E”Mkﬁﬁﬁ%Z
expense INEFa 8 14,859,281 -
Loss on disposals and write-off of HE M E - BB MEE
property, plant and equipment 1 E 18 8 1,404,863 1,032,361
Unrealised fair value gains on financial H?’Aifﬁ ng)\TEﬁT&E’\](ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%
assets at fair value through profit RAREIR N T BB F5E
or loss, net 6 (183,225) -
Realised (gains)/losses on disposals of ~ H E%E’Dxiﬁ FrABZEA S #
financial assets at fair BEEMNEER (WA, BE
value through profit or loss, net e 6 (1,095,488) 1,209,090
Foreign exchange differences HINE Z= RE 450,193 (117,962)
273,640,371 209,686,596
Increase in inventories FEEMm (826,047) (4,212,048)
Increase in trade receivables = % JE U R IE IS AN (18,469,235) (10,360,563)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and ~ FE{EXIE ~ % b E A FEUL
other receivables RIFIE N (12,220,789) (8,606,372)
Increase in deferred cost PERERK AE D (1,826,034) -
Increase in trade payables B 5 FEA RS hN 1,138,839 1,284,525
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and E b f& < 7418 K FEET & B
accruals CriA) /180 (37,265,669) 10,613,868
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue  IEIEY AL A0 (R 4) 9,012,855 (34,576,130)
Cash generated from operations g F%E’jiﬁé 213,184,291 163,829,876
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid Eﬁ% RS (32,651,028) (87,256,891)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong BNBEBRINRIE (552,753) (376,773)
Net cash generated from R EENPTSIR & R 5
operating activities 179,980,510 76,196,212
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AN
I /j—\ EE i //||.: = %
For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZE —-Z

—tHF=ZA=t—RALFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T3 )

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF NS
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Notes
BaE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Bank interest received BUERITH S 2,820,796 129,020
Purchases of financial assets designated % B 1575 A% A FEET A B2

as financial assets at fair value TREE

through profit or loss (798,943,678) (153,585,666)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEEEE (19,164,000) (354,000)
Proceeds from disposals of financial HEETEAEATETABTZD

assets/liabilities at fair value through SRYBE BEERE

profit or loss 403,993,594 76,779,477
Interest income from listed debt LFIEBRERIFHRENFE

investments and certificate of deposits U A 1,701,330 1,014,988
Acquisition of businesses, net W B S 7% HR 30 (28,493,626) (719,979)
Acquisition of joint venture WiEE & (25,154,000) -
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits JREHA B 8 38 = (& H &9 7€ Bf

with original maturity over 3 months TR (3%h0) 341,287,630 (500,000,000)
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE BEARE

equipment (31,260,174) (28,207,605)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFARE F5 (153,212,128)  (604,943,765)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest paid BFB = (544)
Finance charges on obligation BEREAE 2 BMEMT

under finance lease (1,165) -
Payment for share issuance expenses IR 1D EFTRIS = (25,249,437)
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 7 & /X A B 3 & BT IR HY

before initial public offering FriS 5008 = 11,000
Payment for repurchase of shares iEEE ) El’jﬁ,%}( - (3,650)
Dividend paid AT AR B (90,125,302) (60,000,000)
Proceeds from shares issued under BRIEBRAREE TR

initial public offering FTiS k18 = 742,350,000
Capital element of finance lease RMERE Y EAHH (13,258) -
Issuance of shares BTG, 2,250,369 -
Change in balance with the Controlling B2 f& i% B3 #Y 45 64

Shareholder - 96,548,660
Payment for purchase of shares for ARSI ZENETEIBEE R D 2

share award scheme INE: (92,162,744) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (A FrsReng

financing activities SR EE (180,052,100) 753,656,029
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERRSEEYORD)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B HNFER (153,283,718) 224,908,476
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 APRIL /1A —HIRE RIRESEEY 354,717,582 129,884,745
Effect of changes in foreign SNGE [ 2= BB ) o B

exchange rates (789,699) (75,639)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ZA=+—HHRELK

AT 31 MARCH HEZEY 21 200,644,165 354,717,582

The notes on pages 88 to 195 form part of these financial

statements.
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2.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office of
the Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Suites
7-9, L21 Langham Place Office Tower, 8 Argyle Street, Mong
Kok, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) is principally engaged in the provision of medical,
quasi-medical, health management and traditional beauty
services, the sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty products,
and investment holding.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the group. Note 2.3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

2.1

BT IS R MY ot

NEEHR

ARRRERERSHMKINEREE
REMFAE - ARAIWNEWMPHFEEMLR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands © R Q A8 F B & E B N BB
AR B ZH8 AT A KRIE21E7-9
RAGRIEEZERAG « NAa RHK B
RAGBRIAER D EERFIRHEERE -
EBRE RREERENEZEARE  HE
EERERERER  URIEEER -

BREH

ZEMBHRERDRBAAERNEBHMG
SEA((FEVHREEADHER - &
BUBHRELEeEaREEEtMag (&
BEEAE)BHOMAEREREE
MBEHRESEL  FEGHEN(EFESR
EH D ERE BEARGHFRAINLE
BRRHERD Z WERTE - ZEMBERERI
NEEEBMARSMARARESZ LR
AI(TEMRRAN) 2 BRI FE RS -

BEEMASCEME TRARELRSE
A B RAER KA IR R R RO R
(BRI BB MM E LR - ME238RH T
ERZERRMELEN ST HRRIMES) -
VABR % 5 B 7% R P R BR AN 5 B AR & 5t 1
FMBEEtHEAEERR -

EERBRERASEERAT
FEHE 2017

95



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR M R

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial information relating to the years ended 31 March
2017 and 2016 included in this preliminary announcement of
annual results does not constitute the Company’s statutory
annual consolidated financial statements for those years but is
derived from those financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2017 comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in
joint venture.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 7
July 2015. On 18 September 2015 and as part of the
corporate reorganisation, the entire issued share capital of
Union (Group) Investment Limited (“UGIL”) was transferred to
Union Health Services, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, which was in turn controlled by Mr. Tang Chi Fai
(“the Controlling Shareholder”) (“the Share Transfer”). Upon the
completion of the Share Transfer, the Company and Union
Health Services became the parent companies of UGIL and its
subsidiaries, and the holding companies of the Group.

The companies that took part in the Share Transfer were
controlled by the same ultimate equity shareholder before and
after the Share Transfer and there were no changes in the
business and operations of UGIL and its subsidiaries. The
Share Transfer only involved incorporating the Company and
Union Health Services with no prior substantive operations as
the holding companies of UGIL and the Group. Accordingly,
the Share Transfer has been accounted for using a principle
similar to that for a reverse acquisition with UGIL treated as the
acquirer for accounting purposes. The financial statements
have been prepared and presented as a continuation of the
consolidated financial statements of UGIL and its subsidiaries,
with the assets and liabilities of the Group recognised and
measured at their historical carrying amounts prior to the Share
Transfer, and as if the group structure upon completion of the
Share Transfer had been in existence at the beginning of the
comparative period presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the accounting policies.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently
applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group early adopted HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, with a date of initial application of 1 April
2016. As a result, the Group has changed its accounting
policies for revenue recognition and its incremental cost as
detailed below.

The Group applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect
method — i.e. by recognising the cumulative effect of initially
applying HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at 1 April 2016. Therefore, the comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 18, Revenue. The details of the
significant changes and quantitative impact of the changes are
set out below.

Provision of services

All of the services are sold on a prepaid basis. Payments
received for prepaid packages are recorded as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the time of receipt. The service period of a prepaid package is
generally one-year.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised when the
services have been rendered to customers.

Deferred revenue is non-refundable and customers may not
utilise all of their contracted rights within the service period.

Previously, any residual deferred revenue at the end of the
service period is fully recognised in profit or loss. Under HKFRS
15, such unutilised service treatments are referred to as
breakage. An expected breakage amount in deferred revenue
is determined by historical experience and is recognised as
revenue in proportion to the pattern of service treatments
utilised by the customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred costs

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer,
which represent sales commissions and bonuses paid or
payable to the staff and agencies calculated, are recognised as
deferred costs in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Such costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the deferred revenue to which they relate is
recognised as revenue.

Impacts on financial statements
The following tables summarise the impacts of adopting
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2017

i. Consolidated statement of financial position
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Impact of changes in accounting policies

SHHREDNTE
Balances
without
adoption of
HKFRS 15
As reported Adjustments M RE2ER
31 March 2017 —E—+E=A=+—H mjE AE E15%E WL
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Deferred cost RERA 5,361,965 (5,361,965) -
Other Hh 1,193,891,225 - 1,193,891,225
Total assets BEE 1,199,253,190 (5,361,965)  1,193,891,225
Deferred revenue EIEWA 327,894,405 31,157,270 359,051,675
Current tax payable &S BN ERRR 18 11,428,555 (6,025,674) 5,402,881
Other Hih 70,077,907 70,077,907
Total liabilities HmeF 409,400,867 25,131,596 434,532,463
Retained profit 1R F 150,628,024 (30,493,561) 120,134,463
Other Hh 639,224,299 = 639,224,299
Total equity B 789,852,323 (30,493,561) 759,358,762
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(Continued)

Impacts on financial statements (Continued)

ii. Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

23 BHEES @)
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i. FEBEZRAEMREKER

Impact of changes in accounting policies

EHHRESBNHE
Balances
without
adoption of
HKFRS 15
For the year ended BE-ZE—+tH As reported Adjustments ISR EEA
31 March 2017 ZHA=+—-HLEE mEmE AR B15HNER
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Revenue WA 964,927,119 (31,157,270) 933,769,849
Employee benefit expenses EEEFIHY (277,865,036) 3,323,422 (274,541,614)
Marketing and advertising EHERESAY
expenses (68,460,929) (8,685,387) (77,146,316)
Other Hith (373,992,972) - (373,992,972)
Profit before tax RREE AR T 244,608,182 (36,519,235) 208,088,947
Income tax Frigan (41,111,965) 6,025,674 (35,086,291)
Profit for the year FEREF 203,496,217 (30,493,561) 173,002,656
Other Hih 27,716 - 27,716
Total comprehensive income FR2EIKH4ELE
for the year 203,523,933 (30,493,561) 173,030,372
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Impacts on financial statements (Continued)

HOBBRROTE @#)
ii. Consolidated cash flow statement ii. HZERERER

Impact of changes in accounting policies

SR BEREBNY
Balances
without
adoption of
HKFRS 15
REEMER
For the year ended BE-Z—+tHF As reported Adjustments B 2R
31 March 2017 ZA=t—-HLFE miRE AE B15HEMER
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Profit before tax B A5t AT 7 244,608,182 (32,983,304) 211,624,878
Adjustments for: NG E=SEEEE S
Changes in: B
— Deferred cost — BEMA (1,826,034) 1,826,034 -
— Deferred revenue — EERA 9,012,855 31,157,270 40,170,125
— Other — Hfh (71,814,493) - (71,814,493)
Net cash generated from RETHHMERLSFE
operating activities 179,980,510 - 179,980,510
Net cash used in investing RETHFARSEE
activities (153,212,128) - (153,212,128)
Net cash used in METHMARSEE
financing activities (180,052,101) - (180,052,101)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non- controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non- controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.1

10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred to the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the sellers of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it
is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRSs.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.1

10

B MIRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash- generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and
receivables, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in
fair value presented as other net income and gains in profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

10

B SRR M R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other net
income and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for
loans and in other expenses for receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

B MIRE

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

11

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings, and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial liabilities held for trading. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or
loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of each reporting
period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

B MIRE

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

11

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and
equity and debt investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

B MIRE

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

11

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 25%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 25%
Operation equipment 20%
Office equipment 20%
Computers 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If
they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as set out below.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Customer lists 33%
Licence 33%
Club membership Indefinite
Trademark 33%

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. For an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually, whether or not there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

11

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are recognised as
property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy (see note 3.1 section head
“Impairment of financial assets”). Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets (Continued)
(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

B MIRE

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

11

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

12

B SRR M R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Macau are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

3.1

12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment
Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the revision, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment (Continued)
Share award scheme

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Award Scheme”), under which
the entity receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (shares) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
shares granted:

— including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

— excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of shares that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Under the Share Award Scheme, employees (excluding core
connected persons as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Group are entitled to the shares for which are held in trust by
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”) for
the benefit of the employees. The Trustee may be instructed to
buy shares from the market using the funds held by the
Trustee. Details of outstanding shares can be referred to note
28.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

12

B SRR M R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of each of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

3.1

12

B MIRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Dividends

The Board recommends the declaration of a final dividend of
HK$5.0 cents per Share and a special dividend of HK$7.9
cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2017. The
proposed final dividend and special dividend, if approved by
the Shareholders at the AGM, will be paid on 12 September
2017 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 29 August 2017.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  All of the services are sold on a prepaid basis. Payments
received for prepaid packages are recorded as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the time of receipt. The service period of a
prepaid package is generally one-year.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
when the services have been rendered to customers.

Deferred revenue is non-refundable and customers may
not utilise all of their contracted rights within the service
period. Such unutilised service treatments are referred to
as breakage. An expected breakage amount in deferred
revenue is determined by historical experience and is
recognised as revenue in proportion to the pattern of
service treatments utilised by the customers.

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the service
period is fully recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  revenue from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers;

(c) income from the sale of financial investments, when the
relevant contract notes are executed on the transaction
dates;

(d) commission income and management fee income, when
the relevant services are rendered;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(M) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS$,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

3.1

12

B MIRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of an operation outside
Hong Kong and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of that operation and translated
at the closing rate.

Deferred costs

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer,
which represent sales commissions and bonuses paid or
payable to the staff, are recognised as deferred costs in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the deferred
revenue to which they relate is recognised as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

B MIRE

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

13

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

@iy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3.1

3.2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosure, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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3.2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

13

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Business combinations

For the business combinations undertaken by the Group, the
Group allocates the costs of the acquisition to the assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their estimated
fair value on the date of acquisition. This process is commonly
referred to as the purchase price allocation. As part of the
purchase price allocation, the Group is required to determine
the fair value of any identifiable intangible assets acquired. The
determination of the fair value of the intangible assets acquired
involves certain judgement and estimates. These judgements
can include, but are not limited to, the cash flows that the
intangible assets is expected to generate in the future.

The fair values of the identifiable intangible assets were
determined by the Group with inputs from the independent
appraisers using mainly the discount cash flow method of the
income approach. Future cash flows are predominantly based
on the historical pricing and expense levels, taking into
consideration the relevant market size and growth factors, and
involves making a number of assumptions including growth
rates and royalty rates. The resulting cash flows are then
discounted at a rate reflecting specific risks related to the
relevant operation.

A change in the amount allocated to identifiable intangible
assets would have an offsetting effect on the amount of
goodwill recognised from the acquisition and would change
the amount of amortisation expense recognised related to
those identifiable intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of assets

The Group performs annual impairment test on goodwill and
intangible assets, and also performs impairment assessment
on the carrying amounts of other assets when indication of
impairment is identified to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Management assesses the differences
between the carrying amount and recoverable amount and
makes provision for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumptions adopted in calculating the recoverable amount
would increase or decrease the provision for impairment loss
and affect the Group’s financial position.

Provision for impairment of trade debtors and other receivables
is assessed and made based on the management’s regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgement is exercised by management
when assessing the credit worthiness and past collection
history of each individual customer. Any increase or decrease
in such provision would affect the Group’s profit or loss in
future years.

Revenue

Revenue recognition on provision of services is dependent on
the estimation of the utilisation pattern of treatments. Based on
the Group’s historical experience, the Group makes estimates
of an expected amount of breakage. Actual utilisation may be
higher or lower than those estimated at the end of each
reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future year.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
depreciated and amortised on a reducing balance method or
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives. The Group
reviews annually the useful life of these assets and their residual
values, if any. The depreciation and amortisation expenses for
future periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimation.

RIS AR I ot

3.2 ERETTHE R A @)

LT EERZE (#)
EERE

AEEHEmERELEEETFRERER
A PRERBETREEEMEENR
HEETRENANEE TR FERT B R
BEE BEENEEREEEN KD
ZHEMNEZRE  BREBETRERE -8
ARESEAERANRRZEMELEEE
BMEOR AR EBRNEE  YFEARE
BB B TSRO ©

RIRE TR E S ARE o T MA@ U TTRF (4 &Y
EHEDS  FEEZRURER R HEMEK
RIEHRERE T AR - EHEEEE
FRERERBERRCER  EEES
REUVEERE /A B o %5 3R E(E
L B AN R BRI R B M kB 1R o

A

RERE WA ERBURN HEZERE
AMEE - REAKEEENKER A&
EHEHREROEMNSBEEL G - R
ERENEERENERERIBERATES
RBERZF-E URZERRFERE
REVUA S g ) o

TR #E

ME - BB MREARET EERETA A
FERFRRNERBREBERERRETH
ER#EH AEEESFENRTEENT
ERFHAMERKEERME)  MRBE
AT FEERE(L - RIS RRHHENITE
NEHERETAE -

EERBRERASEERAT
FEHE 2017 1 33



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

13

B MIRE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group is organised into
business unit based on their services and products and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  the provision of medical, quasi-medical, traditional beauty
services and the sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products; and

(b)  the provision of health management services.
Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
management monitors the results attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of investment in joint venture,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and deferred
tax assets. Segment liabilities include trade payables, other
payable and accruals.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments. Segment revenue and
expenses include the Group’s share of revenue and expenses
arising from the activities of the Group’s joint venture. However,
other than reporting inter-segment sales, assistance provided
by one segment to another, including sharing of assets and
technical know-how, is not measured.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before
tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
interest income, realised gains/(losses) on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, net, equity-settled
share-based payments are excluded from such measurement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS AR I ot

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RBREFWER @)
(Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEIEE  BENEGE#E)
The provision of
medical beauty, traditional
beauty and the sale of The provision
skincare, healthcare and of health
heauty products management services Elimination Total
RUBBEZR BREAR
HEER RERZRER RUBRERRE B it
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
TE-tF ZT-5F IE-tF R CE-tF ZEF ZE-tF B
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT B BT B B B B A
Revenue: WA
Sales to extemal customers MINPEFHE 913,616,536 704,937,348 51,310,583 - - - 064927119 704937348
Inter-segment sales HiERE 19,303,867 - 1,384,458 - (20,688,325) - - -
Segment revenue AHA 932,920,403 704,937,348 52,695,041 - (20,688,325) - 964,927,119 704,937,348
Segment result 1948 83130878 181751205 296,385 - - - 233421263 181,751,205
Interest income 8 s 2,820,196 305,454
Unrealised farvalue gains onfirancial -~ AT (B3 A BANABEE
assets at fair vaue through profit MAERATERLSRE
orloss, net 183,225 -
Realised gaing/[osses) on disposals o~ HERATEF AES
financial assets at fair value through MeREEIDER
proft or loss, net hi/(ER) 38 1095488 (1,209,090)
Others 2 21940691 3,560,131
Eauity-setiled share-based payments — WEREE NG BERHRZ (14,859,281) -
Proft before tax BRAER 244,608,182 184,407,790
e oy 135



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

13

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of () the Group’s revenue from external customers and
(i) the Group’s investment property, other property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and investment in joint
venture (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on (i) the
physical location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment, (i) the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of intangible assets and goodwill, and (iii)
the location of operations, in the case of investment in joint
venture.

4.

REFIER (@)

DEEE  EEREE@

TR ABUATSENBEMENER -
() SR 1B 2K B SR P B U e (i) 2 5= 1 Y
REWME HWxE - BEMEE - BT E
E AERHALEEENRE(RHEIRR
BEE])  cBEPAMIEAEERATIRHR
BEIAXNERNUE - HEFRBDEE
MiHIEEEROEENERUE (WX
B R &REmE) - (i) R0 AR EE
B (REVEENBEMS) i) &2
E(HEEEENREME) °

Information about geographical areas FRtENER
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REIMBEF BB A BEFRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—®-tF —TF —B—tF TR
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Hong Kong 5% 908,753,309 667,409,203 149,970,056 56,767,918
Macau P 37,090,514 28,613,885 2,216,685 2,738,251
The PRC & 19,083,296 8,914,260 12,832,705 4,381,774
964,927,119 704,937,348 165,019,446 63,887,943
Information about major customers ERTFTERFHNEFR

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single customer of
the Group has individually accounted for over 10% of the
Group’s total revenue during each of the reporting periods
presented, no information about major customers in
accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS AR I ot

REVENUE 5. KA
Revenue represents the value of medical, quasi-medical health WAL EE  EEE - BREELE
management and traditional beauty services rendered and the HERRGHEEMEELHERNERSF
net invoiced value of good sold, after allowances for return and B(EHNBREEBELRE SN - WAD
trade discounts. An analysis of revenue is as follows: IR N
For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=+—HLFE
2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—RF
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
Revenue WA
Medical services BERE 501,829,649 275,668,382
Quasi-medical services HEBIE AR 7% 96,416,968 74,073,840
Health management services R E IR AR TS 51,310,583 -
Traditional beauty services EHEERRE 175,362,952 65,042,514
Skincare, healthcare and beauty products ~ EE - (Rig R EAE D 61,899,875 38,031,475
Revenue recognised from unutilised BAREAENEZERRRA
prepaid packages 78,107,092 252,121,137
964,927,119 704,937,348
Since all the revenue comprises income from the provision of BARFTEWABRIEREIRLERE - HEEE -
medical, quasi-medical, health management, traditional beauty BESENEFETREALEEEES -
services and sales of skincare, healthcare and beauty products RERERERSOINZ  NE 2
transferred to customers at a point in time, no revenue derived ERE WK EREIABERR M
from services transferred over time. L o

EREETEREEARAHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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REVENUE (continued)
Deferred balances
The following table provides information about deferred

liabilities from contract with customers and related deferred
cost.

WA ()

;Ei—nl:lﬁ%
TEHIEEEFRTANMELEE RS
BRI A AN BRY o

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

—E—tF =S ANCS

=A=+t—H =A=t+—H

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Deferred revenue (note 24) EEWA (BT 5E24) (327,894,405)  (312,891,746)
Deferred cost RIERAR 5,361,965 -
The deferred cost primarily related to the incremental costs of BHESEPASAHMIEKANERAAIEL
obtaining a contract with a customer, which represent sales AR (FEFEt EE NS ERN B TRRIEA
commissions and bonus paid or payable to the staff and EME ML) NGEAT BRI KRER SR

agencies calculated, are recognised as deferred costs in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the deferred
revenue to which they relate is recognised as revenue.

Deferred costs

Management expects that incremental cost paid to the staff
and agencies as a result of obtaining prepaid packages are
recoverable. The Group has therefore capitalised them as
deferred cost in the amount of HK$5,361,965 at 31 March
2017.

Capitalised incremental cost are amortised when the related
revenue are recognised. In 2017, the amount of amortisation
was HK$180,341,504 and there was no impairment loss in
relation to the costs capitalised.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

FERCR © BRI B B R E LA
R RR AR B ANEER AR -

3 FIE R S

EREEHRESENEEMNTTFELIR
RIEBHIZEEM AT FIRE o Bt RNEB R
—E—tF A=+ HEAXZEEE
55,361,965 78 JTTAYIRIER AN ©

BEMNLH G EE PR ERA B AR 3
He R_ZE—+tEMNEBHESHEAE
180,341,504 8 7T W BB E RN{LAKAHY

EEREE -



OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS 6.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS AR I ot

He s R WA R

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—t5F S ANCS
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Bank interest income RITH B M a= 2,820,796 305,454
Interest income from listed debt investments M EFRE M TFRE R
and certificate of deposits FE WS 1,701,330 1,014,988
Write back on provision for penalty B RS e G 11,379,562 -
Unrealised fair value gains on financial BAFEFABER
assets at fair value through CREECRER
profit or loss, net NEN =FEE 183,225 -
Realised gains/(losses) on disposals of HER AT ETABED
financial assets at fair value CRIEECBER
through profit or loss, net Wz, (B518) %58 1,095,488 (1,209,090)
Imputed interest income on non-current SERNER SR e A E F Bl
rental deposits 328,801 577,412
Others Hi 9,975,774 2,982,719
27,484,976 3,671,483
FINANCE COSTS 7. BB

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016

—B—tF “T-RF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Interest on bank overdraft RITIEZ A - 544

Finance charges on obligations under RMEHEREZBERT

finance lease 1,165 _
Imputed interest expense on non-current  JEENERTE E1R & MHE | BB

rental deposits 337,284 411,218

338,449 411,762
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. BRBIAIEF

AL B R TR R T MR, (GHA) R
THREEREE

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—HLEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Employee benefit expenses (including EEEMMAZ (BEEEEHM) - »
directors’ emoluments):*
Salaries, wages, allowances, bonuses, e L& =R B4
commission and benefits in kind MekEYHE 287,674,052 211,565,936
Equity-settled share-based gEmEE RN BER 2
payment expenses N 14,859,281 -
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIMHR
(defined contribution scheme) (RAEHBIETED 10,261,430 7,039,202
312,794,763 218,605,138
Minimum lease payments under KEHETUATRIEN
operating leases in respect of: HEEERK :
Land and buildings T REF 71,630,060 49,519,995
Equipment B 269,837 225,802
Auditors’ remuneration 2 Gl 2,873,395 1,668,965
Depreciation e 27,465,740 24,068,889
Impairment of goodwill BERE 282,940 -
Amortisation of intangible assets I EESH 1,708,016 572,520
Loss on disposals and write-off of property, & RilissmE « WE &
plant and equipment HAEREE 1,404,863 1,032,361
Foreign exchange differences, net SNE ZERFEE 632,870 (74,324)
Trade receivables written off as uncollectible {E A&7 ] U [ 3% TB 4 #5 &9
B 5 e IR = 11,951

* BIRABIEREBEA Y 277,865,036 7T
(ZZ—/NF 192,360,798 78 T) RO, TE
R AEASEREENE THEMELAHK
34,929,727 BT (Z T — 754 © 26,244,340 7%

Included in staff costs are employee benefit expenses of
HK$277,865,036 (2016: HK$192,360,798) and registered
practitioner expenses of HK$34,929,727 (2016: HK$26,244,340)
paid/payable to certain registered medical practitioners who are also

employees of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA R = M 5T
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEFHM
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIEEB A RIEHIE 3831 KL AR (FKE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the EEFZEEBAIE BB EEE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BEEIS T -
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme Share Share
fees in kind bonuses contributions  Sub-total options awards Total
1
ESHe REVAE  BERL BIHEER gt BRE  RO%RE @t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
BT B ) B B BT B B
(note)
(W)
Yearended 31 March 2017  HZ-B-t%
ZR=t-BLEE
Executive director #i7EZ
Tang Chi Fai 5B - 1,218,000 - 18,000 1,236,000 - - 1,236,000
Lee Gabriel Z2% - 2,579,500 - 18000 2597500  2437,140 5434880 10,469,520
Yeung Chin Wan BEY - 1,287,750 - 18,000 1,305,750 32,125 460,800 1,798,675
Luk Kun Shing Ben BHR - 241,000 - 12,000 253,000 - 4704000 4,957,000
- 5326250 - 66,000 5392250 2,469,265 10,599,680 18,461,195
Independent-non-executive BV HH/TEE
director
Ma Ching Nam SEf 266,667 - - - 266,667 - - 266,667
YuKa Fai Alexis gy 133,334 - - - 133,334 - - 133,334
Look Ancrew B 244,444 - - - 244,444 - - 244,444
644,445 - - - 644,445 - - 644,445
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR M R

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

14

9. EEFM @)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme Share Share
fees inkind bonuses  contrioutions Sub-total options awards Total
e B
ESHe  REWHE  BERL RGrEER It BlE  RARE &t
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Yearended 31 March 2016 BZ=F-A%
ZAzt-RLER
Executive dlrector Hi7EZ
Tang Chi Fai i - 1,218,000 - 8000 1,236,000 - - 1,286,000
Lee Gabril 32% - 1,622,000 - 8000 1,640,000 - - 1,640,000
Yeung Chin Wan R - 1,312,700 - 8000 1,330,700 - - 1,380,700
Luk Kun Shing Ben BHR - 390,500 - 3,000 403,500 - - 403,500
- 4543200 - 67,000 4,610,200 - - 4,610,200
Independent-non-execute  BUFHTEE
director
Ma Ching Nam SEf 26,008 - - - 26,608 - - 26,668
Yu Ka Fai Alexis 28 24,444 - - - 24,444 - - 24,444
Look Andrew i3 24444 - - - 24,444 - - 24,444
75,556 - - - 75,550 - - 75,556
Note: P E

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
directors under the company’s share option scheme. The value of these
share options is measured according to the group’s accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in note 3.1 and, in
accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts
accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments are forfeited

prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 29.
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10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2016:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS AR I ot

10. BRSHEMA =

nil) of the individuals are directors for the year ended 31 March A

2017, the directors’ emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the three (2016:
five) individuals for the year ended 31 March 2017, are as

follows:

HE_ZT—tF=-A=+—HIEFE &
MATHRE(ZE—RF : TL)
ATAREE  EZHHAMNEORE - #E
—E—+F=ZA=+—HBLFE Hih=
H(ZE—RF: AR ATHFHWEES
BIEFIAT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits in

kind
Performance related bonuses

Equity-settled share-based payments
Pension scheme contributions (defined

contribution schemes)

e R M EMEYN S

HERBHDH RS
PARE SR AE B AR R ERE 2 53R
RIS BIHR GUEHKEE)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RXF
HK$ HK$

BT BT
6,427,823 6,405,016
9,728,474 11,484,106
123,674 -
108,000 180,725
16,387,971 18,069,847

The emoluments of the three (2016: five) individuals with the
highest emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2017 are

within the following bands:

RE-T—+tE=A=+—ALEE #
MBS =% (ZF—7<F : BH) ALH

HB D BITRIA T EE

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
Over HK$4,500,001

2,000,001 78 7T, % 2,500,000 7 7T
2,500,001 78 7T & 3,000,000 % 7T
3,000,001 7 7T & 3,500,000 % 7T
3,500,001 /8 7T & 4,000,000 78 7T
4,000,000 % 7T & 4,500,000 78 7T
4,500,001 B TTLA £

2017 2016
—F—tE T AT
= 2

- 1

1 1

2 1

3 5
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11.

14

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:

1. FEEERAWFFER

RERBBmARANBRIALR

For the year ended 31 March
BE-A=+—-HLFE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—REF
HK$ HK$
&I BT

Current — Hong Kong ENER — BB
Provision for the year F NS 38,076,163 35,165,609
Under-provision in respect of prior years NEFERETR 1,336,399 1,165,004

39,412,562 36,330,613

Current — Outside Hong Kong BNER — BEHSN

Provision for the year FREE 2,390,983 1,218,685
Deferred tax IR IE (691,580) (2,449,906)
Tax charge for the year FAFEL H 41,111,965 35,099,392

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong Kong have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B s P T
11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 1. FEBBRRANFEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(o) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting b) REAMIRFENHERTEEHE
profit at the applicable tax rates: 2 MEE RSN T
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Profit before tax R F5 A S5 ) 244,608,179 184,407,790
Tax on profit before taxation, calculated — BRF AT 2 B 18 - 12487
at the rates applicable to profits in MERAMEER 2
the tax jurisdictions concerned FIEFHEAE 41,446,831 30,374,143
Under-provision in respect of prior years LA FEREE T2 1,336,399 1,165,004
Tax effect of non-taxable income JEFERFHIMA 2 TR & (2,746,135) (835,254)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR HBAES 2B E 732,112 6,305,685
Tax losses not recognised RIERHTIBEE 1,157,053 2,714,441
Utilisation of unused tax losses not FABAFE R ARERE
recognised in prior years RENBHIBEEE (1,317,197) (3,188,899)
Tax effect of temporary differences not RBEFEHARERERERN
recognised in prior year but MRS =R 2 HIETE
recognised dung the year - (727,886)
Statutory deduction SEE R (80,000) -
Others Hith 582,902 (707,842)
Tax charge for the year FRMIEL H 41,111,965 35,099,392
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B SRR M R

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. AR F]

TO ORDINARY EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Basic earning per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per Share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$200,702,539 (2016: HK$148,663,969)
and the weighted average of 964,770,157 ordinary Shares
(2016: 749,095,890 ordinary Shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary Shares:

i1 EREEaRRELEBREA
|

BREXNER

BRREAREF) THE R AR 7B SRR
JE G 4 % 711 200,702,539 7T (—F — X
F 1 148,663,969 7% 7T ) & F N E 17 Iz
S E R E R 964,770,157 R (—ZF— /X
F 749,005,800 @A) FHE T ¢

R E I E

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZHA=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—RF
Issued/deemed issued ordinary Shares RERFEINE 31T,/
at the beginning of the financial year WIERBITE® 980,000,000 735,000,000
Effect of ordinary Shares issued upon RERARAEEREEITY
the initial public offering AR ZE = 14,095,890
Effect of ordinary Shares issued BRITTBRATE 788,482 -
Effect of purchase of Shares held for PR (D SREET BB E R (D &
share award scheme (16,018,325) -
Weighted average number of ordinary A= A=+—HHE @K
Shares at 31 March hniEF g8 964,770,157 749,095,890

Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earning per Share is the same as basic earnings
per Share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary Shares in
existence during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - MERRE

Leasehold Furniture Operation Office Motor
improvements  and fixtures equipment equipment  Computers vehicles Total
AENEEE  KARKE gERf e HEL ot gt
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$
B BT B A BT B A7
Cost: A
At 1 April 2015 RZF-REMA-A 44,324,151 2,990,176 48,576,003 2,606,840 3,313,382 - 101,810,552
Addtions RE 17,543,964 2,084,434 7,676,328 193,585 2,168,529 566,305 30,233,145
Business combination £HAH 1,037,393 245,852 - - - - 2,183,245
Disposals il (530,778) (743,299) (3,918,255) (657,927) (360,088) - (6,210,347)
Bxchange adusiment Ex#% (129,428) (270,584) - - - - (400,012)
At 31 March 2016 RZZ-7"EZf=1-A 63,145,302 4,306,579 52,334,076 2,142,498 5,121,823 566,305 127,616,583
At 1 April 2016 RZF-~ENA-A 63,145,302 4,306,579 52,334,076 2,142,498 5,121,823 566,305 127,616,583
Addtions RE 9,296,019 1,042,361 18,891,024 441,700 779,136 1,747,630 32,197,870
Business combination ek 5,122,093 1,638,767 1,025,599 37,364 - - 7,823,823
Disposals & (901,958) (135,857) (1,519,515) - - - (2,557,330)
Exchange adjustment Ex#% (198,265) (85,656) - - - - (283,921)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tE=A=1-H 76,463,191 6,766,194 70,731,184 2,621,562 5,900,959 2313935 164,797,025
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
At 1 April 2015 R-Z-REMA-A 17,936,245 1,888,058 26,507,864 1,489,009 1,808,326 - 49,629,502
Charge for the year EREA 14,149,461 642,377 8,191,363 433,011 624,362 28,315 24,068,889
Written back on disposals RUERER (515,326) (622,738)  (3,237,785) (505,801) (296,336) - (5,177,986)
Exchange adjustment 3 (56,210) (3,144) - - - - (59,354)
At 31 March 2016 R E=F=1-H 31,514,170 1,904,553 31,461,442 1,416,219 2,136,352 28,315 68,461,051
At 1 April 2016 RZT-~EMA-A 31,514,170 1,904,553 31,461,442 1,416,219 2,136,352 28,315 68,461,051
Charge for the year EREA 15,411,957 1,142,024 9,539,773 288,423 927,430 156,133 27,465,740
Witten back on disposals RHEBED (609,729) (63,305) (479,433) - - - (1,152,467)
Exchange adustment 3 (140,209) (15,603) - - - - (155,812)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tE=A=1-H 46,176,189 2,967,669 40,521,782 1,704,642 3,063,782 184,448 94,618,512
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2017 RZE-+E=f=1-A 30,287,002 3,798,525 30,209,402 916,920 2,831,171 2,129,481 70,178,513
At 31 March 2016 RZE-F=f=1-H 31,631,132 2,402,026 20,872,634 726,279 2,985,471 537,990 59,155,532
EEBEREREEERAR
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+ an
R e ey
14. GOODWILL 14, &
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt & BT BT
At the beginning of year =) 3,421,318 1,773,481
Business combinations EEEOT 30 33,518,733 1,647,837
Impairment during the year FARE (282,940) -
At the end of year FR 36,657,111 3,421,318
2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost [D#%N 39,002,518 5,483,785
Accumulated impairment RETRE (2,345,407) (2,062,467)
Net carrying amount BRTEFE 36,657,111 3,421,318
Impairment testing of goodwill BERENR
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated BRERSHRBNEERSEE TR
to the following cash-generating unit (“CGU”) for impairment CEABM([REEEEM]) AERER
testing: =
e Medical, quasi-medical and traditional beauty service o EEF EREENEREARBRISE
CGU; HEAL
° Aesthetic dental service CGU; and ° FERBEREESSEMN: &
e Medical services in the PRC CGU. o HEEBERBIBEELESAM-

1 4 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Medical, quasi-medical and traditional beauty service
CGU

The recoverable amount of the medical, quasi-medical and
traditional beauty service CGU has been determined based on
a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections from
financial budgets approved by senior management covering a
five-year period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 20% (2016: 17%) and the growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the cash-generating units beyond
the five-year period is 3% (2016: 3%).

Aesthetic dental service CGU

The recoverable amount of the aesthetic dental service CGU
has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using
cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 16% (2016: 16%)
and the growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
cash-generating units beyond the five-year period is 3% (2016:
3%).

RIS AR I ot

14. BE (®)

% ﬁ /Jﬁ {E A (ﬁt)

BR EBERREAXARBREEL
By

RER EBRENEGESRBRSESL
By ] U [l & 58 T DA R B EA R IR IR
“ﬁ&”éﬂl"?ﬁtxﬁmﬁﬁﬁkﬁgﬁﬁﬁ L8 hF
Hﬂﬁﬁﬁqﬁ%muiﬁﬁﬁém Fﬁﬁ/t\iﬁﬁmui
HEEMBER X RB0%(ZFT — KN F:
17%) ﬁﬁiﬁi\éiﬁmﬂi,ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ@iﬁﬁ
MEHMA3% T —NF 1 3%) iR R
HHE -

TERBREELEN

FERBHReEESEMNITRE ST
193%?@%&@?‘?%@EEEFTtt/EE@ﬂﬁ%%

HEENRAFHEARSRAEMET °
ﬂﬁﬁﬁ’t\fﬁémg BRI EE16% (ZF
—REF 16%) - ﬁﬁfﬁé?‘t{%uﬂii,ﬁﬁﬁaﬁ
BHIRERERAIN(ZE—NF : 3%)
IR RERE -
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7

14.

15

B MIRE

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Medical services in the PRC CGU

The recoverable amount of the medical services in the PRC
CGU has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation
using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five- year period. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projection is 23% (2016: 16%)
and the growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
cash-generating units beyond the five-year period is 3% (2016:
3%).

14. BE (®)

BERENR &)
FERERERSEEEN

TREERBReEABMMNIRE S E
TIAEREBEERSRERE I &M
FEHFEENAFHERNB e REMETE
HRARBESREREMAIRERR23% (ZF
—REF 1 16%) - MRS ELBRFHHER
MIREMERAS%(ZZF—/NF : 3%) 1

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the SREKBRSESBMNEEEREWT -
cash-generating units is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—REF
$ $
JT 7T
Medical, quasi-medical and traditional BE - EBBEREHEDTRE
beauty services 31,241,474 1,378,540
Aesthetic dental services E5RTS 394,941 394,941
Medical services in the PRC A B EE AR S 5,020,696 1,647,837
36,657,111 3,421,318

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of all
the CGUs. The following describes each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant cash-generating
units.

Price inflation — The basis used to determine the price inflation
is the forecast price index during the budget year for Hong
Kong, Macau or the PRC where the operations are carried out.

The values assigned to the key assumptions are consistent
with external information sources.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=+ e
B s P T
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B L EE
Club  Customer
membership lists Licence Trademark Total
BMEE EFEE JEER BE et
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—HFMA—H - 1,314,454 - - 1,314,454
Additions NEY 354,000 - - - 354,000
Business combinations (note 30) %754 ff (Hf3£30) - - 1,239,956 - 1,239,956
Exchange adjustment BE 5 % - - (68,727) - (68,727)
At 31 Mar 2016 RZE—RF=ZA=1+—H 354,000 1,314,454 1,171,229 - 2,839,683
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—~"EMNA—H 354,000 1,314,454 1,171,229 - 2,839,683
Additions NE 19,164,000 - - - 19,164,000
Business combinations (note 30) &4 ff (Fi7E30) - 5608093 2,676,121 8,907,318 17,191,532
Exchange adjustment M 3, 5 - - (62,499 - (62,499
At 31 Mar 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 19518000 6,922,547 3,784,851 8,007,318 39,132,716
Accumulated amortisation: B
At 1 April 2015 R-ZZ—HEMA—H - 962,697 - - 962,697
Charge for the year FHMEPA - 326,535 245,985 - 572,520
Exchange adjustment M 3, 52 - - (6,627 - (6,627
At 31 Mar 2016 RZE—RFE=ZA=1+—H - 1,289,232 239,358 - 1,528,590
At 1 April 2016 “Z—-RENA—H - 1,289,232 239,358 - 1,528,590
Charge for the year FREA - 25,222 242981 1,439,813 1,708,016
Exchange adjustment M 3, - - (10,340) - (10,340)
31 Mar 2017 —ET—+F=RA=1+—H - 1,314,454 471,999 1,439,813 3,226,266
Net book value: IREFE
At 31 March 2017 NZZE—+F=F=+—H 19,518,000 5,608,093 3,312,852 7,467,505 35,906,450
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=ZA=1+—H 354,000 26,222 931,871 - 1,311,093
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B SRR M R

15.

16.

15

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The intangible assets with indefinite useful life are related to
club memberships in Hong Kong. No impairment loss was
recognised during the year (2016: HK$Nl).

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

(@) Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which
is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

15.

16.

BIELEE &)

FANEHERFARABRERTH [HM
FsZ] °

IR AR RN
e AR - R EERRERE(—2
— X BB -

REEEENRE

@ AEEREGZLEENEDR(RNEAM
BT EREDEARR) FBOT

Proportion of ownership interest

P& RERLH
Place of Particulars of Group’s Held
incorporation issued and effective bythe Heldbya
Name of joint venture and business paid up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
AfEIR  BETR X5E Wt 2 Al
RELEER EBReEny HRELFE ERES XDNRME fi  TEER
Good Union Corporation HongKong  Registered capital 50% - 50%  Provision of repair
Limited (“GUC”) HK$100 and maintenance
services for beauty
equipment
EIeEARAR(EISE]) BB T &R 50% - 50% AREARBREEE
100787T R R
Good Union Medical Limited Hong Kong  Registered capital 50% - 50%  Sales of medication
(‘GUW?) HK$100 products
Good Union Medical Limited B BRIECEN 50% - 50% HEEMEMR
(TGUM]) 100/87T

GUC and GUM (together referred to as the “GU”), the
joint ventures in which the Group participates, are
unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is

not available.
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16. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE (continued)

(b)

Summarised financial information of GU, adjusted for any (o)
differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

statements, are disclosed below:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS AR I ot

16. REETENKRE @)

P BEREMNERIEHARNHGU
MHBENRBREGA M B RAER
EMHRRELT

2017
—E—tF
HK$
BT
Gross amounts of GU GU#RE
Current assets MEVEE 19,973,712
Non-current assets EMEEE 1,593,256
Current liabilities RBBE (8,967,436)
Equity po 3 12,599,532
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FFALMEEREE
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEED 2,939,202
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ ENER& Rl & & (B 5 K& H {th JE {308
other payables and provisions) KRR IN) (217,717)
2017
—E—+tF
HK$
BT
Revenue WA 59,776,201
Profit from continuing operations REFELEEBH R 2,529,547
Total comprehensive income AEEEmEmIA 2,529,547
Included in the above profit: FTALMUEFIRIER ¢
Interest income L2 A 515
Interest expense FBERAX (14)
Income tax expense RS =
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in GU BRI AR GURER BT ER
Gross amounts of GU’s net assets GUEEFBERTE 12,599,532
Group’s effective interest REEBEREER 50%
Group’s share of GU net assets AEBELRGUEEFE 6,299,766
Identifiable intangible assets Al R B A E 5,847,728
Fair values adjustment on net asset acquired P EEE Y AT EHAE 591,451
Goodwill EES 12,383,146
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial ~ R4R 4 B SRR ARMEE
statements 25,122,091

EEBRERASEERAT
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16. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE (continued)

15

(©)

On 1 November 2016, the Union Medical Technology
Holdings Limited (“UMTHL”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Cheng Yeung (“Mr.
Cheng”). Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement,
UMTHL and Mr. Cheng holds 50% equity interest of GU
and the decisions on those relevant activities as defined
under HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, of
GU requires unanimous consent of the directors as
nominated by each of UMTHL and Mr. Cheng present
and voting.

The transaction was completed on 25 November 2016
with total consideration of HK$25,154,000 upon which
GU has become a joint venture of the Company.

The Group incurred acquisition-related cost of
HK$150,911 on 25 November 2016. These cost have
been charged to other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year.
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RZBE—RE+—A—8 AAFAH
£ 2 & W B 2 7] Union Medical
Technology Holdings Limited
(TUMTHL) 82205k 5 A ([ 8554 1) &3]
S EEHE c RIBEEWRE - UMTHL
R BB GU 50% i - BRAGU
NZERAZBNAR(EERDEE
WIS ERE105 A5 HHE )
ZREFUMTHL R B8 5% £ X B IR &
WESESEN —BRBWETRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB A

17. INVENTORIES 17. &

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement () ZEMBERRRNEEERE
of financial position comprise:

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Skincare, healthcare and beauty products 5 - (R R EAE R 5,440,773 3,177,581
Consumables and other supplies FEM R H A pE & 13,675,507 14,705,628

19,116,280 17,883,209

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BRABMIUFABENEE
recognised as an expense and included in SEIFWMTE :

profit or loss is as follows:

Year ended 31 March
BE=HA=+t—-HLEE

2017 2016
—B-t#F — A
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHEREENGTERTE
and consumed 130,478,323 70,687,271

EEEERARMARAT
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B SRR M R

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

15

18. E 5 BWFIA

As at 31 March

R=B=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables B 5 W RIA 52,142,746 32,484,344
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on NEBHEZEEFNEZEFTEENEZAHER

credit card settlements. The credit period is generally 5 to 120
days for the credit card settlements from the respective
financial institutions. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-

bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the

BEH BETREBRGHNERREEN
ERH—MRAB5E120K - AEEHEER
22 1) oK Wi [B] & FE W kIR - T 28 B 45 R
BREEEEHEN AKELERELE
5 MWK IR 48 4 45 B (E  HE9 dn SOREUEL
i fE ARG - R RUGRIBETA R -

B HRYGRIENRE DT (RRZ B HEL)

invoice date, is as follows: FOENE
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF e SN
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 1 month 1EAR 41,988,028 26,249,632
1 to 3 months 1Z31E A 4,865,166 4,065,694
Over 3 months SE A 5,289,552 2,169,018
52,142,746 32,484,344
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on the
payment due date and net of provision is as follows:

RIS AR I ot

18. E 5 EWFIE (%)

B 5 WA A Bk 0 A (R SREI B B E
o WEMREE) T

As at 31 March

R=A=+—8

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$ HKS$

BT BT

Neither past due nor impaired BE AR 80 BR N R (B 38,791,121 27,093,828
Less than 3 months past due wH DA 3 1E A 12,790,901 4,068,655
3 to 6 months past due BHISE61E A 313,509 687,861
7 to 12 months past due #BE7 21218 A 135,377 392,787
More than 1 year past due B F A+ 111,838 241,213
52,142,746 32,484,344

At 31 March 2017, none of the trade receivables were
individually determined to be impaired (2016: HK$11,951).

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of receivables due from financial institutions
in respect of credit card settlements for whom there was no
recent history of default.

There was trade receivables of HK$2,870,107 due from
Healthy Concept (HK) Limited, a company beneficially owned
by Mr. Tang. At the beginning of the year, the outstanding
balance was nil. The maximum amount outstanding was
HK$2,870,107 during the year. The amount was interest-free
and repayable on demand, and the whole amount has been
repaid on the date of this annual report.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired also
relate to a number of financial institutions and a related party
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
palances.

RZZE—+F=A=+—0 MEZFE
WHERENEE AR RE(ZZE—/NE:
11,9517%870) °

SRR B EI TR E R B 5 B UGIR K 5h
ERREERESREENZ AR YR -
% & B RE AT B e R R RCER

WA TEESRELARRE(EE)E
RAFIKMNE S EWZTE 2,870,107 T °
REF BMAEEBEGAT - FRMKE
BSE R A2870,1078 7T « ZFIERE
MIRBENREE  ARE2HARACREAFR
HE4EE -

EBRMERRENESRIGRIESEZ H
HEASEEBERERTFEHERLEDN
TRMBIAN —RRET - RIBBELS: -
E=Z2h8 ARAHESRNEEEIRYE
EXEE  BEBAESKDKESTZHK
B - BAGZEFERFTIRBERE - A%
] 30 8 B 5% 5 45 R 15 B (A 4 49 m SR AR
HAb {5 FAE o fE i o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. AR - RERHMEWKIE
RECEIVABLES

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments B IR 42,234,973 27,211,102
Deposits b 39,824,059 31,967,628
Other receivables H IR 10,145,152 5,183,607
92,204,184 64,362,337
Portion classified as non-current 5| A IERNHAR EE 5
— Rental and other deposits — HEREMES (23,589,387) (22,017,893)
— Prepayments — FA B (7,884,968) -
Current portion BNEAER 60,729,829 42,344,444
The above assets are neither past due nor impaired. The FiEER ARSI ERE - LR
financial assets included in the above balance relate to e REEYW KT BB R FIELEN
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. FEYIFRIE o
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. BAFEFTAEBENERMEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets at fair value through  ZAFEFABENESREE
profit or loss
Unlisted fund investments, at fair value, ERIELTESEE  IRATE
in Hong Kong - 85,499,126
Unlisted bond investment, at fair value, ERIELMESKE KA EE
in Hong Kong 15,012,489 -
Certificate of deposits, at fair value, BEBGFRE - BAYER
in Hong Kong 459,733,200 18,017,766
Coupon note, at fair value, in Hong Kong &8 Z24% - I8 A (E 25,000,000 -
499,745,689 103,516,892
Certificate of deposits earn interest at fixed rates from 5 R E IR [E F ) 2 3 i BN 48 48 KGR 8 A
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. FERIHRITREFIE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

TIME DEPOSITS

RIS AR I ot

21. RERREEEYURERER

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Cash and cash equivalents
Time deposits TE HAfE =X

Re LR EEY

200,644,165 352,428,805
160,712,370 504,288,777

361,356,535 856,717,582

Less: Pledged time deposits for banking B BRI EEAERRSH

facilities as security for credit card
instalments programme
Time deposits with original maturity
over 3 months

FHEIERE B EIFEHER

(2,000,000) (2,000,000)

[REIH A 88 =18 A 19 E BT K

(1568,712,370)  (500,000,000)

200,644,165 354,717,582

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying period
from one day to one year depending on the Group’s immediate
cash requirements, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

Included in cash and cash equivalents, HK$9,036,583 (2016:
HK$3,346,862) are denominated in Renminbi and deposited
with the banks in the PRC. These deposits are not freely
convertible and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the Government
of the PRC.

FHRRBITHRSRERTHERBE RS
AR EFHONKREFE - ERFHNER
R —RE—FAF(RFAREOAEIR
EFRME) - BEEPERFEFE - R
TRHELREHFERFREEENFERTH
3 838 KIRCERHOIRTT ©

RIBE RIREEEYF © 9,036,583 B7L(=
T — N4 1 3,346,862/8 ) I A A RE &
B THERRPBENIRT ZEFRER
AIEMmER EsELTPEBETPIERK
FEMETTHOBE H.BR i o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+| 23
by DR
22. TRADE PAYABLES 22, ESENFEIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on the invoice B OENZTENERRSTORRZHEEDL)
date, is as follows: R
As at 31 March
MR=A=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tF —F—R
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 1 month 1EAR 5,422,769 5,084,524
1 to 2 months 1&2{@A 404,531 80,159
2 to 3 months 2ZF31EA 7,155 -
Over 3 months 31EA M+ 633,756 49,640
6,468,211 5,214,323
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have BB EMNFIBTEE - AMRE—#R60K
payment terms within 60 days. LAA ©
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HitERRIBERETEH
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZFE—R
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Other payables HAb fETFRIE 16,541,678 5,896,845
Accruals FEETE R 37,085,739 88,637,935
Provision for reinstatement costs EEKAEE 5,950,000 5,270,000
59,577,417 99,804,780
Portion classified as non-current o485 IERNEEER
— provision for reinstatement costs — EENARE (4,650,000) (3,110,000)
Current portion BNHEAER 2 54,927,417 96,694,780
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average HEMRETE  FHNZBAE=E
payment term of three months. A e

1 6 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of dismantling
and removing the leasehold improvements and restoring the

sites on which they are located.

The movements in the provision for reinstatement costs are as

follows:

RIS AR I ot

23. HithENFIBERETER @)

BEERARBEEEBYASEE B
LRBEGRHEENEREARREREYER
[EFEBARANE B2 REMRE

BEERARENEBNT

As at 31 March

R=A=+—8

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At the beginning of year F7) 5,270,000 4,740,000
Additional provision FINE R 1,110,000 1,010,000
Amounts utilised during the year FREESEE (430,000) (480,000)
At the end of year FR 5,950,000 5,270,000
Portion classified as current liabilities SEARBAGENE DY (1,300,000) (2,160,000)
Non-current portion JERNEREL 4,650,000 3,110,000

EEBRERASEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7= MY T
24. DEFERRED REVENUE (Continued) 24, EIEW A (#)
The movements in deferred revenue are as follows: EEW A S BT -
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$ HK$
AT BT
At the beginning of year F9] 312,891,746 347,467,876
Impact of changes in accounting policy et REHNTE
(note 2.3) (f3E2.3) (10,282,120) -
302,609,626 347,467,876
Sales contracts entered into during the year FRFI M HIEHEAS 4 969,770,195 671,822,226
Business combination (Note 30) 156 0F (FE30) 16,725,618 -
Revenue recognised upon the provision IR RS ERHUA
of services (824,920,153)  (414,784,736)
Revenue recognised upon the retail sales T & & S iR WA
of products (49,612,366) (37,280,066)
Refunds R (7,735,902) (2,450,010)
Revenue recognised from unutilised HARFEAENEZERHKA
prepaid packages (78,107,092) (252,121,137
Exchange adjustment P 3, 5 = (835,521) 237,593
At the end of year FXR 327,894,405 312,891,746
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e oy
25. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25. FEUBMRRKRAKFTEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial (@) #HEBBARRERABNEBIIE -
position represents:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Provision for tax for the year FRTIE R 40,467,146 36,384,294
Provisional tax paid [RENECEST A (29,038,591) (46,221,112)
11,428,555 (9,836,818)
Current tax recoverable AU Bl BN EARR 18 = (16,072,807)
Current tax payable FE BN ERFL 18 11,428,555 6,235,989
11,428,555 (9,836,818)
(b) Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (b) EEBIE(EE) EE

Temporary difference between
depreciation and the related
depreciation allowance

TERERITERE
ZENERFEE

2017 2016

—E—tF S ANCS

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At 1 April R A —A (498,808) 1,051,008

Deferred tax credited to profit FAREZEAFTA

or loss during the year (note 11) HEIERIE (F1EE11) (691,580) (2,449,906)

Business combination (note 30) %60 (H3E30) 2,836,603 -
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZA=Z+—BRGAME
consolidated statement of financial position  #i3% 3% A HE SR AR E T IE

at 31 March =N 1,646,215 (498,808)

EEBRERASEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

25.

16

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of
financial position

25, ZEMBRRERANAEH @)

RE BN RV IR

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deferred tax assets recognised in the RER B B SRR R FERA
consolidated statement of financial position ~ JEIEF 1B & & (1,461,626) (637,917)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the AR B B SRR R FE R
consolidated statement of financial position — EEFLIBE (& 3,107,841 139,109
1,646,215 (498,808)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong and the PRC
of HK$32,072,975 (2016: HK$40,672,719) subject to
agreement by the local tax authorities. The tax losses are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies from which the losses arose, except
for tax losses arising in the PRC of HK$1,917,870 (2016:
HK$2,644,138), which will be expired within 3-5 years.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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REBELEEEBRPENIEEE (BT
B REEERE) 5832,072,9758 T(=
T — X4 1 40,672,719/87T) ° XS FHIAE
BAERAANKEEEEENRARZR
RIERTRF) - HEERBRELENTIEEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B s P T
26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26. RtEHERE
At 31 March 2017, the Group had obligations under finance R-ZEBE—+F=ZA=+—8 XE£EEHE
leases repayable as follows: Nt EHEAEDT
2017 2016
—E-t% 5%
Present value of Present value of
the minimum  Total minimum the minimum Total minimum

lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
RERE RERE REHE &EHE
NRRE EE3 NRHRME NRER

HK$ HKS$ HKS HKS

B BT BT BT

Within 1 year 1ER 342,714 366,912 - -
After 1 year but within 2 years TEREE2ER 353,975 366,912 - -
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FL HESER 227,749 230,185 - -
581,724 597,097 - -

924,438 964,009 - -

Less: total future interest expenses B RRFISRR 8% (39,571) -
Present value of lease obligations HERENRE 924,438 -

EEBRERASEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS

(a

27. B - RERERE

Movements in components of equity

(@) HE@FD BB

The reconciliation between the opening and closing RNEBRZ DA ERNEIW L HIKR

16

balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated RSN GEEEREFHR - AR 7]
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of BRI =B REME BEZFER
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the HIRMZBFIREIMT
Company’s individual components of equity between the
date of incorporation and the end of the year are set out
below:
Share held
for share Employee
Share  Contribution award  share-based
premium reserve scheme compensation
Share (note 27 (note 27 reserve reserve  Accumulated
capital (d)(@) (d)(iv) (note27(d)(v)) (note27(d)(vi)) losses Total
ARARE
TrEREN  SRAXAH
B3 EE LERE BEORD REEWERRK
(W7 (Wrtar (M7 (ko7
B (d)6i) (d)iv)) (d)v) (d)vi)) ZithR @t
Notes HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
fizk BT B BT BT BT B BT
Balance at 7 July 2015 RZE-RFtAtA
(date of incorporation) Gk
ok
Changes in equity for the period ~~ REIZ-E—1&E
ended 31 March 2016: =ZA=1-H
MR REE -
Issuance of shares before initial RERAREER
public offering Bl 27(c)(i), (i 11,000 - 7 - - - 11,007
Repurchase of shares before initial A &R ABEER]
public offering BERR 27(c)fi) (3,650) = - - - - (3,650)
Dividends declared BERRE 27(0) - - - - - (60,000,000) (60,000,000)
Shares issued under initial public BB R ARRERT
offering, net of share issuance Bt - BRI BT
eXpenses 53 27(c)(iv) 2,450 703,435,028 - - - - 703,437,478
Loss and total comprehensive FABER
income for the year Sl ONCE - - - - - (21,308,482) (21,308,482)
Balance at 31 March 2016 and R-BE-—E
1 April 2016 ZA=t-HR
- EmA-A
MR 9,800 703,435,028 7 - - (81,308,482) 622,136,353
Changes in equity for the year HEZZ X
ended 31 March 2017: =ZR=1-H
FEERES:
Issuance of share BkG 27(0)) 8 2,250,361 - - - - 2,250,369
Purchase of shares for SR REBIEE
share award scheme &y 28 - - - (92,162,744) - - (92,162,744)
Recognition of equity-settied RN EREE
share-based compensation: IR BEREMNS
share award and share option R17 12 B R B 28,29 - - - - 14,859,281 - 14,859,281
Vesting of shares under RERR1 R
share award scheme FBRI 28 - - - 11,464,621  (12,083,180) 618,559 -
Dividends declared BEEREE 27(b) - - - - - (90,125302) (90,125,302)
Loss and total comprehensive FREEREE
income for the year WAEE - - = = = (6,402,331)  (6,402,331)
Balance at 31 March 2017 RZB—+F
ZA=t—RALH 9,808 705,685,389 7 (80,698,123) 2,776,101  (177,217,556) 450,555,626
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27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS AR I ot

27. B - BERRE @)

DIVIDENDS (continued)
(b) Dividends b) BE
() Dividends payable by the Company to equity () ALAFESERBRRENORE :

shareholders:

As at 31 March

R=A=t+-AH
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTRF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interim dividends declared and paid of B2 & &R R 5 G
HK7.50 cents per ordinary Share L@k 750 B (ZF—RF -
(2016: HK12.58 cents per ordinary SRR AA 12.58 81l
share) 73,562,024 124,441,636
Final dividend and special dividend RIS BR R R B E RIS
proposed after the end of the Reporting & 45 BIIR% & & 1% L iE A%
Period of HK12.90 cents per ordinary 12.90 B (ZT—RF
Share) (2016: HK1.91 cents per FhE B 1.9180)
ordinary Share) 126,526,683 18,733,796
200,088,707 143,175,432

The final dividend and special dividend proposed
after the end of the Reporting Period has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the Reporting
Period.
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the
year:

P IR R 1R BK 3% 2 R H
P B R Bl BRB 1) R e
FAREAREE -

F-PBRFERLEENMTAR
AESERRORE  REAFE
RERIRAY

(ii)

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—®—tF —TAF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Final dividend in respect of the U BRFERARKE
previous financial year, approved RERHEE KR B
and paid during the year, of 1.91 Bl (=T —7RF
HK1.91 cents per share BRZHBW)
(2016: Nil cents per Share) 18,733,796 -
i B g A F]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR M R

27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

16

DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital

27. B - BERERE

31 March 2017

(c) B

(#)

31 March 2016

R=Z-t§=A=+-H RZZ—R"E=A=1—H
Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HK$
REAHE BT OIE ! BT

Authorised EE
Ordinary Shares of HHRAE{E0.00001 BT

HK$0.00001 each L B 38,000,000,000 380,000 38,000,000,000 380,000
Ordinary Shares, issued EER oRTRER

and fully paid
At 1 April REA—H 980,000,000 9,800 - -
Issuance of new Share before PO R &R AR E R

and share sub-division (i DIREETIR () - - 100 -
Effect of share sub-division i) R DR 2 i) - - 99,900 1
Issuance of new Shares before RERLRBEERE

initial public offering but after N RIS

share sub-division (i) AR (i) - - 1,099,900,000 10,999
Repurchase of Shares before iniiall ~ R & A AR EERE

public offering but after share RRHAHEED

sub-dlvision (il 11 i B - (365,000,000 (3,650)
Shares issued under initial public BB BN AHEE

offering (iv) BETRHRN (v) - - 245,000,000 2,450
Issuance of new Shares (v) BIHRM V) 827,000 8 - -
At 31 March R=ZA=1+—H 980,827,000 9,808 980,000,000 9,800
The holders of ordinary Shares are entitled to receive ERIEFAE AGRKETEE RO

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at general meetings of the
Company. All ordinary Shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

The Company’s issued and fully paid shares as at 31
March 2017 included 35,995,770 shares held in trust by
the trustee under the share award scheme.

(i)

(i)

The Company is an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman. Islands
on 7 July 2015 with an authorised share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each, 1 nil paid Share was issued to the
Controlling Shareholder. There was no authorised
and issued capital as at 31 March 2015 since the
Company has not been incorporated on 31 March
2015.

On 18 September 2015, additional 99 Shares were
issued to the Controlling Shareholder. All shares
together with the 1 nil paid Share issued on the
date of incorporation were then transferred to
Union Medical Care Holding Limited and were fully
paid-up on 18 September 2015.

On 19 February 2016, the Company underwent a
Share sub-division whereby each of the issued or
unissued ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01
each was sub-divided into 1,000 shares of par
value of HK$0.00001 each. Upon completion of
the share sub-division, the authorised share capital
was HK$380,000, dividing into 38,000,000,000
Shares of par value of HK$0.00001 each, and
100,000 shares were issued and allotted. On the
same date, a total of 1,099,900,000 Shares were
further allotted and issued, at par.

On 26 February 2016, the Company repurchased
365,000,000 shares at par, the Company’s issued
Shares consisted of 735,000,000 Shares of par
value of HK$0.00001 each.

RIS AR I ot

27. B - BERRE @)

(©) B (@)

AR E—tF=ZA=+—HH
BEITRHERN BIEXFTARER
MBEBFEUNEEFIAFED
35,995,770 B&A% 17 ©

() ARABR-_ZE—RFLALH
EFHREREBFMKNIAER R
BRAF] - ETE IR A 380,000
7 7T 0 9 /38,000,000 f% & &
F{EO0.01 B TR AR 5 + 1= A% A%
FRIETIT1RRBBR AR o A
TE-—FAFE=ZA=+—HITE
EERBETREN  REAZR
ARAR-_ZTE—RAF=ZA=+—
B AR AAL o

RZTE—RAFANA+NR &
PR AR R 81T S HNOIRR AR 17
B KRG ERKTMALE B
BATH 1 BRR SR R A B 12 82
# T Union Medical Care Holding
Limited » R =T —HF L A
TNBEEEE -

iy RHRZE—R"F-_A+NLB XA
AEETTIRD A HF - BB RAE
0.01 BB BEITHAREITL R
& 2 #F A1,0000% & I8 @ &
0.00001 BT H g » R 5
FrIER 18 A T R AN 4 380,000
77T 0 99 /4 38,000,000,000 % &
A% T {& 0.00001 B TR B 15 » B
100,000 % & 12 B 317 K Bid 2% o
R B+ £ 5t1,099,900,000 i A%
MIREEE— T B8 R
7T °

iy RZEBE—RNFE-_A=+/H"
7N &) 4% H 8 # [ 365,000,000
BRI - NRARKE EITRG
Fh 735,000,000 A% f& ™ &
0.00001 B TR 48 A,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

17

(c) Share capital (Continued)

)

On 11 March 2016, the Company issued 245,000,000
Shares with a par value of HK$0.00001 each, at price
of HK$3.03 per share by way of a global initial public
offering to Hong Kong and international investors. Net
proceeds from such issue amounted to
HK$703,437,478 (after offsetting share issuance
expenses of HK$38,912,522) of which HK$2,450 and
HK$703,435,028 were recorded in share capital and
share premium respectively.

The holders of ordinary Shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per Share at general
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

On 18 April 2016, the Company issued 827,000
Shares at HK$3.03 per Share by way of over-
allotment Shares under the global initial public
offering to Hong Kong and International investors.
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27. B - BERRE @)

(c) BRZ&#)

(v)

RZE—XE=ZA+—8 &K
RAEBEHRFIRAMAEEN
SRIBBELHNERRNE SR
BRI% & & #5717 245,000,000 A%
R E 0.00001 78 LRI AR 1D ©
4% 4K §14 38,912,522 7 7T Hy I 17
BITH S REITHMER
T8 % 58 /703,437,478 T (E
/12,4507 7T & 703,435,028 78
T BRI AN R AR s (B rC i) o

TERFEBABRERDIAKE
KRR E  RAQNFRERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

U

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of the shares of the Company. Under the
Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of the
business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the consolidated
share capital of UGIL and a subsidiary acquired
under common control.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note 3.1.

Contribution reserve

The contribution reserve represents the difference
between the share of equity of Union Health
Services and the par value of share capital for the
issuance of new shares.

RIS AR I ot

27. B - BERRE @)

d) RENEERBH

U]

(iii)

A3 E

B fn s B 38 A8 1 A ) AL £ T (B
B BT AN A B An BT XA 15
RBZENEZR - RIEFHSEH
BRBDE - ARBBRMEEBER
AEDPIRTARBRER  HE
BEEE KRS BHE  AA
BIABRENEBEANRBERR
BREPEIEZER -

ROHEE

RO EREUGILE —K Y EEM
2R e B B A ) (B2 AR B9

B &

EXFEESMERRERE
BINEBER B RREEWINE
ER o BRI ES T PTEE
SRR -

& R
H & f# & 8 o 1h Union Health

Services FY % 1 B1 2% 77 37 A% A9 A%
AEEZERZEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

27.

17

SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v)  Shares held for share award scheme reserve

The shares held for share award scheme reserve
represents the purchase costs of shares held for
share award scheme as disclosed in note 28.

(vi) Employee share-based compensation
reserve

The employee share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payment in note 3.1.

(e) Distributability of reserves
As at 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves available

for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$450,545,818.
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(v) RRORBFEREMEEN
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RO EBEFIREENTED
B fn ¥ M TE 28 PR BE BE B R X
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. SHARE AWARD SCHEME 28.

On 26 September 2016, the Board approved the Company’s
Employees’ Share Award Scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”). Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme,
the Company has appointed a trustee for the purpose of
administering the Share Award Scheme and holding the shares
purchased for the Share Award Scheme before the award and
vesting of the same. The Company pays to the trustee from
time to time for the purchase of shares held for the Share
Award Scheme from market.

The terms of the Share Award Scheme provide for the award
of shares in the Company to employees of the Group as part
of their compensation package. Subject to the rules of the
Share Award Scheme, the Board shall determine at the time of
grant the vesting date for the relevant awarded shares.

Dividend payable to the awarded share are applied to acquire
further shares and pay the related purchase expenses and
expenses incurred by the trustee.

For awardees who cease employment with the Group before
vesting, the unvested shares are forfeited and held by the
trustee of the Share Award Scheme who may award such
shares to other awardees taking into consideration the
recommendations of the Board.

Movements in the number of awarded shares in the Company
and their related average fair values are as follows:

RIS AR I ot

WA B BT &

BN T A"FALAZF/REHAER
A e B R B2 T & ([ XD 28Rt & ) -
Rk REFERA > AR ERE—
HEFTEANAE R D 2R A 8 R ) 8’
BERFBARARRND ZBEMEBEED
Bty o RRARARRETISEE RN R
B Rt 8l M AR A AN

B R BRI R R TAKERE
RRRBEDIESEEHRMO—2D - R
B BB EI 2R EFEARETH
IREMBERRDORERD -

ENEEERNHNREABELE—TBA
Bt Bk A HERE RS B F S A R FEA BB
2R e

REBRTHEXENANEENEERE

FEROSE R - hRm REE 80
XREARE XEAURLEEE=SNH
BERREZERN R T HMEERE -

PR AL TR RBR 55 A RAMTHA
TEEBMT :

2017 2016

“2-tF G
Number of Average Number of Average
awarded fair value awarded fair value
shares per share shares per share
ERBROME SBRYIVATE ERDROHZE SRTHLTE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
At 1 Apri REA—H - = - =
Granted R 5,127,000 2.56 - -
Vested 5B (4,719,992) 2.56 - -
At 31 March W=RA=+—-H 407,008 2.56 - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by DR
28. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 28. R EBEETE (®)
Movements in the number of shares in the Company and their RARRMDEE RIBEIR D EE T 235
held under the Share Award Scheme are as follows: R B -
2017 2016
“E—tF —TNE
Number of Number of
shares held Fair value shares held Fair value
FrERHEE AVE  FERNEE AYVE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
At 1 April REUA—H - - - -
Purchased during the year FREE 35,995,770 92,162,744 - -
Vested during the year FRRE (4,719,992) (11,464,621) - -
At 31 March R=A=1+—H 31,275,778 80,698,123 - -

17

During the year, the Share Award Scheme transferred
4,719,992 shares of the Company to the awardees upon
vesting of certain awarded shares. The total cost of the vested
shares was HK$11,464,621.

The remaining vesting period of the awarded shares in the
Company outstanding as at 31 March 2017 is within 3 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 26 September 2016 whereby the directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the
Group, including directors of any Company in the Group, to
take up options at HK$3.03 consideration to subscribe for
shares of the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the share option scheme will be valid and effective
within 10 years commencing on the date on which if became
effective. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in

RIS AR I ot

29. BBRAESTE

RABRZE—RNFNLAZ T NARNE
TS AR ERERERNBED

SEEEB(BEALEEXAMNARES) AR
E3.03 B LM E - IREBARAR R
o BRIESITAE IS ET - BBIRERT 1
EEE&MEi+¢ﬁﬁ&Eﬂ S
RERTHEBEAEFNRBEALA—REB
f% - WEEUARRMEE -

shares.
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are () BRUEGRRRHFEGHDT :
as follows:
Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
IAZAR 3B R BRESHEH
Options granted to directors:
BRTESHBRKRE:
— On 26 September 2016 7,350,000  Exercisable in ten tranches from 10 years
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2026
—RZE—R"FAAZTH ol =1 e it 104
N Y = K2
—E-RF+ZA=+—H
EAfTT1E
— On 26 September 2016 80,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 4 years
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2020
—RIE-—RFAAZ+TRAE D RRFIEZ 45
RZZE—+H—-H—RAZF
—E-EF+-A=+—H
HAFRIT T
Options granted to employees:
BT EESNBRE
— On 26 September 2016 460,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 4 years
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2020
—RZE—R"FAA=+"H Al ARz M4t 44
R-ZE—tS—_H - HZE
—ZE_THE+_A=+—H
BT
Total share options granted 7,890,000

X RE AR 485t

EREREREEARAHE 175
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise

176

20, BB AETHE (@)
(b) BREHERMELETEE

prices of share options are as follows: mE
2017 2016
—g-tf “ThE
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
options  exercise price options exercise price
BREZE NETHETEE BlREZE METHTEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Outstanding at the beginning of R TE
the period - - - -
Granted during the period HNE D 7,890,000 3.03 - -
QOutstanding at the end of the period ~ EIR K 1T{E 7,890,000 3.03 - -
Exercisable at the end of the period ~ EiR AJ {7 870,000 3.03 - -

The options outstanding at 31 March 2017 had an
exercise price of $3.03 and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 9.35 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS AR I ot

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share option grants.

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 20, B ESHE (@)
(c) Fair value of share options and (c) BREAFERER
assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share AR EREERNHTESRE 2
options granted is measured by reference to the fair NEEZXEMREBRENQAFERT
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair £ o IR ERENGET AT ERE
value of the share options granted is measured based on “HEAHEFBEERN(ZEERIERTE
a binomial option pricing model, which takes into account ENFBEBEMNELXR)ZE - B
the suboptimal exercise factors and the post-vesting exit NS FEHRERAERNZ2EY - —
rates. The contractual life of the share option is used as EREEER DT RTERRETEDN
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise A= o
are incorporated into the binomial lattice model.
Fair value of share options and assumptions BREATFERER
26 September 26 September
2016 2016
A= ZE-RF
NAZ+"B NAZ+<H
Fair value at measurement date FrERHNATEE $1.54 $0.90
Share price (B 3.03 3.03
Exercise price 1T (E 3.03 3.03
Expected volatility TEERR 1R 65.673% 53.802%
Option life B FH 10 years 4 years
10 4%
Expected dividends TEEARR B Nil = Nil =
Risk-free interest rate (based on yield EE SRR (RE BT
of the Hong Kong government BEHFNBAGTE)
bonds) 1.025% 0.601%

TE R IR T3 A IR BB R 2 i 19 T
HREMFEZELRBAEE W5t
BARAREMGEZ AR BRIKE
HEEL AR - AHRE TIRE LK
B8 - TE2HBRREBTERE
FERNHENME -

BT RB RIS R -t iRM
REtBEFRESRENEH AR AT
ERTEZEEA - 2R BRE
I S TS R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

30.

17

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
NYMG

On 23 September 2016, Union Chiropractic and Physiotherapy
Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with the New York
Medical Group (Pain Center) Limited and its fellow subsidiaries
(together referred to as “NYMG”). NYMG is one of the largest
groups of chiropractors, physiotherapists and other health
professionals in Hong Kong which specialise in the
musculoskeletal and nervous systems. Under the terms of the
agreement, the Company agreed to acquire 51% shareholding
in the issued share capital of NYMG.

The transaction was completed on 7 October 2016 with total
consideration of HK$33,512,505, upon which NYMG has
become an indirect subsidiary of the Company.

The acquisition will bring synergistic benefits to the Group’s
strategy to diversify the Group’s business portfolio and provide
a new source of income to the Group. The goodwill of
HK$24,545,805 arising from the acquisition is attributable to
acquired economies of scale expected from combining the
operations of the Group and NYMG. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

The Group incurred acquisition-related cost of HK$132,600 on
7 October 2016. These costs have been charged to other
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year.
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30. ¥%56f

NYMG

R-ZZT—XFEAA =+ =H" Unon
Chiropractic and Physiotherapy Limited ( 7%
NEHEE2ENB QA ) ENew York
Medical Group (Pain Centre) Limited % £ [
ZMB AR (HBAINYMGD I LEEH
# o NYMGEREBZAAR  WEABELE
HmEEEXABEE . — ZEIABHR
BIREAFHTEMNER - BREBHEGER - K
AN AR EUWENYMGE TR A 51% AR HE

RER_FBE—RFE+ALAZERK BRE
/33,512,505 7T + Z ENYMGRK AR A
RIREENE AR °

WEKAREBL s HEKES RELEN
W BB B 2R B8 A5 2R 13 R Al 25 BB E A
B8 224,545,805 TR B & A KB 8
NYMG E I TEET VIS B AR B 488 - FTRERR
R EFLATE R M = TR Ak o

AEER-_F—A"F+ALHELUER
B AR 132,600/ T ° X FMAGT AFAER
BREmRMEMAX -



NYMG (Continued)

30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of NYMG

as at the date of acquisition is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS AR I ot

30. ¥¥%56t@m

NYMG (&)

NYMG R 1B B B AT B A B R B (B 28
FEDT

Total

BET

Notes HK$

B sE BT

Property, plant and equipment VI - BB NERE 13 1,483,206
Intangible assets BIVEE 15 8,907,318
Inventory 558 250,244
Trade receivables H 5 WA 479,470
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIR « 12e KA MR GRIE 10,820,563
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEEY 8,736,736
Trade payables B S5 EMNFOR (115,049)
Other payables and accruals HEMENFIERETER (11,003,359)
Current tax payable FE{ST BN ER R 1E (495,893)
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE (1,469,707)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value BRAFEFENAHENE EFEEE 17,593,529
Non-Controlling interests FEIE AR M AR (8,620,829)
Goodwill on acquisition IR R P B 14 24,545,805
Satisfied by cash LIRS &E 33,518,505
Cash consideration ReRE (33,518,505)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FTiER R e MRS EED 8,736,736

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included & EZBMERSTETBIENR S

in cash flows used in investing activities

KB EEYRLIFER

(24,781,769)

Since the acquisition, the NYMG contributed HK$20,538,935
to the Group’s revenue and profit HK$6,004,689 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 31 March 2017, the revenue of the Group and the profit
of the Group for the year would have been HK$40,925,649
and HK$10,122,896, respectively.

In addition to the acquisition of NYMG, the Group acquired
other subsidiaries which are insignificant to the consolidated
financial statements and generated net cash outflow totalling
HK$3,711,857.

In aggregate, the Group generated net cash outflow totalling
HK$28,493,626 from acquisition of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 March 2017.

BWEBUEL B2 _T—+&=A=+—
BIEFENYMGO R AAEEKRA KRGS
st M B 420,538,935/ 7T 126,004,689 7T ©

WeaHRBEE_E—+tF=ZA=+—H1t
FEMNEE  AAREEFRKA RiaF &
7 Bl 540,925,64978 7T 210,122,896/ 7T ©

B I BENYMGHN - AE B x4
BRI TAEENNBRARAIRELARS
I REEAETS,711,857 T ©

BHE - ZT—+HF=A=1+—"HIEFE &
SERWENBARELERSRL FEE
128,493,626 7 7T, ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

31.

32.

33.

18

MATERIAL NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, interim dividend of
HK$64,441,636 were settled through the current accounts
maintained between the Group and the Controlling
Shareholder.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

31.

32.

BEAFREXRS
RBE-F-—AE=A=+—ALFE"
h BARR £.64,441,686 78 Ui i AN & [ M 2
BRI 2 P o SRBR B A o

HREE

RBERR > WENEREMBEHRR AR
BEOIABENT

2017 2016
—E—t5F —E-REF
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
Bank guarantee given to a credit M= A R EIR R IRITIE(R
card institution 2,000,000 2,000,000

As at 31 March 2017, the maximum liability of the Group under
the bank guarantee given to a credit card institution was
HK$2,000,000 (2016: HK$2,000,000).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its beauty service centres, office
premises and warehouses under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for these properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from 1 to 5 years.

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

33.

R-EBE—+F=A=+—0 KEEHE
ArEERENBTERBATHNERSAE
/2,000,000 7t ( ZZ — 75 4F : 2,000,000
BIT) °

REHEERRE
AEEREEERERFHAREETES

RIEH D WAMEREE - LEWER
LEFHEBANT125F -

IRESE R A HEE A TH A N H DA 21 B
H 7 R 2R FE o 89 S (X FH & R IE A2 5E 51 1A
™

2017 2016

—E—+t5F e ANCS

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 86,859,505 40,823,424
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZRF(BEEEMSF) 64,382,744 49,533,469
151,242,249 90,356,893
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed

3. BHAIRS

RIS AR I ot

(@) BRUBRREMHBIAFLNRS R

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the EIN  REBFENBEEHEIA N5
following material transactions with related parties during Ev R
the year:
2016
—E—LF ZE-REF
Notes HK$
(i3 BT
Companies beneficially owned HYLEEEREENAT
by Tang Chi Fai
Sales of skincare and beauty HEEENEDER
products (i) 149,455
Purchases of skincare and beauty BEEENEREMK
products and medical BRERM
consumables 0] 126,955
Commission expenses kb (i) 61,597
Registered practitioner expenses Al b (iii 272,750
Rental expenses He% (iv) 144,000
Companies beneficially owned HYLEGREER
by the spouse of Tang Chi Fai BENAT
Sales of skincare and beauty HEEERERER
products 0] 611,030
Purchases of skincare and beauty BEEERZRELR
products and medical BEAEM
consumables 0] 10,999,940 12,382,171
Purchases of property, EEWE  BENMERE
plant and equipment V) 867,820
Rental expenses HeMx (iv) 288,000
Insurance brokerage service fee RERELREE (vi) 422,975
Equipment maintenance service fee RBHERSE (vi) 738,644
Travelling expenses EIRFAS (vili) 204,282
Notes: MiGE
() Sales and purchases were made with the related parties (i) HERBE DIRIEE 1 E B R
according to the mutually agreed pricing. B {EH o
(i) The Commission expenses were charged from related parties (i e R THIREE T T & &K
according to mutually agreed terms. 5677 Y.
(i) The registered practitioner expenses were reimbursed to the (i)  FEMEERX VRERRAEERE
related parties on an actual cost basis. TR o
ERABIEREEERAT

FEHE 2017 181



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B MIRE

7

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

18

(@)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv) The rental expenses were charged from the related parties on
an actual cost basis.

(V) Items of property, plant and equipment were purchased from
a related party according to mutually agreed terms.

(Vi) Insurance brokerage service fee was charged from the related
party according to mutually agreed terms.

(vi)  Equipment maintenance service fee was charged from the
related party according to mutually agreed terms.

(vii)  Travelling expenses were charged from the related party
according to mutually agreed terms.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

All members of key management personnel are directors
of the Company, and their compensation is disclosed in
note 9.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the related party
transactions in respect of purchases of skincare and
beauty products and medical consumables and
purchases of property, plant and equipment from a
related company beneficially owned by the spouse of the
Controlling Shareholder as disclosed in Note 34(a)
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which the disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided
under section Continuing Connected Transaction of the
Report of the Directors. The remaining related party
transactions disclosed in note 34(a) are exempted from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14(A) of the
Listing Rules as they are below the de minimis threshold
under Rule 14A.76(1).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amount of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

As at 31 March 2017

Financial assets

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

35. ZEFEITNEMTA

BAFE
FFABER
SREE
Designated
as such
upon initial Loans and
recognition receivables Total
R TRRRE i £79)3
FHBREE FEW =R Hst
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Trade receivables 2 5 EWRIA - 52,142,746 52,142,746
Prepayments, deposits and BRFE - - Zek
other receivables H e FIE - 49,969,210 49,969,210
Financial assets at fair value AT EE ABRED
through profit or loss TRIEE 499,745,689 - 499,745,689
Pledged time deposits BT BTN - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Time deposits with original REEEBBAEIEAR
maturity over 3 months TFHFER - 158,712,370 158,712,370
Cash and cash equivalents HeERELZEEY - 200,644,165 200,644,165
499,745,689 463,468,491 963,214,180
e oy 183
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. ##ZEEEs7MWEm T A @)

18

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2017 (Continued)

R-ZE—tFE=A=+—8@®)

Financial liabilities TREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
BB R
ARNESBEE
HK$
BT
Trade payables B S TR 6,468,211
Other payables and accruals HAb R IB R EFTE 52,145,544
Bank guarantee given to a credit card institution [15 A REB IR MR IRTTHER 2,000,000
60,613,755

As at 31 March 2016

Financial assets

R-ZB-R"F=ZA=1+—H

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

BRAFERA
BamemEE
Designated
as such
upon initial Held for Loans and
recognition trading receivables Total
R IR TR 5/ 954
1EHBRETE RHIEER JEW IR et
HKS$ HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT
Trade receivables Z 5 WA - - 32484344 32,484,344
Prepayments, deposits and BRFIE - e REA
other receivables FE W R TE - - 37,151,235 37,151,235
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRN
through profit or loss CRIEE 18,017,766 85,499,126 - 103,516,892
Pledged time deposits BEEATHER - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Time deposits with original JREIER A BB 38 A /Y
maturity over 3 months FHATE R = - 500,000,000 500,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLZEY - - 354,717,582 354,717,582

18,017,766 85,499,126 926,353,161 1,029,870,053

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2016 (Continued)

RIS AR I ot

35. REFE TN E @)

R-ZZB—XRNE=HA=+—H@#)

Financial liabilities Eal=lh=Ri
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R SR AR
AERSRAE
HK$
BT
Trade payables B SRR 5,214,323
Other payables and accruals HAtb e RIB R EETE 70,207,754
Bank guarantee given to a credit card institution M= AR EBIRERITER 2,000,000
77,422,077

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

36. AFERAFEEBR
TRMAREESRTANAFEEE
¥
BRATVEFENEE

Fair value measurement using

ERATIEETATENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBTE EXTHE EXTUEER
P ER BASE BARE
(B1BH) ($2EH) (%3ER) @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT BT
As at 31 March 2017 RZE—tE=f=+-H
Unlisted bond investment, RATEENE LMEFEE
certificate of deposits and FREREE — NG
coupon note at fair value — REELBHET
designated as such upon
initial recognition - 499,745,689 - 499,745,689
As at 31 March 2016 R-E-X"E=A=+-H
Unlisted fund investments and certificate IR/A A EHFF LHIREE S
of deposits at fair value — designated K77 E — M IIAE R E L
as such upon initial recognition BlEETE 85,499,126 18,017,766 - 103,516,892
e oy 185
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36.

37.

18

B MIRE

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The fair values of the unlisted fund investments are based on
quoted market prices.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements

The unlisted bond investment, certificate of deposits and
coupon note (2016: unlisted fund investments and certificate of
deposits) are not quoted in an active market and may be
subject to restrictions on redemptions. The fair value is
determined by discounting the contractual cash flows. The
discount rate used is derived from the relevant government
yield curve as at the end of the reporting period plus credit
spread.

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at the end of the reporting period.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk and debt price and investment fund
risk. The directors review and agree policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group was involved in the provision of medical, quasi-
medical and traditional beauty services and the sale of skincare
and beauty products and receivable balances are mainly from
financial institutions in respect of credit card receivables.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis by
senior management and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. In addition, the Group’s bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

36.

37.

A

_|{|

BERAFERER &)

FA-FIEREF2ER AL ERAFE
AEERE URYEREREENRERE

L= kA

BEETEIERBAREL -

FLTREESHRFEUT
2% o

BRIFEFERANMGER
ﬁ&?x%%

FEMESFERE FRERER(ZF—X
FFLTREES NERE) HERTS
WHERE AT XBBRIRS - 2FET
REBRAHWASREETE - IAREAEXA
BERRBEERTRARMRE  ZNEE
BE e

THRATVEFENEREERERE

AEERERARBEHRAIENSHTA
MEEERERNBERRNRATFELES
REH -

CRIEMREREBZERBR

AEESRTAMEEANTIERARAEER

Rl RBETRRMEBERERER
TRk EEEHLEARERLFRARD

B - S AR -
FERR

AEBEHRERMUER EEFEREARER
RIGARHEEE R XD EM - MRYK
REMREER A REENERREUR
A - RURIEG SRR ERERESE -
AN £2 B S SRR A R0 R EK o Bt
AEENRITERTFNORLEEDESE
BEMARIFHIIRTT -
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RIS AR I ot

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. TRIAKREEEERBE @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE &)
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from AREEEHFHENELENEMEREE
the default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure NEERREAERSERLEECREEN
equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets. AREE -
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to BREAKE ZHEWNFEMEYSNEE
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note B\ B B — 2 F 2 EUE I B R B IS s R B
18 to the financial statements. F18e
Liquidity risk REE SR
The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash AREBFY IR EZEEREERAETEN
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management HeRRESEEYWKE  UBNAEED
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of BENRBREBSRERINTE - E1EE
fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors THEMERNFIEHEEESET K -
its working capital requirements regularly.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, based on REBHEHABENRSYN AR ©EN
the contractual undiscounted amounts, are as follows: FEAB RN ¢
As at 31 March 2017 R-EBE—ttF=H=+—H
Within
1 year or
on demand
BER1FAR
REREER
HK$
BT
Trade payables E SN TR 6,468,211
Other payables and accruals H b e B K BT E A 52,145,544
Bank guarantee given to a credit card institution M5 A REBIR A IRITER 2,000,000
60,613,755

EEBRERASEERAT
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. eREKEERBEREEK @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
As at 31 March 2016 R=-ZE—-X"E=A=+—H
Within
1 year or
on demand
AR FAL
BEREE
HKS
BIT
Trade payables H SR FOR 5,214,323
Financial liabilities included in other T AH M FRIE N FEET B R A
payables and accruals SREE 70,207,754
Bank guarantee given to a credit card institution M5 A REBIR A IRTTHER 2,000,000
77,422,077
Investment fund risk REESE K
Investment fund risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash KREECRRAKREESHNAFEIAKRK
flows of investment funds will fluctuate due to changes in the ReREMEBEELFNERESMEE
prices of underlying securities. The maximum risk resulting WER - REERSHEENE=RRER
from investment funds equals their fair value. EREQFE -

1 8 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Investment fund risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the unlisted bond investment,
certificate of deposits and coupon note (2016: unlisted fund
investment and certificate of deposits) to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax.
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the
retained profits.

RIS AR I ot

tREAMEEEERBE®

REECEM#®)

TRIVRERA A B ERSETE ARG
AERABRBEZENBERT  AEERKRS
HAREHERNRBIIELTERRE 7
RELEBR(ZE—RF  FLTREES
REHRE) R FEZEEE5%NGRE - It
HAEENBREREENRINTEZE -

Carrying amount Change in profit

of investments before tax
REMN BREBE AT F
REE K& B
HK$ HK$
BT BT
As at 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF=A=1+—H
Unlisted bond investment, BATERENIELD
certificate of deposits and BHRE TRELER —
coupon note at fair value — R RS VEY
designated as such upon initial BT
recognition 499,745,689 24,987,284
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—RE=HA=+—H
Unlisted fund investments and certificate 32 A P EEHE83E FHEEES
of deposits at fair value — designated RAFHE — RV FERR
as such upon initial recognition EREREETE 103,516,892 5,175,845
Capital management EXRER

The Group’s main objectives with respect to capital
management include maintaining a solid and stable financing
structure to support its ongoing business growth so that it can
continue to maximise shareholders’ return, and providing an
adequate return to the shareholders by pricing products and
services commensurate with the level of risk.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to the shareholders, return capital
to the shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.

AEBEREAEENTIERREESHET
RERERE  USHHSEN XKL
EUEEAFESREREHZAL LR
BB E m R R E B RE SRR R IK
FHEBRSBREHRITRORE

AEETHEAREEHEREBLRL
BERANEE RAABEERNRRFIES 2
EHRE - REFAFHBREARE A&
B 7] Bt SH B M AR AE BB R - R
REBEARLBITHR - AKE L EmEH
TSN E AT K - FRALEHE
BEANBR  BRIURBEHEMNEE -

EEBRERASEERAT
FEHE 2017 1 89



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M R

38. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

19

38. D AMBARREK

FINANCIAL POSITION
2017 2016
—B—tF A
Note HK$ HK$
BeE BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSET IRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBEARMNERE 8 8
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amount due from a related party  fEUL — 42 a8 77 I8 422,711,591 -
Cash and cash equivalents BENIBSEEY 27,844,027 706,461,328
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals E At eI IR R IERT B A - 13,655,736
Amount due to a related party e — R BEH: 5 A - 70,669,247
- 84,324,983
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 450,555,618 622,136,345
NET ASSETS BEERE 450,555,626 622,136,353
EQUITY % 27(a)
Share capital A& 2 9,808 9,800
Reserves B 450,545,818 622,126,553
450,555,626 622,136,353

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

28 June 2017

Lee Gabriel
TER
Director

EF

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

RZE—tFNAZ T N\BARESESHH

R RETIE

Yeung Chin Wan
BRY
Director

EF
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39. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY 39. R—EBNEBATINIKRE
The following list contains only the particular of subsidiaries UTEZBEHNTESERER L 24 -
which principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of BESBEZHEBARGFES -
the Group.
Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of Issued held by the Group
incorporation/ share capital/ TEEBENER
establishment/ paid-up REBA
Name of subsidiaries operation share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
AT/ BRARA/
WEARAR R/ E$% BERA ER Mg IZER
Able Lead Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision for healthcare services
(BRBRAT) R 13T REER R
AllUnion International Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
(BMERREERAR) B 187 REBR
Best Union (China) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision of medical, quasi-medical
(B (R BRAF) BiE 1AT and traditional beauty services
and sale of skincare and beauty
products

RUER EERREAXA
BB RHERE RXAER

Doctor Rebom Cosmetic Surgery Centre Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10 - 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
(EXBEENTOERAA) Bk 10T RREEES

Doctor Reborn Cosmetic Surgery Institute Limited  Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
(EXEBEEATLERAA) &3 10,0007 RESEES

Dr. Pro and Dr. Reborn Medical Aesthetics Macau MOP26,000 - 85%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Centre Limited E 26,000 %37 beauty services
(BEZBEXRTLERLA) RUBEZTRE

Grand Best Union Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of administrative services
(BISBARAA) &3 187 RETHRE

Grand Best Union Services Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Investment holding

& 1B RARR

Guangzhou Zhuansheng Aesthetic Medical Beauty ~ The PRC (note 1) RMB10,000,000 (note 1) - 100%  Provision of medical services
Clinic Company Limited (M) ARE REBERE
(BMSAXERXAFY HARAT) 10,000,007z (KizE1)

EEBRERASEERAT
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39. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 39. A— BB QTN IRE @)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of Issued held by the Group
incorporation/ share capital/ REERENER
establishment/ paid-up REBEAL
Name of subsidiaries operation share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
AV BRIRA/
(). P B/ E$4% BRRE E# B IEER
Guangzhou Zhuansheng Enterprise Management  The PRC (note 2) RMB500,000 - 100%  Provision of medical services
Company Limited R () ARE RUBERE
(BMELLXERERAT) 500,0007%
Jade Master International Limited British Virgin Islands US$10 - 100%  Investment holding
RERNEHE 10%7 RERR
Medic One Surgery Center Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision for management services
B AT REEERE
New Elte Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 100%  Provision of medical and tradtional
(MBEZERLA) Bk 1057 beauty senvices and sale of
skincare and beauty products
REBERERZDRIAR
HERERZREM
New Union International Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
(MBEREAERAR) B 1B REERRH
New York Medical Group Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 51%  Provision of chiropractic services
HNBESE Bl 1,000/ - 51%  REAERE
Professional Aesthetic Surgery Gentre Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision for management services
(BXBERPHLERAA) & 187 REERRH
Professional Medical and Surgery Center Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
(EHBERRTLERAF) & 18T REERRH
Team Expert Investment Limited British Virgin Islands USS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
AERNES 157 REBR
The One Dental Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 100%  Provision of dental services
B 10087 BT MR
The One Dental Plus Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of dental services
& 1B BT RIR

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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39. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 39. A—RBEIM B QA THNIRE @)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of Issued held by the Group
incorporation/ share capital/ FEERENER
establishment/ paid-up REEAL
Name of subsidiaries operation share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
AL/ BRARA/
MEAREH R/ E$4% BERA E# B TEEE
Union Dental Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
RBRTES %7 RERR
Union Dermatory Holding Limited British Virgin Islands USS1 - 100%  Investment holding
AERNHS 1£7 RERR
Union Enchanting Limited British Virgin Islands USS1 - 100%  Investment holding
(BARCARAT) EERNHES 1£7 RERR
Union (Group) Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$29,608 - 100%  Provision of medical,

(BA (RB)REERAA) B 29,60877T quasi-medical and traditional
beauty services and sale of
skincare and beauty products

REEE  EEEREAFR
RENREEER REDER
Union Harvest Corporation Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision of marketing services
(2ERRAHA) B3 187 RETSEERE

Union Heatth Services Holding Limited British Virgin Islands USS1 100% - Investment holding

HERNHS 1£7 RERR
Union Honor International Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of management services

(BEERCXERAR) Bl 10,0077 REERRE

Union Laboratory Healthcare Limited British Virgin Islands USS1 - 100%  Investment holding

EERNHS 1£7 RELR
Union Medical Association Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Owner of trademarks

B 187 AREAA
Union Medical Capital Management Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100%  Investment holding

RERTES 157 REBR
Union Preventive Healthcare Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100%  Investment holding

EERNHES 1% RERR
Note 1: The subsidiary is a limited liability company in the PRC. The MizE1 : B AR ATRENBRAR - ZHIEAR

registered capital of this subsidiary was not paid-up as at 31 HNEMEAR T —AF=A=1+—8H
March 2016. RER o

Note 2: The subsidiary is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise in the PRC. Mizt2 : ZMBARATREIINGEE R -

EEBRERASEERAT
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40.

41.

19

B SRR M R

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 March 2017, the directors consider the immediate parent
of the Group to be Union Medical Care Holding Limited, which
is incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling party of
the Group to be the Controlling Shareholder. None of the
parties produces financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2017 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

40. EERRARERA

41.

RZE—tF=A=1+—H EERAEX
%IE’]E&# AIANREE XS
A3 #9Union Medical Care Holding Limited
MAE BN SEERT BERBKRER - 25
BRI AREAEAREANTBRE

CHEMAEHRRBEE-F—LtF
EAZ+-HLEFELERNE
A MERRBRENTRSE

BEZFMBBRERTEBY  FES5E
AQE%WQE{J&ﬁﬁM ety

B

ARBE-_FT—EF=ZA=T—"RHLFE
E&ﬁlﬁlﬂﬂfﬁé&ﬁﬁﬁ%#ﬁi‘%?ﬂ%ﬁﬁ Hep

AIREEASEBAERRE RSN T -

Effective for

accounting

periods beginning

on or after

R B 2 2 FH %

WEHEEN

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statemem‘ of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017

BEEGERNETROER] - HemEx - #F1E —E—+F—H—H

Amendments to H KAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets 1 January 2017
for unrealised losses

BERGTENEA2RRER] - gl - HRREL BB FEHIER E —tF—H—H

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

BERMBHRELERNFEIR 2@ A —NF—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and

measurement of share-based payment transactions

ERMBREENF 2|/NER] - UROBELZ K - AR BEEZ

AR G2 7B REE
HKFRS 16, Leases

EEUBMEERNE 165 HE

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the new standards which
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are
discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining whether
to adopt any of these new requirements before their effective
date and which transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 16, Leases

In respect of lease accounting for lessees, the current policy is
set out in note 3.1. Under HKFRS 16, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will account
for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the
lessee will recognise and measure lease liability at the present
value of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise
a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of
this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease
term. As disclosed in note 33, at 31 March 2017, the Group’s
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amounted to HK$151,242,249. Most of these
amounts may therefore need to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS
16 is adopted.

41.
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EEMEHRRBE-T—LtF
ZAZ+t-BLEFELENNE
AoHEARZRENTRESE

ZRER B IE ¥ (A L FHE BT K3 R )R FE
REENERTEE - AREZTNERS -
R D T E A BE AR B M IS R B A
BERFE BHZENE-—FPFBRTX
AfEm o AN ASEEE AR TEREE - AR
HEERRAREENE-—STE ANEH
MMEEMBEMANEERDRMNZERN
BIE - BRI ZBIEJEA R ERIAT
Rz BT ER  S§EHETEERA
A o

ERMBREENE165; > HE
BAREBRANBEESER  ERRESH
RIS - RIBEB B BIREERIFE 16
R ABTBEIMERERKLER
ok SEREEAEMNBRR  ABA
BENEZEMRERESFTEE R AERM
MARARERE  ARABNRHEE
BIEAPRSEAREAENRNRERR
MEERESEE  WiSwRMAENERE]
BE NRZEENABVRERR £HA
AEERBEAEREELHRETNFE
M RERAEEENTTE - MIELRBERIL
R EERAAEANELANSEHEMR
TR ERTECE - K FESSATIHE - K
—E—tF=A=1+—H KEENTA
BHEgEHEE TARKERENRA
151,242,249 71 - —BIRAB BV RS
ERFE165  REHZEFE AT
THEREHREAE  WHEREENEHE
BE -
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DEFINITION

“AGM”
[BRRBEFAE]

“Articles of the Association”
[4RB=124A)]

“Board”

B

“CG Code”

[EERTE

“Chinese Medicine Ordinance”
[ B& B2 (& |

“Chinese Medicine Practitioner(s)”

[ 8

“Clinical Microbiologist”
[BRAR R ER

“Company”

RN

“Dentist(s)”

[F %

“Dentists Registration Ordinance”
[CoF B s B ) |

“Director(s)”

[E%]
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the annual general meeting of the Company proposed to be held on 22
August 2017
FR T LFENA T ZHBETNA R REAFTAE

the Company’s articles of the association
RAAIRI B EIZAAY

the board of Directors

E=xg

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, as amended from time to time

ETHRRIM 14 BB B R B AT B (B TEHERT)

the Chinese Medicine Ordinance (Chapter 549 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
FBEDIFE 549 B B IO (KRBT - fFE sk AE 77 B2

the Registered Chinese Medicine Practitioner and the Listed Chinese
Medicine Practitioner who are employed by our Group

AEEIE BB LK T E

a Hong Kong Doctor who is registered under the Specialist Register of the
Hong Kong Medical Council for clinical microbiology and infection kept in
accordance with the Medical Registration Ordinance

RIRB(BE A TGN BEFNBEEBBEZESHRAMEY LRLEHERE
2NN ESE 4

Union Medical Healthcare Limited, an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands with limited liability
EEBEERESEARAR  RASHESTMRINERRER AR

person(s) who is (are) registered on the General Register kept in accordance
with the Dentists Registration Ordinance

R CF B D) Hir e T art e £ MM AL

the Dentists Registration Ordinance (Chapter 156 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BBEDIF 156 BT B EMEHDETERERT ~ fiFEsk A 77 R E2K)

the director(s) of the Company

ARRER



“Doctor(s)”

[E&4 ]

“General Practitioner(s)”
[ LB 8 A

“General Register”

[EmP L)

“Greater China”

[ KA

“Group”
[REE

‘gfa’
[HEr2mEmEiE

“Hong Kong”

[&E]

“Hong Kong Doctors” or “

registered medical practitioner(s)”

[BABLE] S [FEMeEL]

“IPO”

[BRAFEE]

“IRD”
[Bi#5 B

“IRO”

[ B 15051 ]

DEFINITION

collectively, Hong Kong Doctors, Macau Doctors and PRC Doctors, and
each, a “Doctor”

FEBLE RMBENTEAMELINGE  SEERE

Hong Kong Doctor(s) who is (are) not a Specialist(s)

WHENBLENRCE

the register of registered medical practitioners kept by the Hong Kong
Medical Council, as specified in the Medical Registration Ordinance

CEEEM GG ERRESBH R EemFEME LR

the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
FE - B ORFIRAE

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRAREKERA]

gross floor area
RIEEEE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China
hEARAFMBEEBFRITHRE

person(s) who is (are) qualified to practise medicine, surgery and midwifery in
Hong Kong and is (are) registered as registered medical practitioner(s) of the
Hong Kong Medical Council under the General Register or the Specialist
Register kept in accordance with the Medical Registration Ordinance
SEREEBREAR  IMERBERNE B MR R CE £ T MGG EF
TENEEEMAERBELEMAMATERKEZEGHMBENATL

initial public offering of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

PRIDTABE S P TR B R AR B E

the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong

BRURKER

Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BB ED] (BREIF 112F) - BAEHER] - MR AR BB

EEBRERASEERAT
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DEFINITION
R

“Key Client(s)”

“Listed Chinese Medicine
Practitioner(s)”

[R5

“Listing Date”
[ 7 B 8

“Listing Rules”
[ Em#R Al

“Macau”

BT ]
“Macau Doctor(s)”

DRFEAE ]

“Medical Registration Ordinance”

[CB8 A EEMHER DI ) ]

“Memorandum and Article of

Association”

ARSI AM S 4R ]

“Model Code”

(2 =rAl )

“NYMG (Pain Center)”

[ EERAERIEAR AR

(NYMG PC)

20 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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a client who has, in the relevant financial year, contributed at least HK$5,000
to our revenue from service provided and visited our service centres and/or
clinics for at least four times
REBIERFERERRFMMERRSE SR ATRZE 25,0008 T ERFHRK
MBI RS ORI ZE LA E S

person(s) who is (are) listed as listed Chinese medicine practitioner(s)
maintained by the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong kept in
accordance with the Chinese Medicine Ordinance
MREEREBEEIEZESRB(PEEFODBEENBENIERSFE
AT

11 March 2016, being the date on which the Shares were first listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange
“E-RE=ZA+—B RN EREBRFAER T REEZH

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B2 P 75 - AR A

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China

I AR HFBDRPIES RITTE R

doctor(s) licensed by and registered with the department of health in Macau
CRFIFRITIE BN ER)
BRPIRERIFTIR R BN A BT A RE SR &

the Medical Registration Ordinance (Chapter 161 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EEEDIFE 161 BB A TMHEEND (B REHERT ~ # 78 sA H A 75 & 20)

the Company’s memorandum and article of association
RRARAEBER KRG LR

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
AR 0PEC EMBITAESETESFRHNEETAD

New York Medical Group (Pain Center) Limited, a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability

M BEASHRET LARZAR(NYMG PC) » RIBHBEZFMALNE
fRA A



“NYMG Central”

[FIRABHOERBER DA

(NYMG CTL) J

“NYMG Kwun Tong”

[BEAOERBRAA

(NYMT KT)]

“NYMG Midlevels”

[ ERBR QA

(NYMG ML)

“NYMG North Point”

AN ERAR AR

(NYMG NP)|

“NYMG Quarry Bay”

[ RENEERRAR

(NYMG QB)

“NYMG Shatin”

[(PRANERFRAA]

(NYMG ST)|

“NYMG Tsimshatsui”

RPBHBOEERARAF

(NYMG TST)|

“NYMG Tsuen Wan”

[ZEBBOEERERDA

(NYMG TW) |

“NYMG Wan Chai”

[EFROERARDA

(NYMG WC) |

DEFINITION

New York Medical Group Central Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Hong Kong with limited liability
RIRAABEBR AT (NYMG CTL) » REBE S EEFMKIHBER AT

New York Medical Group Kwun Tong Limited, a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability
BEANBEARATNYMT KT) - REEEEEZMALHER AR

New York Medical Group Midlevels Limited, a company incorporated under
the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability
FIBHBEERAF (NYMG ML) - RIEFBEEEMARLNER AR

New York Medical Group North Point Limited, a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability
it ARHBEEGRAENYMGNP) - RIEE B EEFMARLMERAE]

New York Medical Group Quarry Bay Limited, a company incorporated under
the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability
B RANEREFRARI(NYMG QB) - IREBE B EET MR IANER QA

New York Medical Group Shatin Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Hong Kong with limited liability
DHRALYEFERFRAAINYMG ST) - RIBEEEETME I BER D F]

New York Medical Group Tsimshatsui Limited, a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability

SO BRI BERBER AR NYMG TST) - REEEEZTMAIZABRA R

New York Medical Group Tsuen Wan Limited, a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability
ZERHNBEAGR AT NYMG TW) @ BREBEFEEETMKZONBRAF]

New York Medical Group Wan Chai Limited, a company incorporated under
the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability
EFRNBEREARATINYMGWC) @ IREBEEBEZZZMKZIHNER AR

EEBRERASEERAT
FEHE 2017 201



DEFINITION

“Offer”

B3

“Plastic Surgeon(s)”

[ IMRIEE & ]

“PRCH

[ Ed]

“PRC Doctor(s) ”

[ B Rt B8 A |

“Prospectus”

[HEAERE

“Registered Chinese Medicine

Practitioner(s)”

[ G 28

“Registered Practitioner(s)”

[ e A |

“Relevant Disclosures”

[HERAREE |

20 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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The IRD agrees not to commence proceedings against the Relevant
Subsidiary under section 80(2) of the IRO relating to the Tax Audit if the
Relevant Subsidiary agrees to pay the IRD the required sums specified in the
Letters (such sums, in aggregate, amount to approximately HK$12.2 million)
BBRRAE - WAENEARREMBRE R ZE KT A IR R
(AR N122BEET) - HE TS RBEHI RIS 80(2) R
BEZE AR E A R R R

Hong Kong Doctor(s) who is (are) registered under the Specialist Register of
the Hong Kong Medical Council for plastic surgery kept in accordance with
the Medical Registration Ordinance

PRBCBEZMEIDFENET BB Z BRI ER B L MEM
BWEBE

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this annual report
and unless the context suggests otherwise, excludes Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan

REARKNE  siAFHRNE REXERSEMIEI  TREEE - RPT

K&

medical practitioner(s) with the qualification of a doctor (EAill) or assistant doctor
(¥ 2 BHFR B&HM) under the PRC Law on Medical Practitioners (1 A R HAE
#1122 B2H%) and Is practicing at a medical or healthcare institution
RIBCREARLTE AL B EEMo N EENIR BRI SR &

FEBE SR MIBINE

the prospectus dated 1 March 2016 issued by the Company
RAFIRZE—AF=A—ATFIENBRER

person(s) who is (are) registered as registered Chinese medicine
practitioner(s) of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong under the
Register of Chinese Medicine Practitioners kept in accordance with the
Chinese Medicine Ordinance
RIRBCPBEEGRODBENFETMEMATMREEREEEIREES
EEaliifash=1: 00 Num

mE}

Doctor(s), Chinese Medicine Practitioner(s) and/or Dentist(s)
B RERSTE

the relevant disclosures made under the section headed “Business — Legal
Proceedings, Claims and Compliance — Non-compliance Incidents — Inland
Revenue Ordinance — Late Filing of Profit Tax Returns” of the Prospectus
BRER (XK — ZEFR  BRRAHR — TAREN — BBEHA —
BHIRR X NS B mBIR | — S L BRI B



“Relevant Subsidiaries”

RiElLR=NGl

“Reporting Period”
[ & HAH

“Share(s)”

[t ]
“Shareholder(s)”

MR R

“Specialist Register”

[ERE LRI

“Specialist(s)”

[ERIEE]

“Stock Exchange”

[ B 32 Ffr |

“Target Company(ies)”

NEREVACIN

“Tax Audit”

[ EZ]

DEFINITION

Union Honor International Enterprise Limited and Union (Group) Investment
Limited, and each the “Relevant Subsidiary”
BERRCRARATLME (RE)REBRDT - & [EENME AT

financial year ended 31 March 2017
(BT —+F - A=+ —HIEVERFE

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with par value of
HK$0.00001 each
RN AR AN R E AR E{E 0.00001 & 7T H & A

holder(s) of Share(s)
R EFER A

the register of registered medical practitioners who are Specialists and kept
by the Hong Kong Medical Council, as specified in the Medical Registration
Ordinance

KB AEMED) s E R B K EZE @ hFNaMBL (REMEL)
e

Hong Kong Doctor(s) who is (are) registered under the Specialist Register of
the Hong Kong Medical Council kept in accordance with the Medical
Registration Ordinance
RIRB(BEETMEINEENEEEBZESENBERMEMNE)

&

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARIMAERAT]

collectively, NYMG Central, NYMG Kwun Tong, NYMG North Point, NYMG
Quarry Bay, NYMG Tsimshatsui, NYMG Tsuen Wan, NYMG Wan Chai,
NYMG Midlevels, NYMG Shatin and NYMG (Pain Center)
FIRANBEEBRATNYMG CTL) - BIBEAHBEAR A 7 (NYMT KT)

JEBRAEEBRAF(NYMG NP) -~ fil20RMA OB EARR AT NYMG
QB) * %»ﬂﬂﬁﬂiﬁ SE AR A FINYMG TST) » £ & 4 Z’JEFEFE“
(NYMG TW) BT @R AEEFR AR (NYMG WO) » FILAHNEEFRA
(NYMG ML) * /J\Elﬂiﬂiﬁ $E R AR (NYMG Sﬂ&%ﬂ%@%%ﬁt&fﬁm\
BRAFNYMGPC) » B RERBAEEEREAR

During the three years ended 31 March 2013, 2014 and 2015 and for the six
months ended 30 September 2015, certain of the Group companies had
been the subject of a tax audit

REBEZZT—=F - NFEE=F —ﬁizﬁ =t+t—RHIE=EFENR
REBEZE-FE—RFNA=THILARER BOAEERRABHEZER

EEBRBEEEERAR
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DEFINITION

“Trade Descriptions Ordinance”
[ 78 am o AR 16k 01

“Trained Therapists”
[BEXEEaEA]

"HK$”

[l

“g
(%]

20 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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the Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BREDIF 362 BB M FH B IRGDETERERT ~ fiFEs A7 A E2R)

our employees who are trained in accordance with our internal guidelines to
provide quasi-medical services and/or traditional beauty services
RREM ARSI CIEIAIRBEBERS & RERERARENAA
AESR

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEAEERET

per cent.
ERsNsd



LM

Union Medical Healthcare

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
5B EEREEBRAT

LA This Annual Report is printed on environmentally friendly paper
OO % e s AR AR 4538 ED
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